DELMIAWorks



Release: 2022



©1998-2021 Dassault Systemes Americas Corp.

# Contents

### Quoting

л	
•	

Quotation Parameters	5
Quote Parameters - General Tab	6
Default Values in Quotation Parameters	9
Rates and Quantities in Quotation Parameters	12
Markup Tables	13
Current RFQ#	15
Extra Charges in Quotation Parameters	16
Creating Quotes - General Quote Values	17
Quote Item Information	33
Extra Charges	51
Commissions	53
Assigning Auxiliary Equipment	54
Quote Documents	57
User Defined Form in Quotations	62
Generic Manufacturing Type Quotes	63
Outsource Manufacturing Type Quotes	66
Extrusion Manufacturing Type Quotes	67
Thermoform and TFORM2 Manufacturing Type Quotes	69
Creating a Quote from the Top Level down	74
Calculating the Quote	
Calculation Parameters on Calculations Tab	80
Optimizing the Quote	85
Advanced Optimization	87
Calculation Example	92
Calculations for LBS/K	106
Individual Pricing	108
Printing the Quote Letter	116
Converting a Quote to a BOM	124
Converting a BOM to a Quote from the Engineering Quote Module	131
Other Functions Available in Quoting	134
Component Quantity Information	134
Engineering Quote Workflow	135
Graphs in Quotations	174
Print RFQ	175
Quote Inventory	177
Attached Items Maintenance in Quotes	183
Auxiliary Equipment	184
Work Centers - Access from the Estimating Module	184
Cloning a Quote	185
Multi-Currency	185
EIQ Bookmark for RFQ	186
Trace Quote	186
Weight Work Sheet	186
Main Menu Bar Functions and Speed Buttons	192
Visual Quote Routing	195
Overview	196
Creating a New Visual Quote Routing	197

Vendor RFQ	
Vendor RFQ - Main Section Field Listing	
Vendor RFQ Details Section	
Vendor RFQ Document Tab	
Print Vendor RFQ	
Add to PO	
Vendor RFQ Templates	
RFQ Log	
RFQ Batch Print	
RFQ Comparison	217

#### Index

# Quoting

The EnterpriseIQ Quoting module is a powerful tool used to fine tune estimated costs and profit margins. The quote structure is similar to creating a Bill of Manufacture (BOM), but allows the user to run unlimited "what if" scenarios without affecting the manufacturing side. An approved quote can be quickly converted to a BOM.

The **EnterpriselQ** Quoting module can help the user create a bid on a new project (RFQ-Request for Quote) or examine costs and profit margins on existing BOMs.

#### **Before You Begin**

Prior to entry of quotes, it is recommended that the user enter the following information:

- Customer Data
- Raw Materials
- Inserts
- Packaging
- Quote Parameters
- System Configuration Options—Equipment/Work Centers and Labor Rates.

All of the information shown above can be accessed from the Quote module if the user needs to create an entry on the fly.

There are three steps to building a quote:

- **1** General Information Supplying the general information such as RFQ number, description, customer, cycle and setup time, and raw materials.
- 2 **Item Information** Providing details on the item to be produced and the components and/or packaging items to be consumed.
- **3** Calculation Calculating the quote pricing and cost information and providing a Quote Letter.

**NOTE**: The user is not required to enter a quote for all BOMs. Functions within EnterpriseIQ will calculate the standard costs for manufactured items. Refer to the Inventory section for more details.

# **Quotation Parameters**

Before entering a quote, basic configuration information must be entered into the system. The system requires general quote parameters (i.e. margin display and gross margin calculation), default value and quantities, and markup tables.

**Note**: This section should be completed BEFORE creating a quote.

From within the **Quote** module:

Select Miscellaneous->|Rates and Parameters from the main menu bar. The following screen will appear.

IQ Quo	tation Parameter	s		_	
General	Default Values	Rates and Quantities	Markup Tables	Current Quotation	Extra 🔸 🕨
Margin Gros Mark	Display s Profit Margin % :up %				
Markup	Method entage ts				
Commis Price Price	sion Calculation + (Price * Commi / (1 - Commission	ssion) 1)			
Overhe	ead Calculation (F d on unique item d on total numbe	amily Configurations) numbers r of cavities			
Attache	d Components S d on (1+Scrap)	crap Calculation			
O Base	d on (1/1-Scrap)				
Use N	laster Inventory S	td Cost for Component	Pricing instead o	of Price Breaks	
Workt	flow Approval	ty breaks			
□ v	Vorkflow Mandat	ory			
					Close

# **Quote Parameters - General Tab**

General Parameters define several default calculations, as explained below:

#### Margin Display

Gross Profit Margin %	((Total Revenue – Total Cost) / Total Revenue) * 100 <b>Example</b> : Revenue = 300.00 Total Cost = 240.00		
	((300.00 - 240.00) / 300.00) * 100 = 20%		
Markup %	((Total Revenue – Total Cost) / Total Cost) * 100		
	Example: Total Revenue = 300.00 Total Cost = 240.00 ((300.00 - 240.00) / 240.00) * 100 = 25%		

#### Mark-up By

Percentage	The Percentage function takes a certain percentage of the cost, and Adds that value back to the original.
	<b>Example</b> : Item cost is \$1.00 with a 25% percentage markup calculates to \$1.25 (1.00 x .25) + 1.00 = 1.25.
Points	The Points function increases the total cost by the percentage used. This is accomplished by dividing the cost by one minus the percentage.
	Example: Item cost is \$1.00 with a 25% Points markup calculates to \$1.3333 (1.00 / .75 = 1.3333).

#### **Commission Calculation**

Price +	Commissions can be calculated using the formula	
	Price + (price x commission)	
Price/	Commissions can be calculated using this formula:	
	Price/(1-commission)	

#### **Overhead Calculation (family configurations)**

The overhead calculation for quotes for family tools can be changed to one of the following options. The default method is based on unique item numbers.

Based on unique item numbers	This option takes overhead cost and divides by the number of unique items being quoted and then takes that number divided by the number of cavities for a specific item.				
	For example:				
	The quote has two unique items, one with 2 cavities and one with one cavity.				
	The total overhead cost = 97.50				
	O.H. Cost for the 2 Cavity item = (97.50/2)/2 = 24.38				
	O.H. Cost for the 1 Cavity item = (97.50/2)/1 = 48.75				
Based on total number of cavities	This option adds all of the cavities together and divides the total overhead by the total cavities.				
	For example:				
	The quote has two unique items, one with 2 cavities and one with one cavity.				
	The total overhead cost = 97.50				
	O.H. Cost for both items = (97.50/3) = 32.50				

#### Attached Components Scrap Calculation

This controls how the scrap on components is calculated. There are two options.

Based on (1+Scrap)	This is the default method.
Based on (1/1- Scrap)	This is the same method that is used in the costing module.

#### Use Master Inventory Std Cost for Component Pricing instead of Price Breaks

When this option is checked the system will use the standard cost for components rather than the price breaks. The materials forms will change to show the standard costs rather than the price breaks. With this option checked when converting from a BOM to a Quote, the system will not create a new quote inventory record (QINVT) if the quote inventory item already exists.

#### Use Scrap % by Quantity Breaks

If this parameter is checked, a column is added to the 'Rates and Quantities' tab->'Standard Quote Quantities' section for 'Scrap %'. Each quantity can have a different scrap percent. On the 'Calculations' tab the Scrap % column is added in the quantities grid displaying the scrap percent from 'Standard Quote Quantities'. This field can be edited. A Scrap % row is also added to the calculations grid for displaying the scrap percent associated to the quote quantity. The quantity scrap rates function the same as the scrap percent entered on the General Quote Values tab if this option is not selected. Note: When changing this parameter setting users have to leave and come back to the quote to reflect the change.

#### Workflow Approval

**Workflow Approval** - Check this option to utilize the workflow functionality in the quoting module. When this is checked the workflow functionality will become available on the Engineering Quote->General Quote Values tab. See Engineering Quote Workflow for details.

**Workflow Mandatory** - Workflow Approval can also be marked mandatory by checking the 'Workflow Mandatory' box. This will require users to create a workflow for all quotes. Note: If the Workflow Approval check box is not checked and the user checks this box, the system will automatically check the Workflow Approval box.

# **Default Values in Quotation Parameters**

IQ Quo	tation Parameter	5		_		×
General	Default Values	Rates and Quantities	Markup Tables	Current Quotation	Extra Cha	rges
					ð	×
Operat	or Labor Rate	9				
Quote \	/alid For	30	(Days)			
Follow-	Up Interval		(Days)			
Unit of	Measure (UOM)	GR		$\sim$		
Efficien	cy Factor	95				
	Exclude Efficiency Factor from Cost Calc					
<ul> <li>Exclude Efficiency Factor from Cost Calc</li> <li>Material markup not compounded</li> <li>Check available regrind percentage in LBS/K calculation</li> <li>Refresh subcomponent price breaks</li> <li>Quote due date is mandatory</li> <li>Calculate All Levels</li> </ul>						
					Close	

#### **Default Values**

Operator Labor Rate	The default operator rate that will be used for all quotes. Can be overridden for individual quotes using different employee levels.
Quote Valid For	The number of days that the quote will be valid for.

UOM	The unit of measure that the part weights will be calculated in. Select from the arrow down list. The options are: GR, LBS, OZ, FT, IN, M, KM, YD, KG, and CM.			
	The UOM will be converted to the nearest Imperial/Metric version of the UOM depending on the setting in System Parameters->Regional tab or EPlant Parameters (Enterprise->Miscellaneous tab) for Imperial or Metric UOM.			
	Quote Parameters	Metric	Imperial	
	GR	GR	GR	
	LBS	KG	LBS	
	OZ	GR	OZ	
	KG	KG	LBS	
	FT	М	FT	
	IN	СМ	IN	
	СМ	CM	IN	
	м	М	FT	
	YD	М	YD	
	KM	KM	FT	
	Note: The system	n also uses th	nis for new BC	Ms.
Follow-Up Interval	The number of c is populated on in this field from date out is 6/9/0	days from the the quote the the Date Ou 08 the Follow	e Date Out fiel e Follow-Up D it date. For ex r-Up date will	d to follow up on the quote. Once the Date Out field bate will fill in based on the number of days entered ample, if the follow-up interval is 10 days, and the populate with 6/19/08.
Efficiency Factor	The efficiency factor accounts for time that the machine operates. It affects the assumed production time (Net Cycles/hr) and therefore the overhead cost for the produced item. An efficiency factor of 100% assumes that the machine will run 60 minutes per hour and an efficiency factor of 90% assumes the machine will run 54 minutes per hour.			
Exclude Efficiency Factor from Cost Calc	If this is checked The system will	l the system v use an efficie	will exclude th ency factor of	ne efficiency factor when calculating overhead costs. 100 rather than the Quotes efficiency factor.
Material Markup Not Compound	Controls whethe component in a make up the sub	er a manufact higher level I bassembly wi	tured sub-con BOM. If check ll NOT be mar	nponent is marked up again when it is used as a ed, the lower level manufactured materials that ked up again.

Check Available Regrind%	If this is selected, when the program calculates the lbs/K, the calculation checks to see available regrind (Runner Weight / Shot Weight) * 100) and will give a warning if the allowable regrind entered exceeds the calculated available regrind. The warning will display the maximum available regrind percent and ask if the user would like to Replace the regrind value or Ignore it. The pop up form also has a check box. 'Continue checking available RG %', if Replace is selected the user can un-select this option and the system will no longer check for available regrind. If ignore is selected, the system also ignores any changes made to this check box.    Image: Available RG% Exceeded   Image: Replace RG% Entered with max available?   Replace RG% Entered with max available?   Replace   RG% Entered   Image: RG
Refresh Sub- Components Price/Break	With this option selected the system will refresh the price breaks on manufactured sub components before calculating a quote.
Quote Due Date is Mandatory	Select this option to force the user to enter a quote due date.
Calculate All Levels	Check this option to calculate the costs for each item associated to the 'top' level item with one click. For example, Item C consumes Item B, which consumes Item A. With this option checked when calculating the quote for Item C, the system will automatically calculate Item B and A. If this is not checked in order to get the correct cost for Item C you must open the quote for Item A and calculate, then open the quote for Item B and calculate, then open the quote for C and calculate.
	This value can be overridden on the Calculation tab for an individual quote.
	Note: The automatic calculations will only affect the actual items that are part of the current "tree" and not other quotes they may be attached to.
	Note: In order for this to work, 'Refresh Subcomponent Price Breaks' must be checked on the Default Values tab of Quote Parameters, and 'Use Master Inventory Std Cost for Component Pricing Instead of Price Breaks' must be unchecked on the General tab of Quote Parameters.

Rates and	Quantities	in	Quotation	<b>Parameters</b>
-----------	------------	----	-----------	-------------------

	tation Para	ameters	;				-			$\sim$
eneral	Default V	/alues	Rates and Quantities	Markup Tables	Current Qu	otatio	n	Extra	Cha	rges
Direct L	abor Rates	5								
							-	÷	×	6
Direct	t Labor Rat	e								1
•	7	.000000	0							
	8	3.000000	0							
	9	.000000	0							
										•
Standa	rd Ouote O	Juantiti	ac							•
Standa	rd Quote Q	Juantiti	es							•
Standai	rd Quote Q	)uantiti	es			+	-	÷	х	0
Standar	rd Quote Q tity	Quantitio	es %			÷	-	÷	×	•
Standar Quan	rd Quote Q tity 100	Quantition	es			÷	-	ł	×	•
Quan	rd Quote Q tity 100 500	Quantitio	es			÷	-	ł	×	•
Quan	rd Quote Q tity 100 500 1000	Quantiti	es			+	-	×	×	•
Quan	rd Quote Q tity 100 500 1000 5000	Quantiti	es			+	-	÷	×	0
Quan	rd Quote Q tity 100 500 1000 5000 10000	Quantiti Scrap 9	es			+	-	÷	×	
Quan	rd Quote Q tity 100 500 1000 1000	Quantition	es			*	-	*	×	

#### **Direct Labor Rates**

Schedule of labor rates for operations. This list is visible in the drop down list when adding labor costs to an RMA or when toggling an item from Non-Conform to conforming.

#### **Default Standard Quote Quantities**

An unlimited number of quote quantities may be entered and the system will calculate price and cost information for each of the quantities entered. These are defaults which can be changed at the individual quote level.

If the 'Use Scrap % by Quantity Breaks' parameter is checked in the Miscellaneous menu->Rate and Parameters, a column is added to the 'Rates and Quantities' tab in the 'Standard Quote Quantities' section for 'Scrap %'. Each quantity can have a different scrap percent. Enter the scrap percent in the Scrap % field for each quote quantity if desired.

On the Calculations tab a Scrap % column is added in the quantities grid displaying the scrap percent from Standard Quote Quantities. These values can be edited. A Scrap % row is added to the calculations grid for displaying the scrap percent associated to the quote quantity. The quantity scrap rates function the same as the scrap percent entered on the General Quote Values tab if this option is not selected.

The user can *Add, Delete, post, cancel, or refresh* changes made by selecting these functions from the Navigator bar.

### **Markup Tables**

**EnterpriselQ** allows productions costs and material costs to be marked up separately using the Production markup and Material markup defaults.

To set up the default Production and Material markup tables:

Select the "Markup Tables" tab from within the General Quote Parameters screen. The following screen will appear:

IQ	Quotation	Paramete	rs				_	-			Х
Ge	neral Defa	ult Values	Rate	s and Quantities	Markup Tables	Current Qu	otatio	n	Extra	Cha	rges
P	roduction M	larkup Tabl	e								
							+	-	Ŀ	×	۴
	Hours	Rate %									^
Þ		5	300								
	1	D	200								
	2	D	100								
	Dollars	Rate %					+	-	I	×	<b>ج</b>
Þ	10	0	300								
	50	0	200								
	100	0	150								
	250	0	100								
											¥
									CI	ose	

**EnterpriselQ** will use the default values when initially calculating a quote. However, these values may be modified once a quote has been calculated.

#### **Production Markup Table**

Production mark-up rates are based on *Production Hours per Quote Quantity*. The system matches the generated production hours (based on cycle time, set up, etc.) with the Hours column in this table, and finds the corresponding markup rate. If the calculated production hours fall between two hour entries, it will take the rate for the lowest of the two values. For example, a job that will run 7 hours will be marked up 30% using the above schedule.

**Note:** The Production markup table shown above is a sample only and should not be assumed to be accurate or valid for your environment.

#### Adding Hourly Values

The user may enter an unlimited number of Production markup values.

To 'Add' an hourly value:

- Click on the Add [+] key from the Navigator Bar under the Production Markup Table. This will create a new entry line.
- > Enter in the number of Hours and the Rate %.
- > Press the Add [+] key or use the arrow down key to Add Additional entries.
- > Select [Save] on the Navigator bar.

To Edit the Production Markup table, highlight the field to be changed and enter the new value.

To Delete entries, click on the line to be removed and press the Delete [-] key on the Navigator bar. A confirmation box will appear asking to confirm the action.

#### Material Mark-up Table

Material markups are based on *Material Costs per Quote Quantity*. Like production hours, the Dollars column is calculated based on the total material costs to run the individual Quote Quantity. The calculation is therefore based on the total dollar volume being processed, NOT the number of pounds being processed. If the calculated material value falls between two entries, it will take the rate for the lower of the two values.

The total dollar volume includes costs for all raw materials, including plastics, additives, inserts, and packaging attached to the item.

> Adding Dollar Values - The user may enter an unlimited number of dollar values.

To **Add** a new value:

Click on the Add [+] key on the Navigator Bar (under the Material Markup Table.) This will create a new entry line.

Quoting

- > Enter in the **Dollars** and the **Rate** %.
- > Press the Add [+] key or use the arrow down key to Add Additional entries.
- > Select [Save] on the Navigator bar.

To **Edit** the Material Markup table, highlight the field to be changed and enter the new value.

To **Delete** entries, click on the line to be removed and press the **Delete** [-] key on the Navigator bar. A confirmation box will appear asking to confirm the action.

## Current RFQ#

This tab shows the current quote number and has a quote specific check box to check the available regrind percent in LBS/K calculation. The default to check available regrind is on the General Parameters tab but the user can specify something other than the default for each individual quote.

IQ Quot	tation Parameter	_		$\times$		
General	Default Values	Rates and Quantities	Markup Tables	Current Quotation	Extra Ch	arges
RFQ #	1-PASO ck Available RG 9	6 in LBS/K Calculation				
					Close	•

To return to the main **Quote** entry screen, click on [**Close**]. For Additional information on the Markup table functions, please see Calculation Parameters.

# **Extra Charges in Quotation Parameters**

This tab allows the user to enter a list of extra charges. The user can then select from this pick list when adding extra charges to a quote rather than having to manually entering them each time. For more information on Extra Charges please see the Extra Charges and Commissions section below.

IQ Quo	tation Parameter	5			_				Х
General	Default Values	Rates and Quantities	Markup Tables	Current Q	uotation	E	xtra (	Charg	ges
					+	-	ø	х	e
						ļĵ		Y	$\mathbb{X}$
Descri	ption	Total	Per C	ost Break					^
•									
									~
					[		Clo	se	

# **Creating Quotes - General Quote Values**

Manufacturing quotes are used to quote individual items or multiple items made from the same tool (family tools). Before entering a new quote, the basic configuration information covered above must be entered into the system. If re-quoting an item, follow the first two steps below and Edit the quote from there.

#### **Multi-Level Quoting**

A quote will need to be created for each step in the process required for manufacturing the final product. For example, a part may first be injected molded (Injection Quote) then sonic welded (Generic Quote), and may be sent out for outside processing (Outsource Quote) then come back in for additional assembly (Generic Quote). Just as in creating BOM's, a quote will need to be created for each of those steps.

To create a quote for an item that moves through multiple processes the user can start by creating the quote for the first step then create a quote for the second step attaching the item created in the first, and so on. Or the quoting process can be started at the top level (final step) and the user can work their way down. Attached components can be marked 'RFQ Required' which creates a place holder for the item. See Creating a Quote from the Top Level down for more information.

#### **Creating a New Quote**

To create a NEW quote:

- From the EIQ Launcher Bar, select the Estimating Tab and click on the 'Quoting' button. The Select from RFQ pick list will appear.
- To create a new quote, click on the 'New' button located in the bottom right corner of the pick list. A new quote can also be created by selecting an existing quote from the pick list and selecting either the Add [+] key, or Quote|New from the main menu bar.

**Note**: The information and examples in the following pages are based on creating an Injection Molding quote. The Injection quote is used as it illustrates the basic steps for most types of quotes, such as Blow Molding and Rotational molding. For information on other MFG Types such as Generic (Generic Manufacturing Type Quotes), Extrusion (Extrusion Manufacturing Type Quotes), and Thermoform (Thermoform and TFORM2 Manufacturing Type Quotes), and Outsource (Outsource Manufacturing Type Quotes), see those sections below. For ASSY MFG Types please refer to the Assembly Manufacturing help file.

**EnterpriselQ** supports multiple manufacturing definitions, such as Injection, Extrusion, Generic, Blow Molding, Outsourcing, as well as user defined manufacturing types. Each definition contains unique elements that complement the manufacturing method. For example, the Injection type supports the concept of cycle times, regrind and includes a direct attachment of a material specification that is consumed during production. The Extrusion definition handles continuous manufacturing processes, while Generic types are used to perform manufacturing processes other than molding.

Select a Manufacturing Type from the Selection Criteria box and click on 'OK'. The General Quote Values entry screen will appear. This screen contains the general information required when creating a quote. All fields will be blank except for the defaults specified under Rates and Parameters (i.e. UOM, Date, Expires, Efficiency Factor, and Operator Labor Rate) as shown in the screen below.

GENERIC Quote 169	-PASO -								_				×
File Options Miscell	aneous Reports Help	0				_							
AA 🖃 🧇						∛∦રુ 📢	◄		٠	-	ø	×	6
General Quote Values It	em Details Calculations												
Quote Information				General Quote Values									
ID	281		~	Manufacturing Type									
RFQ #	169-PASO			Call								4	
Description				Cell							`		
Revision	1			Operators		••••							
Customer		- 44		Cvde Time									
Contact				cyce mie									
□Quote Date	5/6/2020			Units/Cycle		1							
Expires	6/5/2020			Work Center								7	aa.
Due Date				WORK CERTER				 					
Date Out				Scrap %									
Follow-Up Date				Efficiency Factor		95							
Won Date													
Pricing Effective				Center Rate									
□Created By	IOMS			Fixed Machine Rate									
Sales Engineer		•••		Colored Harrison									
				Setup Hours									
Tool Type													
Part Type													
⊟Status													
Tool Status													
Component Status													
Packaging Status													
Ouote Status													
User Ouote Status		-											
Currency													
Calculated On													
RFQ Control #													
Converted		•••											
EPlant													
CRM Opportunity #		•••											
⊡Workflow													
Quote Type		•••											
Workflow #		•••											
Status													
Note		2											
Additional Note		2	*		_								

**Note:** If the quote you are viewing was received from Marketplace, the quote screen will display a blue banner at the top of the screen: "This quote was received from Dassault Systemes Marketplace."

ID	ID is the system generated ID number for this quote and cannot be changed. This field is also included in the pick list.
RFQ # (required)	The RFQ # is the quote tracking number for this quote. The combination of RFQ # and Revision must be unique or an error message will appear
	NOTE: RFQ numbers can be set to increment automatically each time a quote is entered. This feature is located in System Setup/System Parameters/Sequential Numbering. If the enable check box is marked with a black check mark, the system will automatically increment the RFQ numbers
Rev	This field is used to enter the Quote revision number (defaults to 1). This field is used to keep track of how many times the quote has been changed. The revision is user defined so it does not update automatically after each calculation.
	A quote can be cloned as a new revision, using the Clone option from the File menu.
Description	This field is used to enter a description of what is being manufactured in this Quote.
Customer	Select from the drop down list or select the pick list button next to this field to select a Customer to associate to the quote. This pick list is comprised of existing customers, if you want to include CRM 'prospect' customers also, check the 'Do Not Filter Out CRM Customers' under the Options menu.
	Note: If this option is not checked a quote for a prospect will appear in the pick list but cannot be opened.
Contact	Select the ellipsis button to access the pick list of contacts associated to the customer. Select the contact to be assigned to the quote from the pick list.

Below lists the field description for the General Quote form:

Quick Add		_		×
New Customer				
Customer # Company Address1 Address2 Address3 City Country				
State or Region Postal Code Telephone # Extension Fax # Prime Contact Prime Contact Email Status			~ 	Ŧ
1	ОК		Cancel	

If the customer is not in the pick list, create the customer by selecting 'New'. The new customer will be added to the existing pick list of customers in the AR section with a status of quote. Selecting **New** will bring up the following screen:

Assign a unique customer number and complete the remaining information. Note: The State drop down list will only appear for selected countries where States apply, such as the United States and Canada.

**Note**: The Quick Add function does not provide the ability to enter all customer information. Remaining information is entered in the Customer Maintenance screen under Accounts Receivable or System Setup.

- Quote Date The date field fills in automatically with the date the quote was created. This can be changed by choosing a different date from the drop down calendar. Select the + button next to the field to expand the view to show the additional date fields: Expires - This is the date that the quote will expire. The expiration date is calculated from the date the quote is generated and the 'Quote Valid For' in General Quote Parameters. Due Date - This is the date the quote is due to the customer. This is entered manually using the drop down calendar from the RFQ module or the RFQ Log. . **Date Out** - This is the date the quote was sent out. This is entered manually using the drop down calendar from the RFQ module or the RFQ Log. Follow Up Date - If a 'Follow-Up Interval' is entered in rates and parameters, this date will populate once the Date Out has been entered. Or it can be manually entered using the drop down calendar from the RFQ module or the RFQ Log. Won Date - The date the quote was won. Pricing Effective Date - If a date is populated in this field, when converting the quote to a BOM the system will populate the FG Inventory and AKA Inventory price breaks with the Effective date. It will also use the Quote's Effective Date to populate the Inactive Date for any current price breaks with the same Quantity as the Quotes Price Break Quantities. **Created By** The Created By field is populated with the login name of the person who created the quote. Select the + button next to the field to expand the view to show the Sales Engineer field. Enter the 'Sales Engineer' by clicking on the button in the field and choosing 'Assign to me' or 'Select User'. The Assign to me option will populate this field with the Login Name of the user who is logged in. To choose a different person select an employee from the pick list. (The available user list is made up of employees that have the employee name associated to the user name in security inspector). Select the + button to expand the Type field to display **Tool Type** and **Part Type**. Select from Type the drop down list next to each field and select the appropriate type: New Existing Requote These fields can also be entered from the RFQ Log module.
- > Press 'OK' to return to the General Quote Values screen.

Status	<ul> <li>Select the + button to expand the Status field to display Tool, Component, Packaging, and Primary Material Status fields. Select from the drop down list next to each field and select the appropriate status:</li> <li>OK</li> <li>Purchasing</li> <li>Estimating</li> <li>Sales - For Component, Packaging, and Primary Material Status'</li> <li>Engineering - For Tool Status</li> <li>These fields can also be entered from the RFQ Log module.</li> </ul>
Quote Status	The status of the quote in regards to acceptance by the customer. Select the quote status from the drop down list:
	<ul> <li>Pending</li> </ul>
	■ Won
	<ul> <li>Lost</li> </ul>
	This field can also be entered from the RFQ Log module.
User Quote Status	This is an additional user defined status field. Right click on the field and select 'Define Label Text' to change the label. This field also has a user definable drop down list accessed by right clicking on the blue drop down arrow and selecting 'Edit User Defined List'. This field is also visible in the RFQ Log.
Currency	If Multi-currency is enabled the currency field will be present. This will automatically populate with the currency associated to the customer. Click on the arrow down button to select a different currency. This is informational only, as the currency on a quote is always in the native currency associated to the EPlant or the native in System Parameters for non-EPlant users
UOM	This is the unit of measure associated to the part weight and runner/sprue.
Calculated On	This is the last date the quote pricing was calculated. This will fill in automatically when the quote pricing is first calculated and updated if the quote is recalculated.
RFQ Control #	The control # records the user name, date and time that the quote was last revised. This will fill in automatically when the quote is saved.
	<b>Note:</b> The format of the Control # can be set in System Parameters->Company File Information->Application tab. If this field is blank it will default to MM-DD-RRRR- HH24:MI:SS (e.g. Username 03-16-2010-16:56:35). The user name is always the prefix.
	The format must start with a dash (-). But the order of the 'RRRR', 'MM', 'DD', HH24, MI or SS can be changed.
Converted	This field displays the number of times the quote has been converted to a BOM. Click on the ellipsis button to view the list of BOM's it has been converted to. The user can jump to the actual BOM from this list.
EPlant	This will show which plant the quote is being created in. This will only be filled in if EPlant is being used.

CRM Opportunity #	A CRM Opportunity record can be linked to a quote. Select the ellipsis button in this field and select Link CRM Opportunity. A pick list of existing opportunities will display. Choose the desired record from the list. Once a CRM Opportunity is linked the user can select Jump To CRM Opportunity to view the record. Select Clear CRM Opportunity to remove the link to the quote.
Workflow	<ul> <li>If the Workflow Approval' parameter is checked these fields will be visible on the General Quote tab:</li> <li>Quote Type - When using the Quote workflow functionality users will select the Quote Type from the pick list accessed by clicking the ellipsis button. Once a Quote Type is selected a workflow is created automatically with the template associated to the Quote Type. If the 'Workflow Mandatory' parameter is checked users are required to select a Quote Type. If the user attempts to save a quote without selecting a Quote Type an error will display stating, "The quote type is required". If the user selected a Quote Type that does not have a template assigned, a message will display stating, "No workflow exists for the quote type. Select YES to create a template; NO to cancel your changes". When YES is selected the workflow template pick list will appear. Select New to create a new template to associate</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>to the Quote Type (refer to the Engineering Quote Workflow topic for details). If NO is selected the user will be returned to the quote for editing.</li> <li>Workflow # - This field displays the Workflow number. Click the ellipsis button and select 'Jump to Workflow' to access the associated workflow.</li> <li>Status - This field displays the status of the Workflow. This can be Inactive (not started), Pending (in process), Not Approved, (rejected), Approved (workflow is complete).</li> <li>See the Engineering Quote Workflow section for more details.</li> </ul>
Note	This Note field allows for 4,000 characters. To enter text select the button next to the field to bring up the Note form. This field can be used for additional information on the screen or added to a report.
	Text can also be entered from a boiler plate. Right click in the Note field, the following options will be available:
	<ul> <li>Load Boiler Plate: Allows you to select a message from an existing boiler plate.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>View/Edit Boiler Plate: Allows the user to view and or edit existing boiler plates.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Save as Boiler Plate: Allows the user to type a new comment and save it as a boiler plate for future use</li> </ul>
	The table and field are <i>Quote.Note1</i> . This field will print on the RFQ report and can be added to other reports.
	This note field is also visible from the RFQ Log and can be edited from there as well.
Additional Note	This is an additional note field that functions the same as the Note field described above. The table and field are <i>Quote.Note2</i> .
Manufacturing Type	This is the manufacturing type that the quote is being created for. (i.e. Injection, Generic, etc.).
Cell	Select the cell in which the item will be manufactured. The <b>Cell</b> field is optional and may be left blank if cells are not being used. To select a cell, click on the arrow down button to make a selection

Operators	This is the labo	r required a	at the work center	to run this	opera	tion.					
	Click on the elli will appear, (No	psis button	in the labor field to ote must be saved	to enter the	e requi	ired lat	oor. Th Iforma	e follov tion).	wing form		
	IQ Prepare Q	Prepare Quote Labor						×	1		
		•		< < >	⊳I	+ -	J.	× C			
	Operators	Code	Descrip		Labo	r Rate		^			
	>	couc	beschp	Current		Last U	sed				
			1								
								~			
	From this scree (this does not h	n click on t have to be a	he ADD (+) button whole number) tl	, enter in th hen select t	ie qua he Em	ntity o plove	f oper e Level	ators re Code f	equired rom the		
	drop down list.	The Labor	Rate will fill in with	n the Quote	Rate	associ	ated w	ith the	code		
	System Parame	re entered eters).	In the Employee Le	evel form a	cesse	a trom	i the Li	sts mei	nu in		
	The user can select multiple labor codes and associate fractions of operators per code or multiple operators per code.										
	EnterpriselQ su used for jobs ru tools, a partial operator is ten	pports a ra unning auto number suo ding.	nge of 0.00 to 999 matically and an c h as 0.5 is entered	operators perator is r d depending	per jo not alv g upor	b. A nu vays at n the n	imber the pi umber	less tha ress. Fo of mac	in 1 can be r these chines the		
	The Employee I number of emp system comes	Levels list is bloyee level with a Defa	s created in Sys Set s may be created 1 ult labor code.	up->Systen for use in th	n Para Ie BOI	meters M and	s->List: RFQ m	s. An ur odules.	limited The		
	If the Default labor code is selected the system will use the default Operator Labor Rate from Rates and Parameters.										
	Labor Rate Hierarchy - Below describes the hierarchy of how the system will determine the quote standard labor rate:										
	1 Employee le	evel quote	rate								
	2 Quote/Misc	cellaneous	/Rates and Parar	meters/De	fault	Values	s/Ope	rator L	abor Rate		
	3 Mfg Cell										
	4 Mfg Type										
	<b>Note:</b> When using employee levels, in order to have Setup hours included in the quote users must have an employee level with a labor type of Setup associated to the quote also. This designates the setup labor cost.										
	The <b>'</b> Last Used' calculated.	column is ι	useful to see the la	bor rate th	at was	s used	when	the quo	te was last		

Cycle Time	This is the time that it takes to make one unit (i.e., one shot, one assembly unit, etc.). This is based on the Cycle Time set on the Manufacturing Type, i.e. seconds.
Units/Cycle (required)	This is the number of units manufactured during the cycle time. This is not necessarily the number of cavities per cycle. EnterpriselQ uses this value to determine how many shots are required on a production run. The calculation is simply the number of Items Required / Units per cycle.
	This value is used in the calculation for: Net Value/Hr, Prod Hrs, and Lbs Req.
	Essentially, for a tool that produces one item, the units per cycle will equal the number of cavities.
	For a family tool, the units per cycle will equal the lowest cavitation for any part.

The following examples demonstrate the **Units/Cycle** concept:

#### Examples:

One item, 4 cavities, sold individually. Units/Cycle is 4 because each cavity is sold separately. Requirement is for 1000 pieces, the shots required would be 250 (1000/4 = 250).

Two item numbers, 2 cavities each, sold as a set or as each. Units/Cycle is 2. The quote will calculate the price for a set as well as the individual item prices. The requirement is for 1000 pieces of each, the shots required is 500 (1000 / 2 = 500).

Two item numbers (Item A and Item B), 1 cavity for Item A and 3 cavities for Item B, sold individually or as a set (1 of Item A and 1 of Item B). This is a ONE unit per cycle configuration because you only get one set per shot. The quote will calculate the price for a set as well as the individual item prices. The requirement is for 1000 pieces of each, the shots required is 1000 in order to produce 1000 pcs of Item A (1000 / 1). If you put the units per cycle as 3. The system would calculate shots required at 334 (1000/3) and you would only produce 334 Item A's.

**EnterpriselQ** will allow less than 1 unit per cycle for situations when one shot is not enough to produce a set. In this case, divide the Unit/Cycle by the number of shots needed to produce one set.

Work Center (required)	This is the type of work center that the item will be manufactured on. Select from the drop down list or select the pick list button next to this field. Both lists include the center #, description, type, rate, setup hours, and startup shots. After selecting a <b>Work Center</b> , a prompt will ask "Paste SetUp Hours, StartUp Shots & Rate from Selected Work Center?" If "Yes" is selected, the <b>Setup Hours, Startup Shots, and Center Rate</b> (defined under Work Centers) will automatically populate the appropriate fields. The entries can be changed for a particular quote without changing the default for the work center. Selecting "No" will leave the fields blank.
---------------------------	--

Scrap%	This is the estimated amount of scrap that the production process will generate. This amount is used in calculating the extra production time and raw material necessary to make the correct number of good parts.
	This scrap rate does not affect any attached components. A separate scrap rate can be associated to an attached component in the Attached Materials section of the Item Details tab.
	Note: This field will not be present on this tab if the ' <b>Use Scrap % by Quantity Breaks</b> ' parameter is checked in the Miscellaneous menu->Rate and Parameters. When checked a column is added to the 'Rates and Quantities' tab 'Standard Quote Quantities' section for 'Scrap %'. Each quantity can have a different scrap percent. On the 'Calculations' tab a 'Scrap %' column is added in the quantities grid displaying the scrap percent from 'Standard Quote Quantities'. This field can be edited. A 'Scrap %' row is added to the calculations grid for displaying the scrap percent associated to the quantity scrap rates function the same as the scrap percent entered on the General Quote Values tab if this option is not selected.
Efficiency Factor	The efficiency factor accounts for time that the machine operates. It affects the assumed production time (Net Cycles/hr) and therefore the overhead cost for the produced item. This field will show the default value from Rates and Parameters, but can be edited for a particular quote.
	<b>Note</b> : If the ' <i>Exclude Efficiency Factor from Cost Calc</i> ' option is checked in Rates and Parameters->Default Values tab (Miscellaneous menu), the system will exclude the efficiency factor when calculating overhead costs. The system will use an efficiency factor of 100 rather than the Quotes efficiency factor.
Center Rate	This is the rate that will be used in calculating the production cost.
	The value can be 'pasted' from the Center Rate associated to the selected work center or a value may be entered in manually.
	This rate can be a rate used for quoting or the user can use an actual cost.
Fixed Machine Rate	This value comes from the Fixed Machine Rate associated to the selected work center or a value may be entered in manually.
	The system uses this value to calculate the variable gross margin percent on the calculations tab. (See the VGM% calculation in the Calculation Display Box section).
Start Cycles	Start Cycles are the number of shots required before a good part is produced. They affect the start-up costs calculated in the quote, with the number of Startup Shots being added to the number of cycles required to produce the quote quantity.
Setup Hrs	Setup hours are the number of hours required to set up the machine. The Set Up hours affect the length of the production run and the production cost.
	When using employee levels in the Operators field, in order to have Setup hours included in the quote users must have an employee level with a labor type of Setup associated to the quote also. This designates the setup labor cost
Material	The material to be used in the quote. Clicking on the pick list will access the following screen.
	For MFG Types with a primary material this field must be populated. If it is not, when the user attempts to calculate the quote an error will appear stating, 'RFQ # XXX - primary material required for quote calculation.'

	IQ Ma	aterial Used in (	Quote								—		×	<
ł	File (	Options Repo	orts Help											
							I		<b>a</b>		+ -	÷	×	G
														7
	Search	Quote Invento	ry											
c	urren	tly Assigned M	laterial					Q	uantit	y Pric	e Breaks			
	Class		PL				×		👌 \$EX					
	ltem #		000100						Qty		Price	Pric	e Dat	~
	Descrip	ation	T 4500 BLAC	.v.				►		1	2.50000	0 12/1	1/199	5
	Desen	ption	1-4300 BLAC	. <b>N</b>						500	2.35000	0 12/1	1/199	
	Revisio	on												
	Unit		LBS	2									>	Ť
		T   :-		10	_		_			Dete	- Due - Iu-		-	
2	uote .	Inventory List						Q	uantity	y Pric	e Breaks			
6	ħ Į	]							b 💫	\$E¥				
	Class	Item #	Revision	Description		Unit	Ext Description \land		Qty		Price	Pric	e Dat	^
	PL	000050		DFAR BONE GRAY		LBS		Þ		1	.66710	1		
	PL	000100		T-4500 BLACK		LBS	v							~
	c						>	<	11				>	
P	1astei	· Inventory						0	uantity	y Pric	e Breaks			
6	ħ								b 🖇	\$E¥				
E	Class	ltem #	Revision	Description		Unit	Ext Description	1	Otv		Price	Pric	e Dat	~
	MR	MR-01		MASTER ROLL #1		LBS	Est D'estription ??	Þ						
ľ	MR	SR-01		SR-01 20 IN		LBS					1			
	MR	SR-02		SR-02 80 IN		LBS								
	MR	SR-03		SR-03 60 IN		LBS								~
	c						>	<	10.1				>	

This screen shows the raw material assigned to the current quote, the Quote Inventory List, and the Master Inventory List. **EnterpriselQ** maintains an inventory of quote items separate from the Master Inventory to allow for the use of items not from the Master Inventory in quotes and modification of pricing for particular quotes.

#### Adding Items to the Quote Inventory from Master Inventory

To Add items to the Quote Inventory from the Master Inventory, find the material in the Master Inventory and drag and drop it into the Quote Inventory List. The Quote Inventory can have the same items from the Master Inventory with cost breaks different from those in the Master Inventory.

**Notes**: Under Options select 'Include Prices w/ Transfer' if you want the prices to transfer from the master inventory. Pricing comes from the buying price section for purchased items and the selling price section for manufactured items by default; or the standard cost if the 'Use Std Cost in Engineering Quote' option is checked in Master Inventory->Additional tab). If the 'Include Prices w/ Transfer' option is not checked, the user must enter in the pricing information for the quote inventory.

Both active and inactive pricing from the Buy/Sell tab in inventory will appear in the Master Inventory section, however, only active pricing will be carried over when dragging material from Master Inventory to the Quote Inventory List or to the Currently Assigned Material. To only see active pricing in the Master

Inventory section select the Hide/Show Inactive button Inventory Section Select the Hide/Show Inactive button is also available in the Quote Inventory section to hide quote pricing that has been marked inactive.

If the 'Use Master Inventory Std Cost for Component Pricing instead of Price Breaks' quote parameter is checked the standard cost will be displayed instead of the price breaks.

In Quote inventory you can have the same item number with a different description, but in Master Inventory the item number must be unique. Therefore, if the item is added via the 'drag' method from the Master Inventory list, the record chosen will be the first matching Item # in the Quote Inventory List. This can lead to the wrong item being added if multiple Quotes were made for the same item number with different descriptions or pricing.

#### Searching for Inventory Items

To search for items in the Quote Inventory, use the pick list speed button in the Quote Inventory section. Or click once in the Quote Inventory List section so the caption next to the field at the top of the screen reads 'Search Quote Inventory'. To search, begin typing in the Class and the Item Number of the item (do not leave a space between the Class and the Item Number) and the Quote Inventory List will hyperbrowse to the item.

Use the pick list or hyperbrowse method, in the same manner as described above, to search for items in the master inventory list.

**Right Click Options** - From the Master Inventory section users can right click and Jump to Inventory. If the item is a blend, users can select Jump to Blend to access the Blend Operations form. The Jump to Blend option is also available in the Quote Inventory List section. From the Quote Inventory List section right click and select Where Used to see a list of RFQs that the material is associated to as a primary material or a component.

				1 🗉	7 🜾	∢ ∢		
RFQ #	RFQ Description	Date	<b>RFQ</b> Revision	Source		ltem #		^
4-PASO	FRAME-LFT ARM-RT ARM	5/16/2000	1	PRIMARY	MATERIAL	AB-7988	87	
4-PASO	FRAME-LFT ARM-RT ARM	5/16/2000	1	PRIMARY	MATERIAL	AB-7988	88	
4-PASO	FRAME-LFT ARM-RT ARM	5/16/2000	1	PRIMARY	MATERIAL	AB-7988	89	
46-PASO	BATTERY CASE	8/14/2000	1	PRIMARY	MATERIAL	A-245-C	ASE	
61-PASO	CALC BUTTONS	8/15/2000	1	PRIMARY	MATERIAL	C1505		
1-PASO	RETAINER CLIP	5/11/2000	1	PRIMARY	MATERIAL	08092-10	02	
15-PASO	SHELL TOP/BOTTOM/LFT	5/15/2000	1	PRIMARY	MATERIAL	SHL-45-9	56A	
15-PASO	SHELL TOP/BOTTOM/LFT	5/15/2000	1	PRIMARY	MATERIAL	SHL-45-9	56B	
15-PASO	SHELL TOP/BOTTOM/LFT	5/15/2000	1	PRIMARY	MATERIAL	SHL-45-9	56L	
	VOLUME CUR	5/15/2000	1	PRIMARY		05543-10	01	

#### Vendor RFQ

From the Quote Inventory section the user can create a Vendor RFQ for items by selecting the Vendor

RFQ speed button . Please see Vendor RFQ for details.

#### Adding New Material to the Quote Inventory

If the item does not exist in either the Quote or Master Inventory, click on any item within the Quote Inventory list.

Next, click on File->Add Material or click on the 'Add' [+] button. The following screen will appear:

Modify Quote Inve	ntory Item	_		$\times$
Class	PL 🗸		<b>v</b> 0	ж
ltem #				
Rev			🗙 Car	ncel
Description				
Extended Description				
Unit	LBS V			
	RFQ Required			
	Inactive			
SPG				
Gauge				

- > The Class of the item will default to PL, but can be modified.
- Next, enter the Item #.
- > Enter a Rev number, if applicable.
- > Enter the Description of the item.
- > Enter an Extended Description if desired.
- Select the Unit (i.e. LBS, KG).
- > Enter the SPG (Specific Gravity), if applicable.
- Click on 'OK' to return to the Quote Inventory screen. The item that you created will be added to the Quote Inventory list only.

**Note:** When the quote is converted to a standard, the item will be added to the Master Inventory list. During the conversion process, the item may be reviewed and edited.

> Enter Qty / Price break for the material in the fields to the right.

#### Attaching the Material to a Quote

To attach a material to the quote

Highlight the item within the Master or Quote Inventory List.

- Double click on the item that is highlighted, or hold down the left mouse button and drag the item to the Quote Inventory list or directly to the Currently Assigned Material field.
- > **Options Menu:** Three options are available in the add material form.
- Confirm Every Transfer with this checked every time material is moved from one section to another
  a form will appear asking the user to confirm the move.
- Include Prices with Transfer with this checked when material is moved from one section to another the pricing will also transfer. (Does not apply to the AKA Pricing option, see below).
- Reset Screen sets the screen to the original size.

Changes can be made to the Qty / Price break field in the Quote Inventory before adding the material item to the Currently Assigned Material field or after the material has been assigned to the quote.

Note: Changes cannot be made to the Qty / Price break fields shown in the Master Inventory List.

#### Attaching the Material to a Quote Using AKA Pricing

The default quantity price breaks listed for the master Inventory items comes from the Buying section of the Buy/Sell Pricing tab in inventory. However, users can select the 'Propagate AKA Vendor/price breaks' button in the Quantity Price Breaks section to assign AKA pricing to the quote inventory and the

Currently Assigned Material \_\_\_\_\_. To use AKA pricing:

Quoting

- > Highlight the item to be associated to this quote in the Master Inventory section.
- > Select the AKA button and a form will appear listing the vendors and price breaks.

IQ AKA Ven	dor/price bre	aks				_				×
File Help										
							∣∢	◄		
							J,		Y	K
Vendo CAD1	Vendor Nam CANADIAN \	ie /ENDOR	Price/	1000 ]	Rev	PC	Item	Info		^
FRA00 POL00	FRANCIS PLA POLYMERLAI	ASTICS ND		]						
<									3	×
< 1								•	2	> ×
< Quantity	Price	Effective [	Date	Inact	ive D	ate	I⊲ Comr	<b>⊲</b> nent	>	> ×
<ul> <li>Quantity</li> <li>55</li> </ul>	Price 0.670000	Effective I 1/1/2018	Date	Inact	ive D	ate	I⊲ Comr AKA F	◀ nent PRICIN	s NG	×
< Quantity 55	Price 0.670000	Effective I 1/1/2018	Date	Inact	ive D	ate	Comr AKA F	◀ nent RICII	NG	× ×
<ul> <li>Quantity</li> <li>55</li> </ul>	Price 0.670000	Effective I 1/1/2018	Date	Inact	ive D	ate	I <b>⊲</b> Comr AKA F	◀ nent PRICII	NG	× × ×
< Quantity 55	Price 0.670000	Effective I 1/1/2018	Date	Inact	ive D	ate	I⊲ Comr AKA F	<b>⊲</b> nent RICIN	NG	

- > Highlight the desired record and select OK.
- This will populate the Currently Assigned Material section with the selected item and its AKA price breaks. If the selected item already exists in the Quote Inventory the pricing will be updated with the AKA pricing. If it does not exist in the Quote Inventory, the system will add a new record with the AKA pricing.

**Note**: AKA pricing will populate both sections regardless of the 'Include Prices w/ transfer Option.

- To clear the currently assigned material and add a different one, select the red clear (X) button.
- To exit, click on File->Exit or click on the [X] in the upper right hand corner of the screen. The selected material should now be displayed in the Material field.

Runner/Sprue	This is the combined weight of the runner and sprue. The runner and sprue information is used to calculate the material required for production.
	Note: Material requirements are calculated based on the total shot weight, which includes all cavities plus the runner and sprue.

Dry Time	<ul><li>This is the amount of time required to dry the raw material prior to production. If material is being dried away from the press or within the set up time, leave this field at zero (0) as the dry time will affect the production hours.</li><li>This information does not transfer to the BOM upon conversion. The dry time is on the raw material item in inventory and is used for informational purposes only.</li></ul>
Regrind%	This is the anticipated amount of regrind that will be used in the production. EnterpriselQ will assume regrind consumption up to this amount and calculate pricing based on the value of the regrind material. The Regrind% affects material required and also the material cost.

After all entries have been made, save the information and click on the 'Item Info' tab to continue building the quote.

### **Quote Item Information**

The next step in completing the quote is to enter in the item information.

Upon selecting the 'Item Details' tab the following screen will be displayed:



The first time this screen is accessed, it will not contain any data. The illustration above shows the Item Details screen after all entries have been made. The upper right portion of the screen provides information on the items to be produced and the lower right hand portion provides information on items to be consumed in the production process.

**Note:** If the quote you are viewing was received from Marketplace, the quote screen will display a blue banner at the top of the screen: "This quote was received from Dassault Systemes Marketplace."

Class	Select the Inventory Class for the item using the drop down list.
Item #	This is the item that will be produced ( <i>required field</i> ). The item number is an alphanumeric field up to 50 characters in length. A new item created here will exist only in the Quote Inventory until the quote is converted to a BOM.
Revision	The revision number for the item.
Weight	The weight of a <i>single</i> item ( <i>required field</i> ). If the weight of the item is not known, please see Weight Work Sheet for more information. DO NOT multiply the item weight by the number of cavities or include the runner and sprue weight. This information is collected on the main page of the quoting form. Also, DO NOT include any additional weight that an insert might add.
Std Cav Standard Multiplier	This is the standard cavities or multiplier, or the number of items produced per cycle ( <i>required field</i> ).
Description	The description or common name of the item ( <i>required field</i> ). This field can be up to 36 characters in length.
Ext Description	This provides an additional field of 100 characters in length for an extended description (optional field).

To begin making entries click on the **Add (+)** button and fill in the fields:

> Save your entries and the information will populate the left side of the screen.

#### **Quoting a Family Tool**

To add multiple items and create a quote for a family tool, click on the 'Add' [+] button and enter information on the other items to be produced. Each of these items will be displayed on the left hand side of the screen when the input is saved.

#### **Attached Materials Specification**

The **Quote** module supports unlimited components per individual item such as purchased components, other finished goods, or packaging. Any item that is maintained in the Quote or Master Inventory files may be attached.

#### **Attaching Components**

Attaching a component(s) is accomplished as follows:

- > Select the item that the component will be attached to in the items tree (left side of screen).
- "Right click" and select Add Component, or click on the Add Component button at the top of this screen. The following screen will appear:

[	Q Cu	rrent Materials, C	uote and	Master Inventory									-	-		>	<
F	ile C	ptions Reports	; Help														
									ŀ	4	•			-	s.	×	6
-	umont	h, Attached Mai	torials										ine De				
2		iy Attached Ma	Lerials	<b>D</b>			-			Q	uanu		nce bi	eaks			
	Class	Item #	Revision	Description	RFQ #	Unit	Ь	xt Description	^		è \$6	¥					
"	IN	000300		6035-2BR X .185 INS		EACH			-		Qty		Price		Price	Date	1
										Þ		1	1.2	70000	1/1/2	000	
												100	1.2	00000	1/1/2	000	
												500	1.1	50000	1/1/2	000	
									¥								¥
<									>	<						>	
Q	uote I	nventory List								Q	uanti	ity Pı	rice Bı	reaks			
A	A 🗉	1								Ę	հ 📑	. se	¥				
-	Class	- 14	Devision	Description		1.1	<b>F</b> .4	Description			<u></u>	*	Dellar		Deine	Data	
	Class	TAC 55422	Revision			Unit	EXt	Description			Qty		Price	70000	Price	Date	
	FG	TAS-55422	A .						- 1	ľ		100	1.2	00000	1/1/2	000	-
┢	IN	000300	A	6035-28P X 185 INS		FACH						500	1.2	50000	1/1/2	000	-
ľ	IN	1213-IN		MAGNETIC #2 CIRCLE	INSERT	FACH						500		50000	1/1/2		
	IN	EO BOTTLE		EO BOTTLE	in Servi	EACH			- 1								
						-			×								~
<									>	<						>	
Μ	laster	Inventory								Q	uanti	ity Pı	rice Bı	reaks			
đ	4									Ę	h 💈	\$ <b>6</b>	¥				
	Class	ltem #	Revision	Description		Ur	nit	Ext Description	~		Qty		Pric	e	Pri	ce Da	t ^
	AD	AD-1310PS-RED		CONCENTRATE 1310 R	ED	LB	s			Þ			1	4.0000	00 1/1	1/2000	)
	AD	AD-1320-YELLOW	1	CONCENTRATE 1320 Y	ELLOW	LB	s										
	AD	AD-1330-GREEN		CONCENTRATE 1330 G	REEN	LB	s										
	AD	AD-1340-ORANG	E	CONCENTRATE 1340 C	RANGE	LB	s										
	AD	AD-1350-PURPLE		CONCENTRATE 1350 P	URPLE	LB	S		_								
									, ĭ								Υ.
									-	-							

- > Select the item from either the Master Inventory list or the Quote Inventory list.
- "Double click" or "drag" the new item from the Quote Inventory List up to the Currently Attached Components list.

**Note**: In Quote inventory you can have the same item number with a different description, but in Master Inventory the item number must be unique. Therefore, if the item is added via the 'drag' method from the Master Inventory list, the record chosen will be the first matching Item # in the Quote Inventory List. This can lead to the wrong item being added if multiple Quotes were made for the same item number with different descriptions or pricing.

IQ Edit Attached Mate	rial	_	[		×
Class	IN 🗸			🗸 oi	к
ltem #	000300				
Rev			<b>&gt;</b>	Can	cel
Description	6035-2BR X .185 INS				
Extended Description		]			
Unit	EACH ~				
Quantity per Item	RFQ Required Inactive				
- Next, enter the Quantity per Item. The Quantity per Item is how many pieces will be consumed for each of the selected items manufactured. Press [OK] to return to the Quote Inventory screen.
- If the component is a manufactured item that will need to be quoted the user can select the RFQ Required box. The item will be marked in red indicating an RFQ is required. Once the RFQ for the item is created the item will be marked in black. This feature is used in the top down quoting method. This option will be grayed out on the 'Modify Quote Inventory Item' form. This is the form you use to add an item to the quote inventory. Once you drag the newly created item to the Currently Attached Materials section the box will be enabled on the 'Edit Attached Material' form. This will indicate that the item needs to be quoted, in other words it is something you manufacture that does not have a quote created for it yet.
- > Modify the **Quantity** and **Price Break** information for the component, if necessary.
- > Add Additional components, as necessary.
- To exit, click on File|Exit or click on the [X] in the upper right hand corner of the screen. The selected components will now be displayed in the visual view to the left under the item they are attached to and the details for the selected component will be displayed in the lower right hand portion of the screen.

Attached Ma	terials Op	eration Detai	ls User Field	ds Inventory	User Fields	
ltem #	SILO	SIL001				
Description	SILC	ONE SEALANT	Г			
Ext Descript	ion					
Quantity		1.0 🛷 🗙	:			
Scrap	I					
¥£¥ 📇 📑	•			+ -	🗸 x 💪	
Quantity	Price Break	Price Date E	ffective Date	Date Expires	^	
100	1.000000					
500	.750000					
					≡	
					~	
1					+	

- Each added component can have a Scrap percentage associated with it. Enter a value in the Scrap field for the attached item. The system will use this value to calculate the component cost. For example, if the Attached Component Scrap Calculation in Quotation parameters is set to 'Based on (1+Scrap)', and the quantity required per item is one and the scrap value is 10%, for a quote quantity of 10000, the system will calculate the component requirement as 11000 (10000 \* 1.10). If the parameter is set to 1/1-Scrap, the component requirement would be 11111.11. Where if the scrap value is zero the component requirement would be 10000. Then the cost is determined by multiplying the corresponding price break times the calculated component quantity.
- User Fields This tab includes the same user fields that are seen in the Attached Materials section of the BOM. (User Text 1-3 and User Numeric 1-3). When a quote is converted to a BOM, these user fields will be transferred over to the BOM's user fields as well.
- Inventory User Fields This tab will surface all Inventory user fields for attached materials that were brought in from master inventory. This will be read only and will only be available for items in master inventory.

**Note**: Under Options select **Include Prices w/ Transfer** if you want the prices to transfer from the master inventory. By default, the pricing comes from the buying price section for purchased items and the selling price section for manufactured items; or the standard cost if the 'Use Std Cost in Engineering Quote' option is checked in Master Inventory->Additional tab). If the 'Include Prices w/ Transfer' option is not checked, the user must enter in the pricing information for the quote inventory.

**Note:** Both active and inactive pricing from the Buy/Sell tab in inventory will appear in the Master Inventory section, however, only active pricing will be carried over when dragging material from Master Inventory to the Quote Inventory List or to the Currently Assigned Material. To only see active pricing in

the Master Inventory section select the Hide/Show Inactive button Inactive button Inactive button is also available in the Quote Inventory section to hide quote pricing that has been marked inactive.

**Note:** If the 'Use Master Inventory Std Cost for Component Pricing instead of Price Breaks' quote parameter is checked the standard cost will be displayed instead of the price breaks.

### Searching for Inventory Items

To search for items in the Quote Inventory, use the pick list speed button in the Quote Inventory section. Or click once in the Quote Inventory List section so the caption next to the field at the top of the screen reads 'Search Quote Inventory'. To search, begin typing in the Class and the Item Number of the item (do not leave a space between the Class and the Item Number) and the Quote Inventory List will hyperbrowse to the item.

From the Quote Inventory List section right click and select Where Used to see a list of RFQs that the material is associated to.

	IQ Where IN	.000300.6035-2BR X .185 IN	S is Used			_		×	<
Ľ					\$1 🗉 🏹	<b>K</b> 1	⊲ ⊲		
Γ	RFQ #	RFQ Description	Date	<b>RFQ</b> Revision	Source	Ite	m #		^
Þ	3-PASO	CLIP-HANDLE ATTACHED	5/16/2000	1	COMPONENT	50	054000		
	42-PASO	GATE BUTTONS	8/14/2000	1	COMPONENT	TA	S-55426		
	1-PASO	RETAINER CLIP	5/11/2000	1	COMPONENT	08	092-102	!	
									~
	c							>	
									:

# Vendor RFQ

The user can create a Vendor RFQ from the Quote Inventory section for items by selecting the Vendor RFQ speed button. Please see Vendor RFQ for details.

## Attaching Components to a Quote Using AKA Pricing

The default quantity price breaks listed for the master Inventory items comes from the Buying section of the Buy/Sell Pricing tab in inventory. However, users can select the 'Propagate AKA Vendor/price breaks'

button in the Quantity Price Breaks section to assign AKA pricing to the quote inventory and the Currently Attached Materials. To use AKA pricing:

- > Highlight the item to be associated to this quote in the Master Inventory section.
- Select the AKA button and a form will appear listing the vendors and price breaks. This form also includes a Unit column so users can easily see the unit of measure associated to the AKA record and the price breaks.

	Q AKA V	enc	lor/price bre	aks				_			)	×
F	ile Help	)										
									I	◄		
									] <b>Ļî</b>		$\mathbf{V}$	K
	Vendo		Vendor Nam	e	Price	/1000	Rev	PC	) Item	Info		^
	CAD1		CANADIAN \	/ENDOR								_
	FRA00		FRANCIS PLA	STICS								-
Þ	POL00		POLYMERLA	ND								-
												~
<											>	•
E	b								I	◄		ÞI
	Quantity		Price	Effective [	Date	Inact	ive Da	ate	Comr	nent		^
		55	0.670000	1/1/2018					АКА Р	RICI	١G	
												~
<											)	-
							Can	cel		C	ок	

- > Highlight the desired record and select OK.
- This will populate the Currently Attached Materials section with the selected item and its AKA price breaks. If the selected item already exists in the Quote Inventory the pricing will be updated with the AKA pricing. If it does not exist in the Quote Inventory, the system will add a new record with the AKA pricing.

**Note**: AKA pricing will populate both sections regardless of the 'Include Prices w/ transfer Option.

#### Adding Quote Inventory on the Fly

If the item does not exist in the Quote Inventory or Master Inventory, click on any item within the **Quote Inventory list**.

> Next, click on File|Add Material. The following screen will appear:

Modify Quote Inver	_		×	
Class	IN 🗸		<b>/</b> 0	Ж
ltem #			¥ 6.	
Rev			👗 Cai	ncei
Description				
Extended Description				
Unit	EACH 🗸			
	RFQ Required			
	Inactive			

- > Select the Class of the item (i.e. IN, PL, FG, or PK).
- Next, enter the Item #.
- > Enter a Rev number.
- > Enter the Description of the item.
- > Enter an Extended Description if desired.
- Select the Unit (i.e. EACH, LBS, KG, GAL, ROLL, FT).
- Click on [OK] to return to the Quote Inventory screen. The item that you created will be Added to the Quote Inventory list only. To Add the newly created item to the quote drag it up to the 'Currently Attached Materials' section. If the item is manufactured by the user, the RFQ Required option can be selected. Only select this option if the item will require a quote to be created.

**Note** When the quote is converted to a BOM, the item will be added to the Master Inventory list. During the conversion process, the item may be reviewed and edited.

> Enter Qty / Price break information for the item in the fields to the right.

# Attaching Packaging

The Quote module supports unlimited packaging items per individual item. To attach a packaging item, complete the following steps:

- > Select the item that the packaging will be attached to in the items tree (left side of screen).
- Right click and choose Add Packaging from the menu, or select the Add Pack button at the top of the screen. The following screen will appear:

	III Attached Packaging - $\Box$ X														
F	iie (	орнона перона	Theip											*	-
									ŀ		<			r x	G
C	Currently Attached Materials Quantity Price Breaks														
Г	Class	Item # Re	vision	Description	Unit	RFQ #		Ext Description	^		1 56	r			
Þ	AD	AD-1340-ORAN		ORANGE CONC	LBS										
											Qty		Price	Price L	Dat ^
										•		1	.300000	)	- 1
												500	.250000	,	_
	_								×						~
1								2	•	<					>
Q	Quantity Price Breaks														
6	HA 🗉	נ								Ę	b 🗟	\$E¥			
	Class	ltem #	Revision	Description		Unit	Ext Description	n	~	Í	Qty		Price	Price [	Dat 🔺
	PK	BG-6-BBAG		BUBBLE BAG 6"		EACH				Þ		1	.300000	<b>)</b>	
	PK	BX-05-CARTON		CARTON 05X05X05		EACH						500	.25000	נ	
Þ	PK	BX-14-CARTON		CARTON 14X14X14		EACH									
	PK	DIV-150		GAYLORD DIVIDER		EACH									
	PK	GAYLORD		GAYLORD BOX		EACH			$\checkmark$						~
4	C							2	•	<					>
P	laster	Inventory								Q	uantit	y Pric	e Breaks		
6	h									Ę	b 🖇	\$£¥			
Γ	Class	ltem #	Revision	Description		Unit	Ext Description	n	~		Otv		Price	Price D	Dat \land
b	PK	BG-20		20" POLY BAG, 6MIL		EACH				Þ	~ 7	1	.490000	8/1/20	)13
Ľ	PK	BG-6-BBAG		BUBBLE BAG 6"		EACH									
	PK	BG-6/9POLYBG		6X9, 30 MIL POLYBAG		EACH									
	PK	BG-810-POLYBG		8X10 POLYBAG		EACH									
	PK	BG-812-POLYBG		8X12 POLYBAG		EACH									
									×						_ ×
1								2	•	<					<b>&gt;</b>

- > Select the item from either the Master Inventory list or the Quote Inventory list.
- > Double click or drag the new item from the Quote Inventory List up to the *Currently Attached Packaging* list.

III Edit Attached Pack	Edit Attached Packaging						
Class	PK 🗸		🗸 oi	C			
Item #	BX-14-CARTON						
Rev			👗 Can	cel			
Description	CARTON 14X14X14						
Extended Description							
Unit	EACH						
	RFQ Required						
	Inactive						
Items per Packages	25.0						
Weight							

Enter the Items/Pack. The Items/Pack is how many of the manufactured items will be put into each packaging item.

**Note**: If entering a zero for items/pack (i.e. for a Non Material PK item), the user will receive a warning when calculating the quote stating, 'Attached Packaging Items per Part is zero.', with an Ignore and Cancel button. Select Ignore to continue calculating the quote, or Cancel to not calculate.

- > Enter the Weight and Label FMT. (Optional).
- If the item is manufactured by the user, the RFQ Required option can be selected. Only select this option if the item will require a quote to be created.
- > Press [OK] to return to the Attached Packaging screen.
- > Enter the Quantity and Price Break information for the packaging item.
- > Add Additional packaging, as necessary.

**Note**: When adding multiple packaging items, keep in mind when the RFQ is converted to a BOM the packaging sequence will populate based on the order they are attached to the quote. Sequence numbers can be edited in the BOM.

- To exit, click on File|Exit or click on the [X] in the upper right hand corner of the screen. The selected packaging items will now be displayed in the visual view to the left and the details for the selected packaging will be displayed in the lower right hand portion of the screen.
- Each added packaging item can have a Scrap percentage associated with it. Enter a value in the Scrap field for the attached packaging item. The system will use this value to calculate the packaging cost. For example, if the parts per packaging item is 500 item and the scrap value is 10%, for a quote quantity of 10000, the system will calculate the packaging requirement as 22 (10000/500 \* 1.10). Where if the scrap value is zero the packaging requirement would be 20. Then the cost is determined by multiplying the corresponding price break times the calculated packaging quantity.

### Searching for Inventory Items

Use the pick list or hyperbrowse method, in the same manner as described above, to search for items in the master inventory list.

Users can right click from the Master Inventory section to jump to inventory.

### Attaching Packaging to a Quote Using AKA Pricing

The default quantity price breaks listed for the master inventory items comes from the Buying section of the Buy/Sell Pricing tab in inventory. However, users can select the 'Propagate AKA Vendor/price breaks'

button in the Quantity Price Breaks section to assign AKA pricing to the quote inventory and the Currently Attached Materials. To use AKA pricing:

> Highlight the item to be associated to this quote in the Master Inventory section.

> Select the AKA button and a form will appear listing the vendors and price breaks.

III AKA Vendor/price breaks - 🗆 X								×		
File Help										
							◄	◄		Þ
							<b>Ļî</b>		Y	$\mathbb{X}$
Vendo	Vendor Nam	e	Price/	1000	Rev	PO	ltem	Info		^
CAD1	CANADIAN \	/ENDOR								
FRA00	FRANCIS PLA	STICS								
POL00	POLYMERLA	ND								
										~
<									>	
							14			
电										ÞI
Quantity	Price	Effective [	Date	Inact	ive Da	te	Comr	nent		•
Quantity	Price 0.670000	Effective [ 1/1/2018	Date	Inact	ive Da	te	Comr AKA F	nent PRICIN	∎ IG	•
Quantity	Price 0.670000	Effective I 1/1/2018	Date	Inact	ive Da	te	Comr AKA F	nent RICIN	IG	<b>•</b>
Quantity 55	Price 0.670000	Effective I 1/1/2018	Date	Inact	ive Da	te	Comr AKA F	nent RICIN	IG	^
Quantity	Price 0.670000	Effective I 1/1/2018	Date	Inact	ive Da	te (	Comr AKA F	nent RICIN	١G	►
Quantity 55	Price 0.670000	Effective I 1/1/2018	Date	Inact	ive Da	te	Comr AKA F	nent RICIN	NG >	<ul> <li></li> <li></li></ul>

- > Highlight the desired record and select OK.
- This will populate the Currently Attached Materials section with the selected item and its AKA price breaks. If the selected item already exists in the Quote Inventory the pricing will be updated with the AKA pricing. If it does not exist in the Quote Inventory, the system will add a new record with the AKA pricing.

**Note**: AKA pricing will populate both sections regardless of the 'Include Prices w/ transfer Option.

### Adding Packaging Inventory on the Fly

If the item does not exist in the Quote Inventory or the Master Inventory, click on any item within the Quote Inventory list.

> Next, click on Inventory Add Material. The following screen will appear:

IQ Modify Quote Inve	—		×	
Class	PK 🗸		<b>v</b> 0	ж
ltem #				
Rev			👗 Cai	ncel
Description				
Extended Description				
Unit	EACH ~			
	RFQ Required			
	Inactive			

- > The Class will default to (PK).
- > Next, enter the Item #.
- Enter a Rev number.
- > Enter the Description of the item.
- > Enter an Extended Description if desired.
- Select the Unit (i.e. EACH, FT).
- Click on [OK] to return to the Quote Inventory screen. The item that you created will be Added to the Quote Inventory list only. To Add the newly created item to the quote drag it up to the 'Currently Attached Materials' section. If the item is manufactured by the user the RFQ Required option can be selected. Only select this option if the item will require a quote to be created.

**Note:** When the quote is converted to a BOM, the item will be added to the Master Inventory list. During the conversion process, the item may be reviewed and edited.

> Enter Qty / Price break information for the item in the fields to the right.

### Editing a Packaging Item or Component

To **Edit** an attached packaging item or component:

- > Highlight the attached component or packaging item.
- Under 'Attached Material Specifications' (lower right portion of the screen), change the Quantity and/or Quantity and Price breaks.

The user can also Edit the item by highlighting the item/component and selecting Change Material from the submenu that will appear.

> Make sure to SAVE the changes when finished.

### Attaching Operations

Attaching operations is accomplished in a similar manner as attaching components or packaging items. This feature is used to attach operations to the quote versus creating a generic quote. By adding the operation here the assumption is made that it will be done within the cycle time and the operation does not change the part number. If the part number changes due to the operation (i.e. hot stamping a logo) or the operation time needs to be scheduled a generic quote should be created with the manufactured item attached as a component.

To attach an operation, complete the following steps:

> Select the item that the operation will be attached to.

- "Right Click" and choose Add Operation from the menu or click on the Add Oper button at the top of the screen.
- The Select from Std Oper/ Routing pick list will appear. Use the Search or Sort function to locate an existing Operation number within the pick list or create a new operation "on the fly". If you click on new the following screen will appear:

🔟 Std Oper/Routing - Quick Add 🛛 — 🗆 🗙							
File Reports Help							
			1				
Operation # 230 Class OP Description							
Operation Materials Documents							
Std Rate							
	ОК	Ca	incel				

Use the field listing below for assistance in filling in each of the fields on this screen.

Operation #	This number is automatically populated by the system. It can be edited but if this number is manually changed users could potentially end up receiving a unique constraint error if the number is already used.
Class	Defaults to OP and cannot be changed.
Description	25 alpha-numeric description of the operation.
Operation Info	Std Rate: The rate used for calculating the labor or overhead costs associated with the operation.
Materials	Attach materials from inventory associated with the operation by clicking in the item # field to get an inventory drop down menu. Specify the number of parts per item and verify the price break information.
Documents	Add any Internal or External documents related to the specific operation.

# **Operation Details**

From the Operation Details tab on the Item Details tab in Quoting establish the cost of the operation. Select the UOM (Sec, Min, Hour, Day) from the drop down and then enter the cycle time. The system will multiply the Std Rate defined on the operation times the Hours/Item to calculate the standard cost per item. For example, if the time required is 15 seconds at a rate per hour of 25, the system will calculate the cost as 15/3600 \* 25 = 0.104167. This information will flow to the Operation Cost row on the Calculations tab.

### Deleting a Packaging Item, Component or Operation

To Delete a packaging item or component from the list:

- > Highlight the item to delete and "right click."
- Select Delete Item from the submenu. The item will then be removed. If there are any other packaging items underneath the one deleted, they should move up in place of the one that was removed.
- > To delete an operation, select **Delete Operation** from the submenu.

**Note**: Make sure that the cursor is sitting on the operation that is to be deleted. Failure to do this could result in deletion of the wrong item.

## Qty / Price Break

The Quantity and Price Breaks are the prices the system will use to calculate the cost and price of the quoted item. These price breaks are only used in the Quote module.

¥E¥ 📴 📑	•		•	-	Ý	×	G
Quantity	Price Break	Price Date	Effective Date	Date	Expir	es	^
1	.300000						=
500	.250000						
							$\sim$
<						>	

The user can change the price breaks before calculating the quote.

- > To change the quantity, place the cursor in the **Qty** field.
- Type in the quantity and use the [Tab] key to move to the next column. Enter in each Price Break. The default Qty / Price break information may be loaded by selecting that function on the Navigator bar at the bottom of this section.
- > To view the price breaks in another currency, click on the FX Rates button and choose the currency from the drop down list on the pop up form.
- Save your changes.

# **Extra Charges**

To enter extra charges relating to the item being quoted on:

Select the Extra Charges, Commission tab at the bottom of the screen. The following screen will appear:

INJECTION Quote 1-PASO - RETAINER CLIP	– 🗆 X					
File Options Miscellaneous Reports Help						
AA 🗃	🧏 IA A 🕨 🖬 🕈 = 🗸 X 🕅					
General Quote Values Item Details Calculations						
Extra Charges Use these user-defined extra charges for shipping, tool maintenance, color changes, etc.	Commissions Commission Specs None Total Price					
#     Description     Total     Per     Cost Break       Image: Second state stat	Commission Calculation Price + (Price * Commission) Price / (1 - Commission) Commission % 8.00					
General Quote Extra Charges, Commission Auxiliary Equipment	Documents User Defined Form					

There are unlimited fields for any additional charges not accounted for in the normal quote input screens. Examples of additional charges may be Tool Maintenance, Tool Amortization, Special Setups, Color Changes, Freight Charges, etc.

The extra charges can be entered manually from this screen or defaults can be set up in Rates and Parameters for users to select from. To select a default extra charge click on the Description field and then select the ellipsis button. This will open the pick list of Extra Charges created in Rates and Parameters. To enter an extra charge manually type the information in the fields described below.

Note: A sequence # is required. If the sequence number is left null, the user will be prompted with a popup warning.

Amortize Cost Over Each Quantity	Divides the <b>Total</b> by each quoted quantity and applies the cost directly to the per item price.
	<b>Example</b> : <b>Total</b> = \$500, <b>Per</b> set at zero, and <b>Cost Break</b> at N. Applies a \$500 charge to each price break and divides the \$500 by the Quote Quantity and adds that to the item price.
	For 5000 items, charge is \$0.10 per item
Add a Cost for Every X Number of	Divides the <b>Total Amount</b> by the <b>Per</b> Quantity and adds that amount to the per item price.
Items Produced, Pro-rated	Example: Total = \$250, Per set at 10000, and Cost Break at N. Applies a \$0.025 charge to the item price. (250/10000) For 5000 items, charge is \$125 For 125000 items, charge is \$3,125
Add a Cost for Every X Number of Items, Not Pro-rated	Divides the Quote Quantity by the <b>Per</b> quantity, rounds the number <b>UP</b> to the next whole number, multiplies that whole number by the <b>Total Amount</b> , divides this number by the Quote Quantity, and adds that amount to the per item price.
	Examples: Total = \$250, Per set at 10000, and Cost Break at Y. For 5000 items, total additional charge is \$250, per item charge is \$0.05 For 125000 items, total additional charge is \$3250, per item charge is \$0.026

These charges can be controlled in three different ways:

**NOTE**: The Total field may be entered up to a four decimal precision.

# Commissions

# **Adding Commissions**

Sales commissions will be added into the final item price on either the Total Price or the Gross Margin.

- > Select Total Price or Gross Margin by clicking on the radio button next to the field.
- Choose how the commission should be calculated: price + (price x commission) or price/(1-commission).
- > Type in a Commission percentage. The value entered can be up to a two decimal precision.
- To save any entries made within this screen, click on the check mark located on the Navigator bar.

# **Commission Examples**

The chart below displays examples of the commission options using the following information:

TOTAL = 5000

COMMISSION % = 5%

QUOTE QTY - 1000

### TOTAL PROFIT = 4000

OPTION	CALCULATION	COMMISSION
		per part
TOTAL PRICE &	(TOTAL /QUOTE QTY) X COMMISSION %	.250
PRICE + (PRICE X	(5000/1000) x .05	
COMM %)	5 x .05	
TOTAL PRICE &	(TOTAL / 1 - COMMISSION %) - TOTAL /	.263
PRICE / (1-	QUOTE QTY	
COMMISSION)	((5000/.95) - 5000)/1000	
	(5263.159 - 5000)/1000	
	263.159/1000	
GROSS MARGIN &	(TOTAL PROFIT / QUOTE QTY) x COMMISSION	.200
PRICE + (PRICE X	%	
COMM %).	4000/1000 X .05	
	4 X .05	

OPTION	CALCULATION	COMMISSION
		per part
GROSS MARGIN &	((TOTAL PROFIT/(1 - COMMISSION %)) -	.2105
PRICE / (1-	TOTAL PROFIT) / QUOTE QTY	
COMMISSION)	(4000 / 105) - 4000)) / 1000	
	(4210.526 - 4000)/1000	
	210.526/1000	

# **Assigning Auxiliary Equipment**

Adding auxiliary equipment to a quote can affect the hourly machine rate and thus the production cost. Access the Auxiliary Equipment screen by clicking on the tab labeled **Auxiliary Equipment** on the bottom of the screen.

# **Create Auxiliary Equipment**

Prior to assigning Auxiliary Equipment to a quote, the equipment must be added to the Auxiliary Equipment list. To add equipment to the list:

Select the Auxiliary Equipment tab. Click on the Add (+) button in the middle right of the form and enter the information in the fields. The auxiliary equipment is EPlant specific.

Description	The description of the auxiliary equipment
Rate	The hourly charge rate for the equipment. This rate will be added to the machine rate and included in production costs.
How Many	How many of these particular items are available on the floor. If the quote is converted to a BOM, this information is used to determine scheduling conflicts.

# Assigning Auxiliary Equipment

To assign auxiliary equipment to a quote:

> At the bottom of the General Quote Values screen, select the Auxiliary Equipment tab. The following screen will appear:

INJECTION Quote 1-PASO - RETAINER CLIP							_			Х
File Options Miscellaneous Reports Help										
AA EE			¥3 14	• •				- 1	×	୯
General Quote Values Item Details Calculations										
Auxiliary Equipment Assigned to this Quote			Auxiliary Equipme	nt Pi	ck Lis	it				
14 4 1> 14 4 1> 14 1		ſ	ъ 🔆 🛛	⊲			÷ –	÷	×	۴
Description Rate How Many		Ī					្រ រុវ		Y	<b>K</b>
		ſ	Description	Rate		Hov	v Many	EPlant	ID	^
			CHILLER		4		2		1	
	4		CO-EXTRUDER				4		1	
			CONVEYOR		8		7		1	
	-		DRYER		- 4		5		1	
			GANG DRILL PRE		5		2		1	
			GRINDER		- 4		6		1	
			HEATER		- 4		5		1	
			LG ROBOT		15		1		1	
			PULLER / CUTTER				4		1	
			PUNCH PRESS				4		1	
			SM ROBOT		10		2		1	
			WINDER		3		1		1	
Total Center Rate: 30 General Quote Extra Charges, Commission Aux	iliary	E	quipment Docume	ents	User	Defir	ned Form	n		

The items entered in the Auxiliary Equipment table will be shown on the right side of the screen. This equipment is filtered based on the EPlant you are logged into. The equipment list can be sorted by Description or EPlant by clicking on the header for the field to sort on.

The equipment assigned to the specific quote will be shown on the left side of the screen.

To assign equipment to the Quote, highlight the desired piece of equipment and click on the arrow over key or drag and drop the equipment. Type in how many of each item should be used in the quote.

**NOTE**: The cost(s) for the Auxiliary Equipment assigned to the quote are added to the Total Center Rate displayed at the bottom of the Auxiliary Equipment screen.

# Deleting Items from the Auxiliary Pick list

To delete an item, highlight it on the left side and click the arrow back key  $\square$ . This will delete the item from the list. When finished editing, **Save** the changes before returning to the main quote entry screen.

# **Quote Documents**

An **unlimited** number of documents can be attached to the quote. Each quote may have its own set of documents. **EnterpriselQ** supports a basic word processor to create these documents (notes) or the user can link existing documents. There are two sections to this screen which are discussed briefly on the following pages.

**NOTE**: Both Internal and External documents can be printed with the Request for Quote (RFQ).

INJECTION Quote 1-PASO - RETAIN	IER CLIP ts Help					_		×
A =		¥.	I <b>a</b> •			+ -	Ś	× (*
General Quote Values Item Details Ca	lculations							
Internal External Email Corresponde	ence							
4							+ <	
Seq Description Prin	nt With							
<	>							
General Quote Extra Charges, Commis	sion Auxiliary Eq	uipment Docu	uments	User D	Define	d Form		

Select the **Documents** tab at the bottom of the screen. The following screen will appear:

## **Internal Documents**

This option allows an unlimited amount of miscellaneous notes to be attached to the quote. The notes are stored in the Oracle database and can be accessed at all times from the program. The internal documents section acts like a word processor--the user can *add*, *edit*, *delete* or *print* documents from this screen.

## **Creating Internal Documents**

To create an internal document:

> Access the documents screen and click on the Add button. The following screen will appear:

l	×										
Create New Document  Pick Existing Document  Edit Document Contents											
Change Description / Sequence											
None	~										
ОК	Cancel										
	ocument Document nt Contents ription / Sequence 1 None										

- > Select the **Create New Doc** radio button, and fill in the document description.
- Select whether to print the document with the RFQ by selecting from the arrow down list next to the Print with field.
- > Click on **[OK]** and the following screen will appear.

IQ	Docum	nent - Er	nterpr	iselQ														_		×
File	Edit	Insert	For	mat	То	ols	Help													
	<u>i</u>	3	9	6	¥	þ	2	æ	ab •ac	ABC										
Seg	be UI			~	10	•	B	Z	U	Ē	Ē	≣	:=	ײ	ŧ	•	8	2		
<u>z</u> —			+		-			-			-				-+		-		-	 
	Cł	aracter	Cour	nt: 0 [(	0]			Ln	1 (	Col 2			Mod	ified						

This screen is a word processor and document text may be entered by typing the information in or may be copied and pasted in from other sources. Images may be imported by selecting **File|Insert File** from the menu. All changes must be saved prior to exiting from the word processor. To exit, click on the **[X]** in the upper right hand corner.

# Linking Existing Internal Documents

To link an existing internal document to the quote select the **Pick Existing Doc** radio button.

Click on OK and a pick list of the existing internal documents linked to the quote module will appear. Select the document to be linked and click OK. The document will show in the list of internal documents.

## **Editing Internal Documents**

To edit an existing internal document, access the documents screen and select the **Edit Doc Contents** radio button.

Click on **OK** and the word processor will open. The internal document can then be edited. All quotes that have the specific document linked to them will then reflect the changes made here.

### **External Documents**

This section allows the user to link or open documents created in different applications such as spreadsheet, word processing, CAD, etc. and map the path to these documents so that anyone can access them. To open an external document, the program used to create the external document must be installed on the work station.

To CREATE a new external document link:

- > Click on the Add [+] key from the Navigator bar.
- Locate the document on the computer or the network, and click on [Open] when finished. The File Name field will now contain the path or location of the document that is being attached. If the user has the EnterpriseIQ Document Control module the user will first select the Library and then the specific document in that library to be attached rather than the path.
- If this document is to be printed with the Request for Quote (RFQ), select RFQ from the arrow down list under the Print with column. The attached external document will print when the RFQ is printed using the speed button, but will not print when the RFQ is selected from the Reports menu.

# **Additional Options:**

- Search The External Documents tab in all modules includes the Search button to access the pick list for easier navigation through multiple documents.
- Filter Dataset Each External Documents tab within the modules will have a Filter Dataset button to enable users to filter the attached external documents by a field within the library, including the user defined fields. Select the filter speed button and enter the filter criteria in the pop up form.

Quoting

- Launch Document Control This will open the document control module to the library and document for the highlighted record.
- Print This option will open and print the document.
- Scan A document can be scanned to a library by selecting the Scan button on the External Documents tab. The Scan Document form will appear. Select the Library from the drop down list and enter the additional details such as file name, color and source.

To OPEN the document:

- Double-click on the file name, or select the document and right click and select [Execute] from the submenu. The program will open both the application the document was created in as well as the document itself. When finished viewing the document, click on [Exit].
- > When finished viewing the document, click on [Exit].

## **Email Correspondence**

- In addition to documents there is an Email Correspondence tab. From this tab users can to attach Email correspondence related to the RFQ. To add an Email simply drag and drop it from Outlook or other email programs into the form. The Received Date will fill in based on the email's received date and time. A Received Date box surfaces if the system is unable to determine the date (such as: the Received and Sent dates differ, unclear binary data, or older data, etc.). Users are asked to provide the Received Date by selecting the correct date from the calendar. The From and Subject fields will also automatically populate with the information from the email. The date, from, and subject fields cannot be edited. A comment can be entered by double clicking the field. Enter the comment in the pop up box to further describe the email correspondence.
- > There are three ways to access the Email once associated to the RFQ:
- Double click on either the Received, From, or Subject fields.
- Right click and select View email.
- Or select the View email button.
- Note: If the email has attachments, or multiple attachments, the total attachment size cannot be more than 4GB. The size allowance might further be limited by the chosen email program used. In order to view emails that have attachments, special formatting (e.g. stationary), or images embedded in the body of the email, the user must go into BDE Administrator and set the BLOB SIZE to 1000 for the database they are using (i.e. IQORA).

See the Documents section for more information.

# **User Defined Form in Quotations**

INJECTION Quote 1-PASO - RETAINER	CLIP		— C	ı ×
File Options Miscellaneous Reports	Help			
AA 🗉	و	🕺 🗖 🔺	▶ <b>▶ <del>•</del> = ·</b>	/ × C
General Quote Values Item Details Calcul	ations			
User-Defined Form				
<b>K</b>			1	× C
Groupbox1				]
Tooling Prices				
Parent: QUOTE [QUOTE]	Attribute: INJECTION	Pa	arent ID: 7	
General Quote Extra Charges, Commission	Auxiliary Equipment	Documents	User-Defined Form	1

The User Defined Form allows the user to add new fields to a blank, user defined table. A maximum of 64 new descriptive fields can be established. These fields can then be used in customized reports and can be useful when creating a quote letter as it allows for different verbiage for different situations. The user fields will hold up to 250 characters. This is also available from the Options menu. For more information on setting up the user defined form please see User Defined Forms in the Setup manual.

Note: Security for this User Defined Form can be granted from the User Defined Form accessed from the Options menu in the quote or from the User Defined Form tab.

# **Generic Manufacturing Type Quotes**

The Generic manufacturing type is used to quote product that is not done using a molding process such as injection or extrusion. Examples of generic manufacturing are sonic welding, assembly, pad printing, etc. Quoting a product using the Generic Manufacturing type is basically identical to creating an Injection quote. The main difference is there is no raw material required, the work center used is a generic type, and on the items detail tab it is Standard Multiplier instead of cavities.

Below is an example of the General Quote Values Tab for a Generic Quote:

GENERIC Quote 5-P	PASO - SUN (	GLASS ASSEM	BLY					_		×
File Options Miscell	laneous Re	ports Help								
A 🗉					₹{} [4]			▶ ♦	- 🗸	× C
General Quote Values	ltem Details	Calculations								
Quote Information				General Q	uote Valu	les				_
ID	37		~	Manufact	uring Type	e	GENE	ERIC MFG		
RFQ #	5-PASO			Cell			PASC	GENERIC	~	
Description	SUN GLASS	ASSEMBLY							-	
Revision	1			Operators	i -			•••		
Customer	ABCO	- 89		Cycle Time	2			8		
Contact								1		
<b>⊡Quote Date</b>	5/16/2000			Units/Cyci	e			1		
Expires	6/15/2000			Work Cen	ter		ASSE	MBLY	~	44
Due Date										1
Date Out				Scrap %				5.00		
Follow-Up Date				Efficiency	Factor			98		
Won Date				Combox Do				15.00		
Pricing Effective				Center Ra	te			15.00		
				Fixed Mac	hine Rate					
				Setup Hou	ure			17.5		
€Status				Setup not			L			
User Quote Status		-								
Currency										
Calculated On	3/8/2002 2:0	07:33 PM								
RFQ Control #	IQMS-3/8/0	2-2:07:33 PM								
Converted	0									
EPlant	PASO PLANT	Γ								
CRM Opportunity #										
Note										
Additional Note			•							
General Quote Extra C	Charges, Com	mission Aux	iliaŋ	y Equipment	Docume	nts l	Jser-D	efined For	m	

All of the fields are the same as on an injection quote except there is no material field and the fields associated with material such as dry time.

# Assembly Mfg Type

The Assembly manufacturing type (not ASSY types) also use a similar form as above.

Note: The Cycle time for the Assembly Mfg Type in the estimating module is in seconds where in BOMs it is in hours. When converting an Assembly manufacturing type quote to a BOM the system will convert the cycle time to hours.

# Outsource Manufacturing Type Quotes

Outsource manufacturing quotes are used to quote a process that is not done in house. These quotes use the vendor's costs in the Quantity Breaks table on the Item Details screen. Below is an example of an Outsource Quote form:

OUTSOURCE Quote	67-PASO - CALCULATOR	R BL	רדנ	FON PP						_			×
AA 🖃					¥8	I	•			÷	- 1	Х	: C
General Quote Values	Item Details Calculation	s											
Quote Information				- General Q	uote \	/alues	_						
ID	84	~	4	Manufactu	uring 1	Type		OUT	SOU	RCED	)		
RFQ #	67-PASO			Cell				PAS	o ov				$\sim$
Description	CALCULATOR BUTTON PP			Cen									-
Revision	1			Days/K					2	2.5			
Customer	MAGNOLIA MFG. 🔻 🏘	Ň		Units/Cycl	e					1			
Contact	••	•							at Da	tio			
<b>_Quote Date</b>	8/15/2000							- · ·					
Expires	9/14/2000												
Due Date				Vandar				GE					~
Date Out				venuor									×
Follow-Up Date				Scrap %					2.0	00			
Won Date													
Pricing Effective													
User Quote Status													
Currency													
Calculated On	8/15/2000 1:10:01 PM												
RFQ Control #	IQMS-10/22/2001-11:08:2	9											
Converted	0 .	•											
EPlant	PASO PLANT												
CRM Opportunity #	•	•											
Note													
Additional Note													
General Quote Extra C	harges, Commission Au	xilia	ary	Equipment	Docu	ment	s l	Jser D	efine	ed Fo	rm		

Most of the fields are the same as on a Generic quote with the exception of cycles. Instead of cycles the system uses days per thousand or a flat number of days.

- Days/K The rate of production for an outsource operation is handled with the Days per 1000 parts field entry unless the Flat Ratio is checked. This field is used to generate the approximate time the operation will consume.
- Flat Ratio Check this box if the rate of production is based on the number of days and not days per 1000 parts. Once checked, enter the number of production days in the preceding Days field to complete this operation.

An outsource quote utilizes a vendor set up as a work center and the costs come from the Quantity Price

Breaks set up on the Item Details tab. Click on the indication and the following form will appear.

IQ C1500-E	B-PP CALC	BUTTON SET-PA	AD PRINTED - Price Break	s —	· 🗆	×
			⊴	⊳I 🛉		× (*
Quantity	Price	Date	Date Effective	Expirati	on Date	
*						

To enter in price breaks click on the ADD (+) button and enter as many price breaks as desired.

Note: For the Outsource MFG Type (or a user defined MFG Type that defaults to Outsource), if the Variable rate is filled in with 'Labor Based Rate' option selected (MFG Types->Labor/Overhead tab), this will be included in the calculation of production costs in Outsource quotes.

# **Extrusion Manufacturing Type Quotes**

There are three extrusion manufacturing types available in the system: Extrusion, Extrusion2, and Extrusion3. Quoting a product using one of the Extrusion Manufacturing types is basically identical to creating an Injection quote. The fields will vary slightly based on the type. The chart below describes some of the differences:

Туре	ltem	BOM Info.	Wor k Cen ter	Typical UOM
EXT	Part Length	Feet/Lb and Lbs/Hr; RT Signal Rate recommended	Line Size	Feet

EXT2	Part Weight	Lbs/Hr; RT Signal Rate required	Cen ter Typ e	Lbs.
EXT3	Part Weight	Lbs/Hr; No RT Signal rate	Cen ter Typ e	Eaches

# **Pipe Extrusion Worksheet**

For the EXT MFG Type there is an option on the general tab of the quote called Pipe Extrusion Worksheet. Select the button next to the Feet/Lb field and enter in the diameter and linespeed details in the pop up form.

III Pipe Extrusion Worksh	eet		—		$\times$
OD (in) or (mm)					
ID (in) or (mm)					
Linespeed (f/min) or (m/					
SPG	0				
		ОК		Cancel	

If a material is attached the system will populate the SPG field with the SPG associated to the material in inventory, or it can be entered manually.

# Calculations:

Ft / Lb (Sets\_disp) = 1000/((OD \* OD - ID \* ID) \* 3.14159 / 4 \* SPG)

Lbs / Hr (Cycletm\_disp) = (OD \* OD - ID \* ID ) \* 3.14159 / 4 \* SPG \* line\_speed \* 60/1000

# Thermoform and TFORM2 Manufacturing Type Quotes

Creating a quote for a Thermoforming manufacturing type is essentially the same process as for all quotes. The differences mostly lie in the material information. The fields that differ from an Injection quote are discussed below:

Material/Regrind	
Material	This field is used for selecting the material that will be used for this job. This section has two fields, one will list the material item number and the other will fill in with the description. The user can modify the quote inventory item by selecting the Edit Material button next to the material description field this will pop up a form to edit fields such as SPG and Gauge.
Gauge	The gauge of the raw material. This will fill in based on the gauge associated to the attached material.
	This field can be changed for the specific quote without affecting the default gauge associated to the raw material.
SPG	The specific gravity of the raw material. This populates automatically based on the SPG associated to the selected item.
Tool Width	The width of the tool. This is entered on the General tab for THERMOFORM.
	For TFORM2 this value comes from the specified material. If a material has been brought over from master inventory it will bring the information over that was entered in the UOM Conversion Factors form in Master Inventory. If creating a new material or editing an existing one, the width field will display on the add and edit forms in the Materials Used in Quote screen. This field can also be edited by selecting the Edit Material button next to the material description field.
	(Note: This field is not available from Quote Inventory (Miscellaneous menu).
Rail	Optional. The rail material on the sides used to align the sheet to the tool.
	(Not applicable to TFORM2).
Tool Length	The length of the tool. This is entered on the General tab for THERMOFORM.
	For TFORM2 this value comes from the specified material. If a material has been brought over from master inventory it will bring the information over that was entered in the UOM Conversion Factors form in Master Inventory. If creating a new material or editing an existing one, the length field will display on the add and edit forms in the Materials Used in Quote screen. This field can also be edited by selecting the Edit Material button next to the material description field.
	(Note: This field is not available from Quote Inventory (Miscellaneous menu).
Clamp	Optional. The clamp material on the end used to align the sheet to the tool.
	(Not applicable to TFORM2).

Sheet Weight	Thermoform: Sheet Weight = (Width +Rail) x (Length + Clamp) x SPG x Gauge x .0361.
	(Multiplied by 453.59237 if the UOM is in grams).
	<b>TFORM2</b> : Sheet Weight = Width x Length x SPG x Gauge x .0361.
	(Multiplied by 453.59237 if the UOM is in grams).

# Item Details Tab->Part Information

Standard Up	The Standard Up is the number of items produced during the cycle.

Weight	Enter the weight for a single item. The weight will be shown in either pounds, grams or ounces. Do not multiply the weight by the number of ups.				
	The weight can be calculated using the Thermoform Weight Worksheet. Select the Weight Worksheet button next to the Weight field and the following form will appear:				
	🔟 Thermoform Weight WorkSheet — 🗆 🗙				
	SPG/Volume				
	SPG 1.05				
	Volume 3 1Cu. In)				
	Gauge 0.06				
	Dimensions				
	Length Width				
	10 5				
	Space Trim to Trim 0.025 .025				
	Space at Edges .2 .1				
	Results - 1 ups, 10.4 x 5.2				
	No. Up Length Width				
	1 10.400 5.200				
	2 20.425 10.225				
	4 40.475 20.275				
	4 40.475 20.275 0				
	OK Cancel				
	Enter the SPG Gauge Length Width and other applicable information. The volume can be				
	calculated by the system by clicking on the calculate button next to the volume field. It is				
	Volume = Length x width x Gauge				
	Once the volume is calculated and the SPG is entered the system can determine the weight in grams of the part. The calculation is:				
	Weight = (Volume x SPG x .0361) x 453.59				
	The Results in the lower section of the worksheet are calculated using the entered dimensions.				
	For one Up:				
	Length = Length + (Space at Edges x 2)				
	Width = Width + (Space at Edges x 2)				
	For additional Ups:				
	Length = (Length x No. Ups) + (Space Trim to Trim x (No. Ups -1)) + (Space at Edges x 2)				
	Width = Width x No. Ups) + (Space Trim to Trim x (No. Ups -1)) + (Space at Edges x 2				

	Highlight the length and width to be used for the quote. The information will display in blue in the white box. Press OK and the system will update the Tool Length and Tool Width on the General Quote Values tab and the Std Up value in the Part Information section on the Item Details tab.
Costing Weight	By default the costing weight equals the Weight + By-product. If the 'Exclude By-product' option on the Calculations tab is checked then the Sheet Weight = Weight. Costing Weight is used to determine material costs.
Sheet Weight	The calculated Sheet Weight from the General Quote Values tab.
Skeleton Weight	Skeleton Weight = Sheet Weight - (Part Weight * Up)
--------------------	---
Attached Materials	
By Product	To add a By Product select the speed button next to the Skeleton Weight field. The Assign By Product form will appear to choose from or select File->Add to create a new By Product quote inventory item. The Modify Quote Inventory form will appear to enter the By Product Item Number, Description, Rev, unit of measure, etc. The Class defaults to PL.
	If a By Product item is created based on the Skeleton Weight the By Product box will be checked. It cannot be manually checked or unchecked.
	Note: The value of the skeleton (By Product) does not impact the cost/price of the manufactured item. However, if the quote is converted to a BOM, during Production Reporting both items will be dispositioned into inventory.
Parts Per	The parts per for the By Product is the skeleton weight divided by the number of standard ups converted to the selected unit of measure. This will be a negative value so that it is put into inventory during dispositions.

### Creating a Quote from the Top Level down

To create a quote starting at the top level manufactured item the user will create the highest level quote then work their way down to the lowest level. First determine the last step the item will go through and create a quote for that item selecting the correct manufacturing type.

For example: An item is produced that first is injection molded then it is assembled with another item, and finally it is pad printed as the finished good. In this scenario we have three steps, molding, assembly, and pad printing. The first quote created will be for the Pad Printing operation.

Create the quote for the pad printed item. On the Item Details tab select Add Component and create a new item in the quote inventory for the assembled item by selecting the Add (+) button and entering the item details on the 'Modify Quote Inventory Item' form:

Modify Quote Inve	ntory Item	_		×
Class	WP 🗸		<b>/</b> c	ж
Item #	COMP B-TD			
Rev			🗙 Cai	ncel
Description	COMP B-TD			
Extended Description				
Unit	EACH ~			
	RFQ Required			
	Inactive			

This item will now exist in the Quote Inventory. Next, select the newly created item and drag it to the 'Currently Attached Materials' section and the 'Edit Attached Material' box will display:

IQ Edit Attached Mate	erial	_		Х
Class	WP		<b>√</b> o	ĸ
ltem #	COMP B-TD			
Rev			 👗 Can	cel
Description	COMP B-TD			
Extended Description				
Unit	EAGH ~			
Quantity per Item	RFQ Required Inactive			

Enter the 'Qty per Item' and be sure to check the 'RFQ Required' box. This will mark the item in red indicating a quote must be created for the item. Add any additional requirements such as packaging.

GENERIC Quote 109-PASO -      File Options Miscellaneous Reports Help	- 🗆 X
	% ⊨ < ► ► × < €
General Quote Values Item Details Calculations	
Image: Contract of the contra	Part Information         Part Information         Class       FG         Item #       120518 FG         Description       120518 FG         Ext Description       Revision         Standard Multipliv       1         Attached Materials       Operation Details       User Fields       Inver •         Item #       COMP B-TD       Description       Comp B-TD
	Ext Description Quantity 1.0 X Scrap    Scrap
😨 General Quote 😨 Extra Charges, Commission 😨 Auxilia	ary Equipment Documents R User-Defined Form

Next, right click on the Attached Component (assembled part in our example), and select **Jump to RFQ**. The manufacturing type selection criteria screen will appear because the system will recognize that a quote needs to be created for the item. Select the correct manufacturing type/cell and press OK.

A new quote form will appear with the same RFQ # with a dash 1. In our example the pad printed quote created was number 109, the assembled part quote is number 109-1. The Description will fill in automatically with the description from the first quote but can be modified. Also, the item information will fill in automatically on the Item Details tab.

From the Item Details tab select the 'Add Component' button and follow the steps above to create the manufactured item. Right click on the manufactured item and select Jump to RFQ. The system will again ask for a manufacturing type/cell to create the new quote for the manufactured item.

### **Calculating the Quotes**

Now that all of the quotes are created they can be calculated. If the 'Calculate All Levels' option is not checked for all of the quotes, start with the lowest level quote. Once the highest level is reached all of the steps will have been quoted and will be included in the final prices for the finished good.

If the 'Calculate All Levels' option is checked on all related quotes the system will calculate the costs for each item associated to the 'top' level item with one click. For example, Item C consumes Item B, which consumes Item A. With this option checked when calculating the quote for Item C, the system will automatically calculate Item B and A.

**Note**: The automatic calculations will only affect the actual items that are part of the current "tree" and not other quotes they may be attached to.

**Note**: In order for this to work, 'Refresh Subcomponent Price Breaks' must be checked on the Default Values tab of Quote Parameters, and 'Use Master Inventory Std Cost for Component Pricing Instead of Price Breaks' must be unchecked on the General tab of Quote Parameters.

**Note**: If the Workflow Approval Quote parameter is checked, the system will apply the same Quote Type to the RFQs created from the place holders.

# **Calculating the Quote**

The last step in building the quote is *calculating*. Before calculating, make sure that the required information has been entered.

If any required information is missing, an error message will appear and the user will not be able to continue with the calculation of the quote.

To calculate the quote, follow the steps below.

> Select the 'Calculations' tab. The following screen will appear:

I GENERIC Quote 155-PASO -					_		×
File Options Miscellaneous Reports Help							
AA 🖂			ţ	🚯 🗖 🔺		√ ×	6
General Quote Values Item Details Calculations							
🖳 🏠 🤮 🗃 M 🖿 🍅							
Calculation Parameters	\$£¥	1	100	500	1000	5000	~
Fixed Material Markup Table	Optm % Markup	_					
Fixed Production Markup Table	Unit Cost						
Include Machine Startup in VGM/Hr & Net Value/Hr	Unit Price						
Include Machine Setup in VGM/Hr & Net Value/Hr	Price/1000						
	Markup %						
Calculate All Levels	Cost %						
+ = 🗸 X 🕑	Prod %						
Quote Oty Prod MU% Matr MU%	Material %						
500	Net Value/Hr						
1000	Yield/Hr						
5000							
v	Prod Hrs						
Optimized?	Oper Hrs						
Decimal	Prod Labor						
Marcia Direlay	Setup Labor						
Margin Display	Overhead						
◯ Gross Profit Margin %							
Markup Ry							
Percentage     Opints	Prod Cost						
Greitentage Oroints	Operation Cost						
	Prod Markup						
	Total Prod Cost						
	Tbl % MarkUp						
	Lbs Req						
	Cost/Lb						~
General Quote	🔃 Auxiliary Equipment	Docur	ments 🛛 🔃	User-Defined I	Form		

This calculation screen is divided into two sections, the *Calculation Parameters* on the left and the *Calculation Display* box on the right. If you right click within the *Calculation Display* box, the you can choose to Display the Production Data, Display the Calculation Parameters or Optimize the quote.

The *Calculation Display* box contains several columns of information. For a detailed analysis of how these fields are calculated, please see the Calculation Display Box at the end of this section.

**Note:** If the quote you are viewing was received from Marketplace, the quote screen will display a blue banner at the top of the screen: "This quote was received from the Dassault Systemes Marketplace."

#### Calculating the Quote

To Calculate the quote, click on the Calculate button

		19	3	а	
		13	a		
		ы	a		
1	_	_	_	_	<u> </u>

**Note**: Certain manufacturing types (such as Injection, Blowmold, and Thermoform) require a valid cycle time in order to calculate the quote. If a cycle time is not entered or scrap is set to 100% the user will receive a warning: "Either cycle time is too low or scrap is too high. Calculations aborted."

#### **Quote Calculations and Standard Cost Calculations**

In order for Quote costing to match Standard Costing, the following conditions must apply:

- Quotation Parameters
  - The 'Use Master Inventory Std Cost for Component Pricing instead of Price Breaks' must be checked.
  - The 'Based on (1/1-Scrap)' Attached Components Scrap Calculation option must be selected.
- Inventory
  - 'Use Std Cost in Engineering Quote' (Inventory->Additional tab) must be checked for consumed material, components, and packaging.

The following are calculated differently in Quote costing and therefore will not match standard costing:

- Fixed Machine Rate
- Setup Labor
- Setup Hours

### **Calculation Parameters on Calculations Tab**

### Fixed Material and/or Fixed Production Markup Tables

EnterpriseIQ allows markups on both production and material costs. The user may choose from two methods to tell the system how to markup the calculated values. The markups may be calculated using the markup tables set up in the Rates and Parameters, or the user may create fixed markup tables for the individual quote on the calculation tab. The default Material Markup Table and/or Production Markup Table data entered in the Rates and Parameters as defaults may be overridden for an individual quote by using either one of the fixed table options on the Calculations tab. Entries in this section are entered as whole numbers, not decimals (to set the markup to 5%, type 5, 15%, type 15, etc.).

Default Markup Tables (Misc->Rates and Parameters	If both the Fixed Material and/or Fixed Production Markup check boxes are left unchecked, the system will use the default markup table information set up under Misc->Rates and Parameters. The markup values stored here are based on the total number of hours the job will run and the total dollar amount of material used.
Fixed Markup Tables (Calculations tab for	Click on either one of these boxes to override the default mark-up table for this quote only. Where the Default option uses the pre-defined tables based on various values, the fixed option matches a percentage with the quantity to be quoted based on user input.
individual quote)	To use a Fixed Markup Table (production or material) instead of the default tables, click on the check box next to either the Fixed Material Markup Table or Fixed Production Markup Table. When the box is checked, the Prod MU% or Matr MU% column will become white to allow data entry.
	If either Markup % Table is left at zero, the quote will not receive a markup.
	Using one of the Fixed options allows you to change any and/or all Quote Quantity production markups within that particular table.
	After running the calculate function, the corresponding markups will be placed in the table available for viewing. If you wish to create a quote with NO markups in either the Fixed Material Markup Table or Fixed Production Markup Table, you may do so by using both the fixed options and setting all quantities to zero. This is used for calculating pure cost.

### **Additional Calculation Parameters**

Calculate All Levels	The default value for this option is set in Quotation Parameters->Default Values tab. This value can be overridden on the Calculation tab for an individual quote. Check this option to calculate the costs for each item associated to the 'top' level item with one click. For example, Item C consumes Item B, which consumes Item A. With this option checked when calculating the quote for Item C, the system will automatically calculate Item B and A. If this is not checked in order to get the correct cost for Item C you must open the quote for Item A and calculate, then open the quote for Item B and calculate.
	<b>Note</b> : The automatic calculations will only affect the actual items that are part of the current "tree" and not other quotes they may be attached to.
	<b>Note</b> : In order for this to work, 'Refresh Subcomponent Price Breaks' must be checked on the Default Values tab of Quote Parameters, and 'Use Master Inventory Std Cost for Component Pricing Instead of Price Breaks' must be unchecked on the General tab of Quote Parameters.
	<b>Note</b> : If the 'Calculate All Levels' parameter is not checked as the default in Rates and Parameters, for multiple levels to be calculated each higher level quote that is part of the tree will need to have the 'Calculate All Levels' option is set to Yes. For example, Item C consumes Item B, which consumes Item A; if the 'Calculate All Levels' option is set to Yes on C, but not B, then the system will only calculate C and B, but not A.
Include Machine Startup in VGM/Hr & Net Value/Hr	By default, Machine Start Up Hours will be excluded from the VGM/Hr and Net Value/Hr calculations. To include Machine Start Up in those calculations check this box.
	The calculation for Net Value/Hr with Machine Start Hours included is:
	<ul> <li>Net Value/Hr = [(((Total Revenue - (Extra Charges + Material Cost + Prod Labor + Setup Labor)) / Quote Qty) * (3600/Cycle Time) * (1-Scrap Rate) * (Eff Factor %) * Units per Cycle] + (Machine Startup Hours)</li> </ul>
	The calculation for VGM/Hr with Machine Start Hours included is:
	<ul> <li>VGM/Hr = (((Total Revenue - Commissions) - Prod Cost - Operation Cost - Material Cost) + (Fixed Machine Rate * Prod Hrs)) / (Total Amount - Commissions) / (Prod Hrs + Machine Startup Hours)</li> </ul>
Include Machine Setup in VGM/Hr &	By default, Machine Setup Hours will be excluded from the VGM/Hr and Net Value/Hr calculations. Check this box to include Machine Setup Up in those calculations.
Net Value/Hr	The calculation for Net Value/Hr with Machine Setup Hours included is:
	<ul> <li>Net Value/Hr = (((Total Revenue - Commissions) - Prod Cost - Operation Cost - Material Cost) + (Fixed Machine Rate * Prod Hrs)) / (Total Amount - Commissions) / Prod Hrs + (Machine Setup Hours)</li> </ul>
	The calculation for VGM/Hr with Machine Setup Hours included is:
	<ul> <li>VGM/Hr = (((Total Revenue - Commissions) - Prod Cost - Operation Cost - Material Cost) + (Fixed Machine Rate * Prod Hrs)) / (Total Amount - Commissions) / (Prod Hrs + Machine Setup Hours)</li> </ul>

Both Options checked	If both options are checked both the Machine Startup Hours and Machine Setup Hours will be added to the calculations:
	<ul> <li>Net Value/Hr = [(((Total Revenue - (Extra Charges + Material Cost + Prod Labor + Setup Labor)) / Quote Qty) * (3600/Cycle Time) * (1-Scrap Rate) * (Eff Factor %) * Units per Cycle] + (Machine Setup Hours + Machine Startup Hours )</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>VGM/Hr = (((Total Revenue - Commissions) - Prod Cost - Operation Cost - Material Cost) + (Fixed Machine Rate * Prod Hrs)) / (Total Amount - Commissions) / (Prod Hrs + Machine Setup Hours + Machine Startup Hours)</li> </ul>
Adding and Deleting Quote Quantities	To add additional quote quantities to the table, click on the Add [+] key on the Navigator bar directly above the table. Enter in the new quantity (and markup percentages if fixed) and Save the change.
	To edit, select the appropriate markup percentage table and click on the field to edit.
	Quantities and percentages can be deleted from this section by highlighting the quantity to be deleted and clicking on the Delete [-] key on the Navigator bar directly above the table.
Material Markup Not Compounded	This check box controls whether a manufactured sub-component is marked up again when it is used as a component in a higher level BOM. If checked, the lower level materials that make up the subassembly will NOT be marked up again. If you wish to use this option, place a check mark in the box in front of the Material Markup Not Compounded field.
Optimized	If the quote has been optimized in the past, a check mark will be present in the 'Optimized?' box. If the box is blank, the quote has not been optimized. See Optimizing the Quote for more information.
Decimal	To change the precision of the decimal display (the system defaults to two decimal places), enter the number of decimal places to display and save the change. The new values will be displayed automatically. The maximum number of decimals is six.
Margin Display	The user has the option of being able to calculate the quote using either Markup % or Gross Profit Margin %. (Refer to the General Tab for more information).
Markup By	EnterpriseIQ allows the user to calculate production and material markup rates by percentage or points. When creating a quote, the user can accept the default as setup under 'Rates and Parameters' or override the default for each individual quote by selecting one of these two options.
	• <b>Percentage</b> - Takes a percentage of the cost, and adds that value back to the original.
	Example: A 25% markup on a Prod Cost of \$1.00 Total Prod = $[($1.00 \times .25) + $1.00] = $1.25$ Prod Markup = $($1.25 - $1.00) = $0.25$
	<ul> <li>Points - Increases the total cost by the percentage used by dividing the cost by the inverse of the percentage listed.</li> </ul>
	Example: A 25% markup on a Prod Cost of \$1.00 Total Prod = [1.00 / (1 - 0.25)] = \$1.333 Prod Markup = (\$1.333 - \$1.00) = \$0.333

### Markup Examples

Use the examples below to help understand the calculations. The information displayed in both examples are limited to a Quote Quantity of 500 units.

### **EXAMPLE 1 - Using Percentages**

For this example, the 'Fixed Production Markup Table' was selected.

General Quote Values Item Details Calculations			
Calculation Parameters     Fixed Material Markup Table	\$£ <del>¥</del>	500	
Fixed Production Markup Table	Yield/Hr	870.77	
Material Markup Not Compound			
+ × e	Prod Hrs	1.15	
Ouote Otu Prod MU% Matr MU%	Oper Hrs	0.58	
	Dry Hrs	2.00	
	Start Hrs	0.30	
Optimized? Decimal 4	Prod Cost	172.71	
Margin Display	Prod \$ MarkUp	103.63	
🔿 Sales Margin 🛛 💿 Profit Margin	Total \$ Prod	276.34	
Markup By	Fix % MarkUp	60.00	
Percentage C Points	•		

The markup on a Quote Quantity of 500 is as follows:

Prod Markup = (Prod Cost \* (FixPtsMarkup / 100) = (172.71 \* 0.6) Prod Markup = 103.63 Total Prod Cost = Prod Cost + Prod Markup = (172.71 + 103.63) Total Prod Cost = 276.34

### EXAMPLE 2 -Using Points

Again, the 'Fixed Production Markup Table' was selected.

General Quote Values Item Details Calculations				
Calculation Parameters	\$£¥	500		
Fixed Production Markup Table	Yield/Hr	870.77		
Material Markup Not Compound				
+ × e	Prod Hrs	1.15		
Quete Ohu Bred MUS Mar MUS	Oper Hrs	0.58		
Quote Q()         Piod M0%         Mail M0%            ▶         200000         20.00         18.00	Dry Hrs	2.00		
	Start Hrs	0.30		
Optimized? Decimal 4	Prod Cost	172.71		
Margin Display	Prod \$ MarkUp	259.07		
🔿 Sales Margin 💿 Profit Margin	Total \$ Prod	431.78		
Markup By	Fix Pts MarkUp	60.00		
C Percentage 💿 Points	•			

The markup on a Quote Quantity of 500 is as follows:

```
Total Prod Cost = Prod Cost / (1 - (FixPtsMarkup / 100)) = (172.71 / 0.4)
Total Prod Cost = 431.78
Prod Markup = Total Prod Cost - Prod Cost = (431.78 - 172.71)
Prod Markup = 259.07
```

**Note**: If the Production Markup table percentage shows 60%, the inverse of the cost percentage would be 40%.

**Note**: If calculating markup is by points, and the user enters a MU% of 100 the system will present an error that the system is attempting to divide by zero. By definition, markup calculated by points would not allow for a markup of 100%. The error that will appear is: 'Markup by points, Invalid Prod MU% and/or Mat. MU% for Quote Qty ### - Operation aborted'.

### **Optimizing the Quote**

The system allows quotes to be optimized by Price, Percent, Margin, Yield/Hr, VGM Amount, VGM/Hr, and Net Value/Hr. The optimization process allows the user to input values for each of these criteria and then calculate the markups and prices and fine tune the final price for the item.

Once the quote is optimized, the optimized percentage is displayed at the top of the calculations screen. The optimized percentage is the percent of change between the original calculated unit price and the new optimized unit price.

To optimize a quote:

On the Calculations screen, right click within the Calculations Display screen (right side) and select Optimize... from the submenu, or click on the Optimize button at the top of the screen. The system will remember the last option that was used when exiting and going back into the optimization screen.

Seven methods of optimization are available:

- Price Directly inputs the quote price. Note: if the quote is for a family tool the price for the individual items can be optimized by selecting the individual pricing option. (See Individual Pricing in the Other Calculation Options section for more details).
- **Percent** Raises or lowers the quote price by the percentage input.
- Margin Changes the Total Margin or Sales Margin directly which also changes the quote price.
- Yield/Hr Optimize the quote price by yield/hr.
- VGM Amount Optimizes the quote calculations based on the VGM Amount.
- VGM/Hour- Optimizes the quote calculations based on the VGM/Hour.
- Net Value/Hr Optimizes the quote calculations based on the Net Value/Hr.

IQ Optimiz.	— 🗆	×
Optimize By	Price 🗸	]
100	Price Percent	
500	Margin Vield/Hour	1.898099
1000	VGM Amount	1.627404
5000	VGM/Hour Net Value/Hr	1.519543
10000		1.506061
OK	Cano	:el

Any combination of optimization methods may be used. For example, one Quote Quantity can be optimized by Price and then a second quantity can be optimized by the Margin and any others by Percent.

As you optimize, the optimization percentage is recalculated and displayed under the Optm % Markup column.

**Note**: When performing the optimization calculations, the system applies the commission value after the optimization is calculated for price per unit. Refer to the Calculation Example section for details on the calculations.

After optimizing the quote, the changes are saved to the quote database and the Optimize? box will contain a check mark showing that the quote has been optimized. If the user attempts to recalculate, a warning message will appear as follows:

Warning	)	Х
	This quote has been manually optimized in the past. Are you sure you want to recalculate?	
	Yes No	

If 'Yes' is selected, it will remove the optimization and recalculate the pricing. Any changes made to the quote will be reflected in the new calculation.

### **Advanced Optimization**

Advanced Optimization is a customizable optimization tool that provides users with the ability to quickly evaluate profitability and competitive pricing by choosing the calculations and variables to include in the optimization process. To access this module, right click on the Quote->Calculations tab or select the 'Advanced Optimization' option from the drop down list next to the 'Optimize speed button on the

Calculation tab.

When the form is first accessed the Calculation grid will display the current calculations from the Engineering Quote->Calculation Tab. The system uses the same decimal precision setup in Engineering Quotes -> Calculation tab. The Optimization fields will be null. When the form is accessed again the system will remember the values in the editable fields.

Advanced Optimization - 🗆 🗙						
File Export Help						
Optimization Preview	Field Set: Field Set ABC		~ 🖌			
Quote Quantity:		100	500	1000	5000	10000
10000 ~	Prod Markup	399.89	515.12	659.17	1,207.68	1,083.99
	Material Markup	407.89	1,307.11	1,922.69	6,407.71	12,815.10
Optimize By:	Total Cost	296.26	960.26	1,771.52	8,361.55	16,599.09
Price	Unit Cost	2.962582	1.920523	1.771515	1.672309	1.659909
	Unit Price	12.000356	6.048896	4.731927	3.473246	3.315019
Starting Value:	VGM %	73.14	65.48	59.30	47.66	45.57
3.25 Increment Type: Percentage Increment Value: 5 Number of Increments (+/-): 3 Calculate						
	<					>

**Note:** Users cannot access the Advanced Optimization form if another user is in the form on the same quote. A 'Failed to acquire exclusive lock' message will display to the user who has locked the record.

#### Select Fields

Multiple 'Fields Sets' can be created that will determine the fields that display in the grid. Click the 'Select Fields' button next to the 'Field Set' field to access the 'Select Fields' form.

IQ Select Fields			_		×
+   +   / × (*	Available Fields		Selected Fields		
Field Set ABC	By-product Qty Commissions Comp. Cost Cost % Cost/Lb Dry Hrs Extra Charges Lbs Req Main Material Cost Margin Material % Material Cost Material Cost Material Markup Matrl % Markup Net Value/Hr Oper Hrs Operation Cost Optm % Markup Outsource Cost Overhead Pkg Cost Price/1000 Prod % Prod % Markup Prod Cost Prod Markup Scrap % Setup Labor Skeleton Cost Start Hrs Total Cost Total Matrl Cost Total Profit Total Revenue Hint Cost	* * *	Prod Markup Material Markup Total Cost Unit Cost Unit Price VGM %		
		Sele	ect Field Set	Canc	el

- 1 Select the + button to create a new 'Field Set' and enter the name of the set in the field.
- 2 Choose the desired fields to be included from the 'Available Fields' list and arrow them over to the 'Selected Fields' list using the single right arrow button. The Shift/Ctrl keyboard buttons can be used to select multiple fields at once. All fields can be added using the double right arrow button.
- **3** All fields or individual fields can be removed from the 'Selected Fields' section by using the left arrow buttons.

- 4 If the user is highlighted on a field in the 'Available Fields' section that may change based on EPlant, MFG Type or Calculations Parameters, a hint will display on the bottom of the 'Select Fields' form, "The Field Set label may change based on EPlant Login, Manufacturing Type and Calculations Parameters."
- **5** The order of the fields can be changed by dragging and dropping a field into the desired place. The fields will display on the Advanced Optimization screen in the order they have been established here.
- **6** Once all of the 'Selected Fields have been chosen click the 'Select Field Set' button. The Advanced Optimization grid will populate with the selected fields and their values.

Follow the steps above to create additional 'Field Sets', or use the 'Clone' option to clone a field set and modify it.

**Clone** - Fields Sets can be cloned by highlighting a 'Field Set', right clicking and selecting 'Clone'. A new 'Field Set' will be created with the same name as the highlighted one. The name can be changed, and the fields associated to the 'Field Set' can be modified.

**Note**: If a user later changes a calculation parameter or radio button that could affect the Advanced Optimization form field set labels, the system will automatically change the field set labels. For example, the Margin Display field will change based on the parameter that is checked. It will be either 'Gross Profit Margin %' or 'Markup %'.

**Note**: Another example is if the Calculation Parameters for 'Fixed Production Markup' is checked, the field will change from 'Tbl % Markup' to 'Fix % Markup'. If these fields are part of the field set it is recommended to include the 'Material Cost' and 'Prod Cost' fields so you know how they are being marked up (Fixed or Table).

### **Field Set Selection**

From the Advanced Optimization form select the field set to view from the drop down list in the Field Set field. If a field set is selected that does not have any fields, the calculation grid in the Advanced Optimization screen will not display any fields.

#### **Optimizing the Quote**

To optimize the quote enter values in the fields below:

Quote Quantity	This is a drop down menu based on the Quote Quantities assigned to the quote in the Markup Table on the Engineering Quotes -> Calculations tab. (The Quote Qty can only be whole numbers, no decimals).
Optimization By	This is a drop down list that includes all of the optimization methods: Price, Percent, Margin, Yield/Hour, VGM Amount, VGM/Hour, and Net Value/Hour.
Starting Value	This is a free form field to define which value you want to optimize by. This will set the 'middle' ground from which the system will increment by based on the values entered in he 'Increment Type' and 'Increment Value' fields.
Increment Type	This is a drop down list with Percentage or Flat Amount. This is used to define how to increment in both directions.

Increment Value	This is a free form field that defines how much to increment in either direction based on the starting value.
Number of Increments (+/-)	This is the number of increments in either direction. The max is 4 and must be a whole number.

Populate the fields above and select the 'Calculate' button. The form will display the advanced optimization calculations based on the values in the optimization fields. The starting value column will be highlighted in yellow. The 'Optimize By' field will be highlighted in blue. The Quote Quantity field cannot be edited.

**Note**: The user will receive an error stating, "Field set and all optimization values must be selected" if all of the fields are not populated or there is not a field set.

Advanced Optimization							_	
File Export Help								
Optimization Preview	Field Set: CR Field S	et	~ (	2				
Quote Quantity:		Select						
1000 ~		1000	1000	1000	1000	1000	1000	1000
	Unit Cost	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50
Optimize By:	Unit Price	6.51	5.69	5.06	4.55	4.14	3.80	3.50
VGM/Hour $\sim$	Material Cost	1,007.49	1,007.49	1,007.49	1,007.49	1,007.49	1,007.49	1,007.49
	Total Matri Cost	2,518.72	2,518.72	2,518.72	2,518.72	2,518.72	2,518.72	2,518.72
Starting Value:	Prod Cost	219.72	219.72	219.72	219.72	219.72	219.72	219.72
500	Total Prod Cost	533.67	533.67	533.67	533.67	533.67	533.67	533.67
To an and Trans.	Total Revenue	5,986.44	5,238.17	4,656.18	4,190.59	3,809.65	3,492.20	3,223.59
Increment Type:	Total Profit	4,489.23	3,740.96	3,158.97	2,693.38	2,312.44	1,994.99	1,726.38
Percentage ~	VGM %	74.99	71.41	67.84	64.27	60.70	57.12	53.55
Increment Values	VGM/Hr	350.00	400.00	450.00	500.00	550.00	600.00	650.00
Indement value:	VGM Amount	4,879.46	4,066.12	3,433.52	2,927.44	2,513.38	2,168.33	1,876.36
10								
Number of Increments (+/-):								
3								
Calculate								
Calculate								

If the values in the optimization fields are changed, select the 'Calculate' button to update the calculations.

After optimizing the quote, users can decide which column they would like to commit to the Calculation screen by clicking the 'Select' button for the column to commit. A confirm message with 'Yes' and 'No' buttons will display stating, "Apply the calculated Advanced Optimization?" Selecting 'Yes' will close the Advanced Optimization form and update the calculations screen to display the optimized values for the quote quantity that was optimized. This will check the 'Optimized?' check box on Engineering Quotes->Calculation tab. Selecting 'No' on the message will return the user to the Advanced Optimization form with no changes made to the Quote Calculations tab.

### Export

Users can export the optimized calculations by selecting the 'Export' menu option. This is similar to the 'Print RFQ' button on the Calculations tab. This will print a report of the general quote information including labor, material, blend details, part information, and the calculation information from the Advanced Optimization form currently open. This report is hard coded into the system, it is not a Crystal Report and therefore cannot be edited. However, it will also create an Excel spreadsheet which by default is saved in the local home folder in a sub-folder named rfq\_print. The location where these are saved can be changed by setting the location from the RFQ Print -.xls Destination option available from the Miscellaneous menu. Once this option is selected the user will see the spreadsheet briefly appear then a Print box will come up to choose the printer to send the report to or cancel if a hard copy is not desired.

**Note**: This feature requires that Microsoft Excel is installed on the computer. If it is not installed, when selecting the Export menu, a message will appear stating"Microsoft Excel is required".

### **Calculation Example**

After a quote has been calculated, the data is displayed in the right hand portion of the **Calculations** screen, referred to as the '*Calculation Display*' screen. The calculation process goes through a series of operations to arrive at a quote price. **EnterpriselQ** uses the price breaks on the manufactured components, includes the costs for inserts and packaging, and includes markups and commissions. The table below shows how **EnterpriselQ** calculates each of the fields in the '*Calculation Display*' screen.

Calculation Display example

\$£¥	1000	2000	5000	10000	20000
Optm % Markup					
Unit Cost	0.3210	0.2219	0.1625	0.1427	0.1328
Unit Price	0.5041	0.2510	0.1856	0.1638	0.1529
Price/1000	504.1030	251.0420	185.6370	163.8040	152.9100
Gross Profit Margin %	33.15	7.19	8.06	8.51	8.78
Cost %	66.85	92.81	91.94	91.49	91.22
Prod %	40.54	61.28	66.59	69.30	70.94
Material %	5.48	10.61	14.03	15.79	16.85
Net Value/Hr	114.70	45.63	37.61	34.92	33.59
Yield/Hr	184.47	86.88	61.73	53.36	49.18
Prod Hrs	2.46	4.92	12.31	24.62	49.25
Oper Hrs	4.46	6.92	14.31	26.62	51.25
Prod Labor	36.90	73.80	184.65	369.30	738.75
Setup Labor	40.00	40.00	40.00	40.00	40.00
Overhead	117.75	179.25	364.00	671.75	1,287.50
Dry Hrs					
Start Hrs	0.25	0.25	0.25	0.25	0.25
Prod Cost	194.65	293.05	588.65	1,081.05	2,066.25
Operation Cost					
Prod Markup	145.99	29.31	58.87	108.11	206.63
Total Prod Cost	340.64	322.36	647.51	1,189.15	2,272.88
Fix % MarkUp	75.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00
Lbs Req	8.39	16.02	38.90	77.04	153.32
Cost/Lb	2.4500	2.4500	2.4500	2.4500	2.4500
Plastic Cost	20.56	39.25	95.31	188.75	375.64
Comp. Cost					
Pkg Cost	5.75	11.50	28.75	57.50	115.00
Outsource Cost					
Material Cost	26.31	50.75	124.06	246.25	490.64
Material Markup	13.15	5.07	12.41	24.63	49.06
Total Matri Cost	39.46	55.82	136.47	270.88	539.70
Fix % MarkUp	50.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00
Extra Charges	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00
Commissions	0.0240	0.0120	0.0088	0.0078	0.0073
Total Revenue	480.10	478.18	883.98	1,560.04	2,912.58
Total Cost	320.96	443.80	812.71	1,427.30	2,656.89
Total Profit	159.14	34.38	71.27	132.73	255.69
VAP %	35.07	8.04	9.38	10.10	10.56
VGM %	59.10	38.39	33.30	30.70	29.12
VGM Amount	297.9177	192.7507	309.0845	502.8723	890.5906
VGM/Hr	63.2522	26.8829	21.2283	18.7150	17.2930

Summary	×
	✓ × C
RFQ #	137-PASO
Description	Quote for Docs
Revision	1
Date	6/25/2019
Expires	7/25/2019
Company	ABCO
Commission %	5.00
Manufacturing #	
Manufacturing Typ	INJECTION
Manufacturing Cel	PASO INJ
Start Cycles	50
Cycle Time	16
Setup Hours	2
Weekly Dry Hours	
Center Type	300
Center Rate	25.00
Operators	2
Scrap %	5.00
Units/Cycle	2
Hours/K-cycles	4.44
Hours/K-units	2.22
Shot Wt(lbs)	0.015256
Cycles/Hr	225.00
Lbs/K-cycles	15.26
Regrind	25

#### **Calculation Samples**

The calculation samples provided below are based on both the Calculation Display information and the Production Summary screen (shown above) and are limited to a Quote Quantity of **1000** units only. All percentages or amounts shown in the calculated fields have been rounded off.

To help understand how the calculations were reached in the Calculation Display screen, use the information shown in the two screen shots above, plus the following details:

- The 'Markup By' is set to Percentage
- Operators: One non setup operator (\$15) and one setup operator (\$20)
- Dry Hours = 0
- No Auxiliary Equipment attached

The field listing below outlines and shows the calculations for each field:

Optm % MarkUp	If a quote is Optimized, the resulting percent change is displayed here. The optimized percentage is the percent of change between the original calculated unit price and the new optimized unit price. The column will be blank if the quote has not been optimized.
	Example:
	The price is optimized from \$1.00 to \$1.25. The Opt % Markup field displays 25 indicating that the quoted price is 25% higher than the calculated price.
	All percentages are based on the calculated price.
Unit Cost	The cost to make the product per unit.
	Calculation:
	a. Total Cost / Quote Quantity b. 320.96 / 1000 <b>Unit Cost</b> = \$0.3210
Unit Price	Suggested sales price per unit.
	Calculation:
	a. (Total Revenue / Quote Quantity) + Commission b. (480.10 / 1000) + 0.0240 <b>Unit Price</b> = \$0.5041
Price/1000	The price for 1000 units of product.
	Calculation:
	a. Unit Price * 1000
	b. 0.5041 * 1000 <b>Price/1000</b> = \$504.10
Profit/Total Margin	This will display either the Markup % or the Gross Profit Margin % depending on which option is selected in the Margin Display section on the Calculations Parameters screen. The default is set in Rates and Parameters.
	Calculation if Markup % is selected:
	a. ((Total Revenue – Total Cost) / Total Cost) * 100 b. (480.10 - 320.96) / 320.96) * 100
	c. (159.14 / 320.96) * 100
	Markup % = 49.58
	Calculation if Gross Profit Margin is selected:
	a. ((Total Revenue – Total Cost) / Total Revenue) * 100 b. (480.10 - 320.96) / 480.10) * 100
	c. (159.14 / 480.10) * 100
	Gross Profit Margin = 33.15

Cost %	Total cost as a percent of the Unit Price.
	Calculation:
	a. Total Cost / Total Revenue b. 320.96 / 480.10 * 100
	<b>Cost %</b> = 66.85
Prod %	The production costs as a percentage of the total price.
	Calculation:
	a. Prod Cost / Total Revenue x 100
	b. (194.65 / 480.10) * 100
	<b>Prod</b> % = 40.54
Material %	The material costs as shown as a percentage of the total price.
	Calculation:
	<ul> <li>a. Material Cost / Total Revenue * 100</li> <li>b. (26.31 / 480.10) * 100</li> <li>Total Material % = 5.48</li> </ul>

Net Value/Hr	This is the effective hourly press rate, after removing extra charges, materials and labor. It is calculated by taking the Total Revenue less Extra Charges, Material Cost, Production labor and Setup labor then dividing by the quote quantity, and multiplying by the net cycles per hour [which is calculated: (3600 / (cycle Time)) * (1-Scrap Rate percentage) * (Efficiency Factor)] times the units per cycle.
	Calculation:
	<ul> <li>a. (((Total Revenue - (Extra Charges + Material Cost + Prod Labor + Setup Labor)) / Quote Qty) * (3600/Cycle Time) * (1-Scrap Rate) * (Eff Factor %)</li> <li>* Units per Cycle</li> <li>b. (((480.10 - (100 + 26.31 + 36.90+ 40.00) / 1000) * ((3600/16) (1 - 0.05) (0.95)) * 2</li> </ul>
	c. ((276.89 / 1000) * (225 * 0.95 * 0.95) * 2)
	d. (0.27689 * 203.06) * 2
	Net Value/Hr = 112.44
	If the Calculation Parameters 'Include Machine Startup in VGM/Hr & Net Value/Hr' and 'Include Machine Setup in VGM/Hr & Net Value/Hr' are checked the calculations will include those values.
	Calculation:
	<ul> <li>a. (((Total Revenue - (Extra Charges + Material Cost + Prod Labor + Setup Labor)) / Quote Qty) * (3600/Cycle Time) * (1-Scrap Rate) * (Eff Factor %)</li> <li>* Units per Cycle + (Machine Setup Hours + Machine Startup Hours)</li> <li>b. (((480.10 - (100 + 26.31 + 36.90+ 40.00) / 1000) * ((3600/16) (1 - 0.05) (0.95)) * 2 + 2 + 0.25</li> </ul>
	c. ((276.89 / 1000) * (225 * 0.95 * 0.95) * 2) + 2.25
	d. (0.27689 * 203.06) * 2 + 2.25
	<b>Net Value/Hr</b> = 114.70
	Note: If the <i>'Exclude Efficiency Factor from Cost Calc'</i> setting is checked (Rates and Parameters->Default Values tab) the system will exclude the quote efficiency factor in the calculation. The system will use an efficiency factor of 100 rather than the Quotes efficiency factor.
Yield/Hr	The total yield per hour for the Quote Quantity. Essentially the amount made per hour after material costs (raw material, components, and packaging) and commissions, but before labor costs.
	Calculation:
	a. (Total Revenue - Material Cost - Commissions) / Prod Hours b. (480.10 - 26.31 - 0.024) / 2.46 Yield/Hr = 184.47

Prod Hrs	Production Hours required for the Quote Quantity.
	Calculation:
	a. (Qty / (3600 / Cycle Time)) / (1 - Scrap %) / (Eff Factor %) / (Units per Cycle) b. (1000 / (3600 / 16)) / (1 - 0.05) / (0.95) / 2
	<ul> <li>c. (1000 / 225) / (0.95) / (0.95) / 2</li> <li>d. (4.44 / 0.95 / 0.95) / 2</li> <li>e. 4.924 / 2</li> <li>Prod Hrs = 2.46</li> </ul>
	Note: If the <i>'Exclude Efficiency Factor from Cost Calc'</i> setting is checked (Rates and Parameters->Default Values tab) the system will exclude the quote efficiency factor in the calculation. The system will use an efficiency factor of 100 rather than the Quotes efficiency factor.
	Extrusion MFG Type Calculations:
	For Extrusion manufacturing types the calculation for Prod Hrs differs slightly.
	EXT MFG Type:
	(Quote Qty * Part Length) / ((Ft. Lb * Lbs/Hr) x (1 - Scrap %) x Eff Factor %)
	EXT2 MFG Type:
	Quote Qty / Lbs/Hr / (1 - Scrap %) / Eff Factor %
	EXT3 MFG Type:
	Quote Qty * Part Weight / Lbs/Hr / (1 - Scrap %) / Eff Factor %
Oper Hrs	Total number of operator hours required for production.
	Calculation:
	<ul> <li>a. Production Hours * [sum(non setup operators) + Setup Hours * sum(setup operators)]</li> <li>b. (2.46 * 1) + (2 * 1)</li> <li>Oper Hrs = 4.46</li> </ul>
Prod Labor	Total Production Labor
	a. Production Hours * sum(non setup operators) * Labor Rate
	b. (2.46 * 1) * 15
	<b>Prod Labor</b> = 36.90
Setup Labor	Total cost for setup labor.
	Setup Hours * sum(setup operators) * Labor Rate
	(2 * 1) * 20 = 40.00

Overhead	The total overhead costs.
	(Production Hrs + Start Hrs + Dry Hrs + Setup Hrs) * (Work Center Rate + Auxiliary Equipment Rate)
	(2.46 + .25 + 0 + 2) * (25 + 0) = 117.75
	<b>MFG Type Overhead set to Labor</b> : If the Overhead calculation option for the Manufacturing Type is set to 'Labor' the calculation will use the Labor Rate setup on the Manufacturing Type screen to calculate the Prod Cost instead of the Total Center Rate. It also considers the number of non set up type operators. It will still use the Center Rate for Setup Hours.
	Example: Labor Based rate = 50; Non Setup operators = 1
	(((2.46 + .25 + 0) *1) *50) + (2 * (25 + 0)) = 185.50
Dry Hrs	Total number of hours needed for drying this item.
	Note: Dry Time is included in the calculation for Total Production Hours (TPH).
	Calculation:
	<ul> <li>a. Weekly Dry Hours * Production weeks</li> <li>b. 0 * 1</li> <li>Dry Hrs = 0</li> </ul>
Start Hrs	The number hours required to "dial in" a tool based on the Start/Cycles. This value will effect the amount of material required as well as the Total Production Hours. Each week of production will include the start up hours. For example, when the production hours exceeds 168 (24 * 7) the start up hours will be doubled.
	Calculation:
	<ul> <li>a. (Start Cycles / (3600 / Cycle Time)) / (Eff Factor%) / (1-Scrap %)</li> <li>b. (50 / (3600 / 16)) / (0.95) / (1 - 0.05)</li> <li>c. (50 / 225) / (0.95 / (0.95)</li> <li>d. 0.2222 / 0.95 / 0.95</li> <li>Start Hours = 0.25</li> </ul>
	Note: If the 'Exclude Efficiency Factor from Cost Calc' setting is checked (Rates and Parameters->Default Values tab) the system will exclude the quote efficiency factor in the calculation. The system will use an efficiency factor of 100 rather than the Quotes efficiency factor.

Prod Cost	The total production cost for the Quote Quantity. Based on the Total Production Hours (TPH) for the job.
	This calculation used for Prod Cost depends on whether the quote has operators (labor) associated with it.
	Calculation with Labor:
	a. (TPH * Total Center Rate) + (Prod Hrs * Prod Labor Rate) + (((Setup Operator Quantity * Labor Rate) * Setup Hours) + (Total Center Rate * Setup Hours))
	b. (2.71 * 25) + (2.46 * 15.00) + (((1 x 20) * 2) + (25 * 2))
	c. (67.75) + (36.90) + (40 + 50)
	Prod Cost = 194.65
	With Labor the calculation for TPH = Prod Hrs + Dry Hrs + Start Hrs
	2.46+ 0.00 + 0.25 = 2.71
	Total Center Rate = Work Center Rate + Auxiliary Equipment Rates. (25 + 0) = 25
	Calculation without Labor:
	a. (TPH * Total Center Rate)
	b. (4.71 * 25)
	Prod Cost = 117.75
	Without Labor the calculation for TPH = Prod Hrs + Dry Hrs + Start Hrs + Setup Hrs
	2.46+ 0.00 + 0.25 + 2 = 4.71
	Notes:
	<ul> <li>MFG Type Overhead set to Labor: If the Overhead calculation option for the Manufacturing Type is set to 'Labor' the calculation will use the Labor Rate setup on the Manufacturing Type screen to calculate the Prod Cost instead of the Total Center Rate.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>When adding labor, in order to have Setup hours included in the quote users must have an employee level with a labor type of Setup associated to the quote also. This designates the setup labor cost.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Quotes that existed before the addition of employee levels will calculate the old way: (TPH x Total Center Rate) + (Oper Hrs x Labor Rate), unless a change is made to employee levels.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Labor Based Rate Fixed rate entered on the Labor/Overhead tab of the Manufacturing type is not currently used in an Engineering Quote calculation for Prod Cost. Variable rate can be used.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>If the 'Exclude Overhead from Setup Cost Calculation' is checked (in System Parameters-&gt;Inventory Setup tab) the system will not add the work center rate times the setup hours to the calculation. In the example with labor the calculation would be:</li> </ul>

	a. (TPH * Total Center Rate) + (Prod Hrs * Prod Labor Rate) + (((Setup Operator Quantity * Labor Rate) * Setup Hours)
	b. (2.71 * 25) + (2.46 * 15.00) + (((1 * 20) * 2)
	c. 67.75 + 36.90 + 40
	<b>Prod Cost</b> = 144.65
Operation Cost	The cost of attached operations. Operation Details (Item Details tab)->Calc Cost.
	a. Operation calc cost * Qty
	Example:
	Cycle Time of operation = 20 seconds
	Rate = 10
<b>D</b> 111	Calc Cost = (20/3600) * 10 = .055556
Prod MarkUp	The amount the production is being marked up.
	Percentage Calculation:
	a. Prod Cost * (% Markup/100) b. (194.65) * (0.75)
	<b>Prod MarkUp</b> = 145.99
Total Prod Cost	The total production amount, including markup.
	Calculation:
	a. Prod Cost + Operation Cost + Prod MarkUp
	D. (194.65 + 0 + 145.99) Tot Prod Cost = 340.64
Tbl % MarkUp or	The production markup percentage as specified in the Calculation Parameters section.
Fixed MarkUp	

Lbs Req	The total pounds of raw material required to produce the Quote Quantity.
	Please see <b>Calculations for LBS/K Cycles</b> at the end of this field listing to see details on how to calculate this figure.
	The 'LBS/K-cycles' and 'Shot Wt(lbs)' are displayed on the Production Data Summary form (right click and select 'Display Production Data').
	Calculation:
	<ul> <li>a. ((LBS/K-cycles / units per cycle) / 1000) * Qty + ((Start/Cycles * Lbs. per shot ) * unit per cycle)</li> <li>b. ((15.26 / 2) / 1000) * 1000) + ((50 * .015256) * 2)</li> <li>c. 7.63 + 0.7628</li> <li>Lbs Req = 8.39</li> </ul>
	Note: Start Cycles are added to the Lbs Required calculation for every 168 hours (24 hours x 7 days) of Prod Hrs.
	Note: For Thermoform and TFORM2 MFG Types: The Lbs Req. is based on the Costing weight. The costing weight includes the By-product unless the 'Exclude By-product' options is checked on the Calculations tab.
Cost/Lb	Total cost per pound is taken from the price break information for the attached material. The price break used is based on the quantity of material required.
Plastic Cost	Total cost of plastic for the Quote Quantity.
	Calculation:
	a. Lbs. Req * Cost per Lb. b. 8.39 * 2.45 Plastic Cost = 20.56
	Note: For Stamping and Diecast Mfg Types this field will be called Main Material Cost.

Comp. Cost	Total Cost of components needed for this quoted quantity. Pricing is based on default price breaks and number of units required. The units required takes into consideration the scrap percentage associated to the component if any.
	The example calculation above does not have a component attached.
	Additional Example:
	Quantity required per item = 1, Scrap value =10%, Component price break = 0.50 quote quantity of 1000
	Calculation:
	a. (Quote Qty * 1 + Scrap Percentage) * component cost
	b. (1000 * 1.10) * 0.50
	<b>Comp. Cost</b> = 550.00
	If the Attached Components Scrap Calculation in Rates and Parameters is set to 'Based on (1/1-Scrap)', the calculation would be:
	a. (1000 * (1/1-0.10)) * 0.50
	b. 1000 * 1.11111 * 0.50
	Comp. Cost = 555.5556
Pkg Cost	Total Packaging cost for the quoted quantity. Pricing is based on default price breaks and number of units. The items required takes into consideration the scrap percentage associated to the packaging item if any. The system will round up to the nearest whole packaging item required and multiply times the cost to determine total Pkg Cost.
	For the calculation display example above parts per carton = 1000 and parts per divider = 100:
	1 carton at 0.75 = 0.75
	10 dividers at .50 = 5.00
	<b>Pkg Cost</b> = 5.75
	Additional Example:
	Parts per packaging item = 580, Scrap % = 10, quote qty = 10000, cost = 0.25
	((Quote Qty/parts per) * 1+ Scrap %) * pkg cost
	((10000/580) * 1.1) * 0.25 = 19 * 0.25 = 4.75
	Note the pkg req's are rounded up to a whole pkg item. In this example 18.97 is rounded up to 19.
Outsource Cost	This is the outsource cost calculated from the Quantity Price Breaks entered in the 'Part Information' section for outsource items.
	Calculation:
	Quote Qty * Associated price break's price.

Material Cost	Total cost of material for this quoted quantity.
	Calculation:
	a. Plastic Cost + Comp Cost + Pkg Cost
	b. 20.56 + 0 + 5.75
	Material Cost = 26.31
	Note: For Stamping and Diecast Mfg Types the calculation is: Main Material Cost + Comp Cost + Pkg Cost
Material MarkUp	The amount the materials are being marked up.
	Calculation:
	a. Material Cost * (% Markup / 100)
	b. 26.31 * (0.50)
	Material MarkUp = 13.15
Total Matrl Cost	The total material amount, including markup.
	Calculation:
	a. Material Cost + Material MarkUp
	b. 26.31 + 13.15 Total Matri Cost - 39.46
Fix or Thi % Marklin	The material markup percentage as appointed in the Calculation Decomptors section
	The material markup percentage as specified in the Calculation Parameters section.
Extra Charges	Additional charges not accounted for in the normal quote input screen such as extra shipping charges, mold maintenance, color changes, etc. See the section on Extra Charges for more information.
	Extra charges = 100.00
Commissions	Sales commissions will be added into the item price based on Total Price or Gross Margin and one of two calculations. (See the Commissions section for more details).
	Calculation:
	a. Total Price: Total Revenue / Qty * Commission%/100
	b. 480.10 / 1000 * 0.05
	c. 0.02400
Total Revenue	Total Revenue for the Quote Quantity including the Optm % MarkUp (top row).
	Calculation:
	a. (Total Prod Cost + Total Matrl Cost + Extra Charges) *
	(1 + (Optm % MarkUp / 100))
	b. $(340.64 + 39.46 + 100.00) * (1 + (0/100))$ c. $480.10 * 1$
	Total Revenue = 480.10

Total Cost	The Total Cost to produce the Quote Quantity (break-even).
	Calculation:
	a. Prod Cost + Material Cost + Extra Charges
	b. 194.65 + 26.31 + 100 Total Cost = 320.96
Total Profit	Total Profit that will be made on the Quote Quantity.
	Calculation:
	a. Total Revenue - Total Cost
	b. 480.10 - 320.96
VAD%	Value Added percentage
VAF /0	Calculation:
	a Total Profit / (((Linit Price - Commissions) * Oty) - Material Cost)
	b $159 14 / ((0.5041 - 0.0240) * 1000 pcs) - 26 31)$
	c 159 14 / 453 79
	VAP% = 35.07%
VGM%	Variable Gross Margin percent
	Calculation:
	a. (((Total Revenue - Commissions) - Prod Cost - Operation Cost - Material Cost) + (Fixed
	Machine Rate * Prod Hrs)) / (Total Revenue - Commissions) * 100
	b. ((480.10 - 0.0240) - 194.65 - 0 - 26.31) + (10 * 2.46) / (480.10 - 0.0240)
	c. 259.11 + 24.60 / 480.07
	<b>VGM%</b> = 59.10%
	Note: The VGM% field is not calculated for ASSY1, ASSY2, ASSY3, and OUTSOURCE MFG Types.
VGM Amount	Variable Gross Margin amount.
	Calculation:
	a. (((((Total Revenue - Commissions) - Prod Cost - Operation Cost - Material Cost) + (Fixed Machine Rate * Prod Hrs)) / (Total Revenue - Commissions) * 100) / 100) * Unit Price * Qty.
	b. ((480.10 - 0.0240) - 194.65 - 0 - 26.31) + (10 * 2.46) / (480.10 - 0.0240) * 0.504103 * 1000
	c. (259.116 + 24.60 / 480.07) * 0.504103 * 1000
	VGM Amount = 297.9177
	Note: The VGM Amount field is not calculated for ASSY1, ASSY2, ASSY3, and OUTSOURCE MFG Types.

VGM/Hr	Default calculation for Variable Gross Margin per Hour
	Calculation:
	a. (((Total Revenue - Commissions) - Prod Cost - Operation Cost - Material Cost) + (Fixed Machine Rate * Prod Hrs)) / (Total Revenue - Commissions) * (Unit Price * Qty) / Prod Hrs
	b. ((480.10 - 0.0240) - 194.65 - 0 - 26.31) + (10 * 2.46) / (480.10 - 0.0240) * (0.504103 * 1000) / 2.46
	c. (((259.116 + 24.60) / 480.07) * 504.103) / 2.46
	<b>VGM/Hr</b> = 121.10
	If the Calculation Parameters 'Include Machine Startup in VGM/Hr & Net Value/Hr' and 'Include Machine Setup in VGM/Hr & Net Value/Hr' are checked the calculations will include those values.
	(((Total Revenue - Commissions) - Prod Cost - Operation Cost - Material Cost) + (Fixed Machine Rate * Prod Hrs)) / (Total Amount - Commissions) / Prod Hrs + (Machine Setup Hours + Machine Startup Hours)
	b. ((480.10 - 0.0240) - 194.65 - 0 - 26.31) + (10 * 2.46) / (480.10 - 0.0240) * (0.504103 * 1000) / (2.46 + 2 + 0.25)
	c. (((259.116 + 24.60) / 480.07) * 504.103) / 4.71
	<b>VGM/Hr</b> = 63.252
	Note: The VGM/Hr field is not calculated for ASSY1, ASSY2, ASSY3, and OUTSOURCE MFG Types.
By-product Qty	For Thermoform and TFORM2 MFG Types only:
	By-product quantity * Quote Qty
Skeleton Cost	For Thermoform and TFORM2 MFG Types only:
	Skeleton Weight * Cost/Lb

## Calculations for LBS/K

The following chart explains the calculations used by **EnterpriselQ** in figuring the pounds of material required per thousand cycles (LBS/K).

Runner & Sprue	= 2 gr.
Scrap %	= 5%
Yield	= (100 - Scrap) / 100
Cav. Weight	= 3 gr. NOTE, if you have a quote with more than one item attached, each item will need to be summed up separately (individually).

Regrind %	= 20% (See below for the formula that includes zero regrind %)
AB	= AA x (Regrind % / 100)
Units per Cycle	= 4
Cavities	= 4
АА	= (Cav x Part Weight + (Runner/Sprue)) / Yield

**If Regrind = 0%** then the following formula would apply:

((Cav x Part Weight) + Runner & Sprue) / Yield x 1000 / 453.6

Regrind generated per 1000 item run

(AA - (Cav. x Cav. Weight)) x 1000 / 453.59

**If Regrind is >0%** then one of the following formulas would apply depending on the comparison of shot weight less the shot weight times the regrind % to the cavity times part weight:

If (AA - AB) < (Cav x Part Weight) then BB = (Cav x Part Weight) + (Sprue x defined percent of runner and sprue\*)

or If (AA - AB) > (Cav x Part Weight) then BB = AA - AB

\* The Defined percentage of runner and sprue can be set up for Injection and Diecast MFG Types, and for Custom MFG Types that default to Injection and Diecast, from Mfg Types->File menu->Alter LBS/K Calculation. (See Alter LBS/K Calculation in the Manufacturing Types section). The default is 10%.

The first calculation checks to see if the Shot Weight less the Shot Weight times the Regrind Percentage is LESS than the Cavity weight total. If so, then the new Shot Weight (BB) will be equal to the total cavity weight plus the runner/sprue weight times defined percent of runner and sprue\*. If not, then the second formula is invoked.

### BB X 1000 / 453.6 / Units

Regrind generated per 1000 item run

(BB - (Cav x Part Weight)) x 1000 / 453.59

# **Individual Pricing**

For a quote with more than one item number, this allows viewing and optimizing of the price and viewing of cost information for each item produced in the process, as shown below:

in in anna da	al Pricing for	136-PASO				_			2	Х
						I	•			¢
Item #	Description	n Class	Revision		Ext	Des	criptio	on		^
FAM5 A	FAM5 A	FG	Α							
FAM5 B	FAM5 B	FG	В							
										$\checkmark$
										_
				⊲	⊲		ÞI	ð	х	6
Quantity	100		1000		4			ð	×	<b>(°</b>
Quantity Unit Price	100	2.253	1000	⊲ 1	⊲ .397	► B		ø	×	<b>رد</b> م
Quantity Unit Price Unit Cost	100	2.253 2.079	1000 7 11	I⊲ 1 1	⊲ .3978 .301	► 8 1	Þ	ø	×	<b>د</b> ^
Quantity Unit Price Unit Cost Price per LB	100 S	2.253 2.079 2.253	1000 7 1 7	I⊴ 1 1	⊲ .3978 .301 .3978	► B 1 B		1	×	<b>ب</b>
Quantity Unit Price Unit Cost Price per LB	100 S	2.253 2.079 2.253	1000 7 11 7	I⊲ 1 1	<ul> <li>.3978</li> <li>.301<sup>-</sup></li> <li>.3978</li> </ul>	► 8 1 8	<b>▶</b> I	¢	x	<b>ج</b>
Quantity Unit Price Unit Cost Price per LB	100 S	2.253 2.079 2.253	1000 7 11 7	I⊲ 1 1	.3978 .301 .301 .3978	► 8 1 8	►I	1	×	°
Quantity Unit Price Unit Cost Price per LB	100 S	2.253 2.079 2.253	1000 7 11 7	I⊲ 1 1	<ul> <li>.3978</li> <li>.301<sup>°</sup></li> <li>.3978</li> </ul>	► 8 1 8	I	1	×	<b>°</b>
To access this option select the Individual button 🚨 near the top of the calculations tab.

The individual prices and costs will display. The user can **Optimize** the price for an individual item by typing over the calculated price. The new pricing will be summed up to the total unit price. The optimized individual pricing will be carried over to inventory when the RFQ is converted to a BOM.

Select the item number from the upper display grid to display the price and cost information on a per item basis.

The calculation used depends on the Quotation Parameter 'Overhead Calculation (Family Configurations)' (Quotation Parameters->General tab).

The Quotation Parameter 'Overhead Calculation (Family Configurations)' is set to: **'Based on total number of cavities'** 

Unit Cost	The cost to make the product per individual item.
	Example scenario:
	<ul> <li>Family tool with two items</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Item A has 2 std cavities</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Item B has 3 std cavities</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Units/Cycle = 2</li> </ul>
	Calculation when 'Based on total number of cavities' is checked:
	Unit Cost = (((Prod Cost + Raw Material Cost + Extra Charges + Operation Cost) - Prod Cost) / (Std Cav/Units per Cycle) + Prod Cost / Quote Quantity
	Example Item B for Quote Qty of 100:
	a. ((((63 + 167.365 + 50 + 0) - 63) / (3/2)) + 63) / 100
	b. (((280.365 - 63) / 1.5) + 63) / 100
	c. ((217.365 / 1.5) + 63) / 100
	d. 207.91 / 100
	e. 2.0791
	Raw Material Cost per item = ((Total Lbs Req * (Std Cav for item/Total Cavities)) * Cost/LB) + Components and Packaging assigned to item
	Raw Material Calculation for Item B:
	a. ((374.99 * (3/5)) * 0.6672) + 17 + 0.25
	b. ((374.99 * 0.60) * 0.6672) + 17 + 0.25
	c. 224.994 + 17 + 0.25
	d. 150.115 + 17 + 0.25
	e. 167.365
	Prod Cost per item = Total Prod Cost * (Units per Cycle/Total Cavities)
	Prod Cost Calculation for Item B:
	a. 157.50 * (2/5)
	b. 157.50 * 0.4
	c. 63
	Note:
	Total Lbs Req = Lbs Req from Calculations tab per quote quantity
	Total Prod Cost = Prod Cost from Calculations tab per quote quantity

Prod Cost         157.50         382.50           Operation Cost         1,000.00         10,000.00           Prod Markup         15.75         38.25           Total Prod Cost         1,173.25         10,420.75           Fix % MarkUp         10.00         10.00           Lbs Req         374.99         2,624.99	Prod Cost         157.50         382.50           Operation Cost         1,000.00         10,000.00           Prod Markup         15.75         38.25           Total Prod Cost         1,173.25         10,420.75           Fix % MarkUp         10.00         10.00           Lbs Req         374.99         2,624.99	Prod Cost         157.50         382.50           Operation Cost         1,000.00         10,000.00           Prod Markup         15.75         38.25           Total Prod Cost         1,173.25         10,420.75           Fix % MarkUp         10.00         10.00           Lbs Req         374.99         2,624.99	Prod Cost         157.50         382.50           Operation Cost         1,000.00         10,000.00           Prod Markup         15.75         38.25           Total Prod Cost         1,173.25         10,420.75           Fix % MarkUp         10.00         10.00           Lbs Req         374.99         2,624.99	Prod Cost 157.50 382.50 Operation Cost 1 000.00 10 000.0
Operation Cost         1,000.00         10,000.00           Prod Markup         15.75         38.25           Total Prod Cost         1,173.25         10,420.75           Fix % MarkUp         10.00         10.00           Lbs Req         374.99         2,624.99	Operation Cost         1,000.00         10,000.00           Prod Markup         15.75         38.25           Total Prod Cost         1,173.25         10,420.79           Fix % MarkUp         10.00         10.00           Lbs Req         374.99         2,624.99	Operation Cost         1,000.00         10,000.00           Prod Markup         15.75         38.25           Total Prod Cost         1,173.25         10,420.79           Fix % MarkUp         10.00         10.00           Lbs Req         374.99         2,624.99	Operation Cost         1,000.00         10,000.00           Prod Markup         15.75         38.25           Total Prod Cost         1,173.25         10,420.75           Fix % MarkUp         10.00         10.00           Lbs Req         374.99         2,624.99	Operation Cost 1 000.00 10 000.0
Prod Markup         15.75         38.25           Total Prod Cost         1,173.25         10,420.75           Fix % MarkUp         10.00         10.00           Lbs Req         374.99         2,624.99	Prod Markup         15.75         38.25           Total Prod Cost         1,173.25         10,420.75           Fix % MarkUp         10.00         10.00           Lbs Req         374.99         2,624.99	Prod Markup         15.75         38.25           Total Prod Cost         1,173.25         10,420.79           Fix % MarkUp         10.00         10.00           Lbs Req         374.99         2,624.99	Prod Markup         15.75         38.25           Total Prod Cost         1,173.25         10,420.75           Fix % MarkUp         10.00         10.00           Lbs Req         374.99         2,624.99	
Total Prod Cost       1,173.25       10,420.75         Fix % MarkUp       10.00       10.00         Lbs Req       374.99       2,624.99	Total Prod Cost         1,173.25         10,420.75           Fix % MarkUp         10.00         10.00           Lbs Req         374.99         2,624.99	Total Prod Cost         1,173.25         10,420.79           Fix % MarkUp         10.00         10.00           Lbs Req         374.99         2,624.99	Total Prod Cost         1,173.25         10,420.75           Fix % MarkUp         10.00         10.00           Lbs Req         374.99         2,624.99	Prod Markup 15.75 38.25
Fix % MarkUp         10.00         10.00           Lbs Req         374.99         2,624.99	Fix % MarkUp         10.00         10.00           Lbs Req         374.99         2,624.99	Fix % MarkUp         10.00         10.00           Lbs Req         374.99         2,624.99	Fix % MarkUp         10.00         10.00           Lbs Req         374.99         2,624.99	Total Prod Cost 1,173.25 10,420.7
Lbs Req 374.99 2,624.99	Fix % MarkUp 10.00 10.00			
				Lbs Reg 374.99 2,624.99
				Lbs Req 374.99 2,624.99

Unit Price	Suggested sales price per individual item. This value includes markup for production and materials if applicable. In this example the markup percent for both production and materials is 10%
	Calculation when 'Based on total number of cavities' is checked:
	<b>Unit Price</b> = (((Prod Cost + Raw Material Cost + Extra Charges + Operation Cost) - Prod Cost) / (Std Cav/Units per Cycle) + Prod Cost / Quote Quantity
	Example Item B for Quote Qty of 100:
	a. ((((69.3 + 184.1015 + 50 + 0) - 69.3) / (3/2)) + 69.3) / 100
	b. (((303.4015 - 69.3) / 1.5) + 69.3) / 100
	c. ((234.1015 / 1.5) + 69.3) / 100
	d. 225.3676 / 100
	e. 2.2537
	Raw Material Cost per item = ((Total Lbs Req * (Std Cav for item/Total Cavities)) * Cost/LB) + Components and Packaging assigned to item + material mark up
	Raw Material Calculation for Item B:
	a. ((374.99 * (3/5)) * 0.6672) + 17 + 0.25) * 1.1
	b. ((374.99 * 0.60) * 0.6672) + 17 + 0.25 * 1.1
	c. 224.994 + 17 + 0.25 * 1.1
	d. 150.115 + 17 + 0.25 * 1.1
	e. 167.365 * 1.1
	f. 184.1015
	<b>Prod Cost per item</b> = Total Prod Cost * (Units per Cycle/Total Cavities) * 1+ production mark up
	Prod Cost Calculation for Item B:
	a. (157.50 * (2/5)) * 1.1
	b. (157.50 * 0.4) * 1.1
	c. 63 * 1.1
	d. 69.3
Price/LBS	The Price/Lbs field is calculated by taking the Unit Price and dividing by the weight of the individual part in pounds (no runner and sprue).
	a. 2.2537 / 1
	b. 2.2537

The Quotation Parameter 'Overhead Calculation (Family Configurations)' is set to: 'Based on unique item numbers'

Unit Cost	The cost to make the product per individual item.									
	Example scenario:									
	Family tool with two items									
	<ul> <li>Item A has 2 std cavities</li> </ul>									
	<ul> <li>Item B has 3 std cavities</li> </ul>									
	<ul> <li>Units/Cycle = 2</li> </ul>									
	Calculation when 'Based on unique item numbers' is checked:									
	<b>Unit Cost</b> = (((Prod Cost + Raw Material Cost + Extra Charges + Operation Cost) / (Std Cav/Units per Cycle) / Quote Quantity									
	Example Item B for Quote Qty of 100:									
	a. ((78.75 + 167.365 + 50 + 0) / (3/2) / 100									
	b. ((296.115 / 1.5) / 100									
	c. 197.41 / 100									
	d. 1.9741									
	Raw Material Cost per item = ((Total Lbs Req * (Std Cav for item/Total Cavities)) * Cost/LB) + Components and Packaging assigned to item									
	Raw Material Calculation for Item B:									
	a. ((374.99 * (3/5)) * 0.6672) + 17 + 0.25									
	b. ((374.99 * 0.60) * 0.6672) + 17 + 0.25									
	c. 224.994 + 17 + 0.25									
	d. 150.115 + 17 + 0.25									
	e. 167.365									
	Prod Cost per item = Total Prod Cost /(# of unique items made/Std Cav) * Std Cav									
	Prod Cost Calculation for Item B:									
	a. (157.50 / 2) / 3 * 3									
	b. 78.75 / 3 * 3									
	c 78 75									
	Note:									
	Total Lbs Reg = Lbs Reg from Calculations tab per quote quantity									
	Total Prod Cost = Prod Cost from Calculations tab per quote quantity									
	Start Hrs 0.42 0.42									
	Prod Cost 157.50 382.50									
	Operation Cost 1,000.00 10,000.00									
	Prod Markup 15.75 38.25									
	Total Prod Cost 1,173.25 10,420.75									
	Fix % MarkUp 10.00 10.00									
	Ibs Page 374.00 2.624.00									
	LD3 NCQ 3/4.75 2,024.75									

Unit Price	Suggested sales price per individual item. This value includes markup for production and materials if applicable. In this example the markup percent for both production and materials is 10%						
	Calculation when 'Based on unique item numbers' is checked:						
	<b>Unit Price</b> = (((Prod Cost + Raw Material Cost + Extra Charges + Operation Cost) / (Std Cav/Units per Cycle) / Quote Quantity						
	Example Item B for Quote Qty of 100:						
	a. ((86.625 + 184.1015 + 50 + 0) / (3/2)) / 100						
	b. (320.7265 / 1.5) / 100						
	c. 213.818 / 100						
	d. 2.1382						
	Raw Material Cost per item = ((Total Lbs Req * (Std Cav for item/Total Cavities)) * Cost/LB) + Components and Packaging assigned to item + material mark up						
	Raw Material Calculation for Item B:						
	a. ((374.99 * (3/5)) * 0.6672) + 17 + 0.25) * 1.1						
	b. ((374.99 * 0.60) * 0.6672) + 17 + 0.25 * 1.1						
	c. 224.994 + 17 + 0.25 * 1.1						
	d. 150.115 + 17 + 0.25 * 1.1						
	e. 167.365 * 1.1						
	f. 184.1015						
	<b>Prod Cost per item</b> = Total Prod Cost /(# of unique items made/Std Cav) * Std Cav * 1 + production mark up						
	Prod Cost Calculation for Item B:						
	a. ((157.50 / 2) / 3 * 3) * 1.1						
	b. ((78.75 / 3) * 3) * 1.1						
	c. 78.75 * 1.1						
	d. 86.625						
Price/LBS	The Price/Lbs field is calculated by taking the Unit Price and dividing by the weight of the individual part in pounds (no runner and sprue).						
	a. 2.1382 / 1						
	b. 2.1382						

**Note**: Quote Costs will match Standard Costs when the 'Use Master Inventory Std Cost for Component Pricing instead of Price Breaks' Quote Parameter is checked, the 'Attached Components Scrap Calculation' Quote Parameter is set to 'Based on (1/1-Scrap)', and the 'Use Std Cost in Engineering Quote' Inventory parameter (Inventory->Additional tab) must be checked for inventory items associated to the quote.

# **Printing the Quote Letter**

You can create a new document using Word and save it as a template with a .dot extension. A bookmark is needed in the Word template if you want the \*.rpt file (Crystal report) to be inserted in a particular place in the letter. The bookmark is created in the Word template (using the Insert/Bookmark function). It does not matter what it is named, the system knows to put the data output of the .rpt file into the location of the bookmark. If the user chooses to omit the bookmark, then the \*.rpt file will be inserted at the top of the quote letter.

You can create your own Word templates and use the SETUP button (within the Quote Letter screen) to let the program know what template to use for letter generation.

**Note**: In order to use this feature, Microsoft Word must be installed on the workstation. If it is not installed this option will not be available.

### **Creating/Printing a Quote Letter**

To print a Quote Letter, complete the following steps:

Creating the Quote Letter can be accessed from the main menu bar (within Quoting) under Reports, or from the Calculations screen by selecting the **Print Letter** button at the top of the screen. In either case, the following screen will appear:

Quote Letters -	· □ ×
	New
#         Library         Document Descriptio         Library Descript         Print With         File Name	Edit
	Print
	Printer Setup
	Setup
< >	
New Letter Options          Include QLETTER.RPT output         Generate from IQquote.dot template	
Quote Letter Library Default Library	

- Make sure that both options shown under 'New Letter Options' are checked. If a template does not exist, a prompt will appear at the bottom of the screen next to the 'Generate from...' field.
- Click on 'Setup' to select the correct paths for the Crystal Report and MS Word template. The following screen will appear:

I New Quote Letter Set			×				
Crystal Report	QLETTER.RPT			•••			
MS Word Template C:\/QMS\/QWin32\Reports\/Qquote.dot							
Quote Letter File Path				•••			
	ОК		Cancel				

The Crystal Report that populates is based on a hierarchy. The system will first check if the Customer assigned to the quote has a specific Engineering Quote Letter report assigned (Customer Maintenance->Forms/Reports tab). If not, it will use the default Quote Letter report assigned in System Parameters->Reports and Forms tab.

Select the ellipsis button in each field and select the location where the report and template reside. If you are selecting a Crystal Report, the following screen will appear:

I Select Crystal Report X									
$\leftarrow$ $\rightarrow$ $\checkmark$ $\uparrow$ IQWin32 $\rightarrow$ reports $\checkmark$ $\circlearrowright$ Search reports $ ho$									
Organize 🔻 New folde	er								
V 📙 IQMS 🔥	Name	Date modified	Туре ^						
> BIN	➔ 7D_CAR_detail.rpt	5/6/2019 3:06 PM	Crysta						
V 🔤 IQWin32	分 8D_CAR_detail.rpt	5/6/2019 3:06 PM	Crysta						
auto_eform	→ accrcpt_asof.rpt	5/6/2019 3:06 PM	Crysta						
Documents	→ accrcpt_asof_ES.rpt	5/6/2019 3:06 PM	Crysta						
EIQ_Icons	Interpote a state of the second secon	5/6/2019 3:06 PM	Crysta						
> ExternalLab	accrcpt_asof_price_ES.rpt	5/6/2019 3:06 PM	Crysta						
HelpFiles	accrcpt_asofper_price.rpt	5/6/2019 3:06 PM	Crysta						
IOWin22	accrcpt_asofper_price_ES.rpt	5/6/2019 3:06 PM	Crysta						
	accrcpt_asofperiod.rpt	5/6/2019 3:06 PM	Crysta						
locales	accrcpt_asofperiod_ES.rpt	5/6/2019 3:06 PM	Crysta						
pdfParser	Y accrcpt_edi.rpt	5/6/2019 3:06 PM	Crysta						
Printing	→ accrcpt_release.rpt	5/6/2019 3:06 PM	Crysta						
🔒 reports 🗸 🗸	<ul> <li>accrent release all rnt</li> </ul>	5/6/2019 3-06 PM	Crysta *						
File na	ame: QLETTER.RPT	*.rpt	~						
		Open (	Cancel						

- Select the correct report and click on 'Open'. You will be returned to the New Quote Letter settings screen.
- > Click on [**OK**] when both paths are correct.
- Quote Letter File Path This allows the user to set a default location to save quote letters when the Default Library is used. A UNC path is recommended. When a quote is printed the user will still have the option to edit this file path temporarily for individual quote letters. If this field is not filled in, the system defaults to save the quote letter in the IQWin32 local home or the previous path user selected.

**Quote Letter Library** - By default the quote letters are added to the Default Library. A different library can be selected by clicking the ellipsis button in this field to access the list of document libraries. This list is soft filtered to display libraries from the EPlant the user is logged into as well as those not associated to an EPlant. The library selected is remembered in the registry for the Windows user. When the quote letter is created the UNC path associated to the library will display when entering the quote letter name. This location should not be changed. If it is the document will be highlighted red indicating the file does not exist in the library path.

**Note**: Currently the quote letter is added to the library without the Owner field populated. If the selected library is a Secure or Approval type library an owner will need to be added to the document before it can be checked out.

### **Creating a New Quote Letter**

To CREATE a new quote letter:

From the Quote Letter screen, click on 'New' to create the letter using Microsoft<sup>®</sup> Word. The following screen will appear:

IQ Enter new quote letter name X								
	QMS > IQWin32 > ↓ ♂	Search IQWin32	Q					
Organize 🔻 New fol	der		•					
Update Docs	Name	Date modified	Туре					
ineDrive 🍊	Temp	1/4/2019 3:41 PM	File folder					
<b>T</b> : <b>D</b>	RFQ_Print	12/5/2018 1:49 PM	File folder					
PC This PC	SERIAL_BAY	8/30/2018 3:39 PM	File folder					
🧊 3D Objects	NETWORK	1/16/2018 8:29 AM	File folder					
📃 Desktop	scan_image	12/12/2017 4:26 PM	File folder					
Documents	Viewers	6/16/2017 12:47 PM	File folder					
🕂 Downloads	locales	8/17/2016 9:33 PM	File folder					
b Music								
E Pictures								
😽 Videos								
느 Windows (C:) 👻	< <		>					
File name: C:\	Program Files (x86)\IQMS\IQWin32\8_PASO_1.	doc	~					
Save as type: *.do	c		~					
∧ Hide Folders		Save Car	ncel .::					

The file name defaults to the RFQ# \_# (the number of the letter, 1 for the first time a letter is created). You may override the default name and enter a new name for the quote letter (in the File Name field) followed by the extension. Select the location where the letter should be saved. Make sure to save the quote letter to a location on the network that other users would have access to. Press [Save] to continue. The system will create an entry in the Quote Entry screen and also bring up the Quote Template in Word in the background. Using Word, you can make any adjustments necessary prior to printing the letter.

### Modifying an Existing Quote Letter

To MODIFY an existing Quote Letter:

- > From the Quote Letter screen, select the letter to modify and click on 'Edit'. The document will appear for Editing.
- > Make sure to save the document after Editing.

### **Deleting a Quote Letter**

To Delete a quote letter:

From within the Quote Letter screen, select the letter to delete and click on the 'Delete' [-] key. The following prompt will appear:

Delete Document	_		×
Detach this letter from the quote?			
ОК		Cancel	

- Click on the box next to 'Delete physical file' and click on [OK]. This deletes the letter from the selection list.
- To exit from the Quote Letter screen, click on the [X] located in the upper right corner of this screen.

### Printing the Quote Letter

To Print a quote letter:

- From the Quote Letter screen, click on the 'Print' button. This will output the letter directly to the printer without reviewing.
- > To review the letter before printing, click on 'Edit' from the Quote Letter screen. This will bring up the letter in Microsoft® Word where changes can be made.
- Select the print option from the main menu bar within the Word screen, or select File\_>Print. This will output the letter to the printer.

### Printing When Workflow is Enabled for Quotes

Printing the quote letter for an engineering quote with an associated workflow that is not approved is not allowed without security to select 'Continue'.

A Quote letter cannot be printed under following conditions:

- If workflow mandatory is checked and workflow has not been approved.
- If workflow mandatory is checked and active workflow.
- If workflow mandatory is unchecked and active workflow.

If the quote letter cannot be printed a form will appear showing the items with unapproved workflows, or ones that require a workflow be created. This form will state the status of the workflow which will be 'Inactive', 'Pending', or 'Required'. If it is 'Required' the Workflow # and the Workflow Status columns will display in red. Users can right click and jump to the Engineering Quote or the Workflow associated to the highlighted record. Security is available on this form for the Jump To options and the Continue button. If security is not enabled on the Continue button users will not be able to perform the action. This button can also be made not visible so users will only see the Cancel button. The quote letter will print if Continue is selected.

[	III Engineering Quote Unapproved Workflows -								×	
T c	The following items have unapproved workflows or require a workflow to be created and approved based on your current quote settings. Do you still want to print the quote letter?							d		
	#		ltem #	Description	Class	Revision	Workflow #	Workflow Status	RFQ #	^
Þ		1	TD-100T	TD-100T	FG		84-PASO	Inactive	165-PASO	
		1	TD-100T INJ	TD-100T INJ	WP	3		Required	165-1	
Jump to Engineering Quote										
Jump to Workflow										
								$\mathbf{v}$		
	Continue Cancel							Cancel		

Quote letter can be printed under following conditions:

- If workflow mandatory is unchecked and no active workflow
- If workflow mandatory is checked and workflow is approved

# Converting a Quote to a BOM

To convert a quote to a BOM, follow the steps below.

- > Select the quote to convert from the quote pick list.
- Click on the Calculation tab and then click on the 'Convert' button at the top of the screen, or select File->Convert to BOM from the main menu. The following screen will appear.

Convert Quote (RFQ # 215-1)			_		×
File Help					
₩ <b>=</b> ==					
▶ RFQ # 215-1	BOM Current RFQ New Manufacturing # RFQ Labor BOM Labor	215-1 1 1 1			
Update User-Defined Form	Convert/Sales Order	Convert		Cancel	

To review the information on all items and attached packaging/components, click on the Full Expand button. This allows the user to identify all items that are not currently in Master Inventory prior to converting the quote and to make any changes to the item number or description of new items prior to conversion.

**Note**: Items that exist only in the quote inventory and not master inventory will be displayed with an orange star on the folder.

- > Enter the new Manufacturing Number
- Enter the BOM Labor information (note this will not apply to quotes for the Outsource MFG Type). Click on the ellipsis button to bring up the BOM Labor form. Enter in the number of operators and a code (employee level) for each labor type required. Users can access the Employee Level list to add or edit the records by clicking the icon in the top left corner of the

form <sup>2</sup>. (Security is available on this button).

- Scrap % If the 'Use Scrap % by Quantity Breaks' parameter is checked in the Miscellaneous menu->Rate and Parameters, a Scrap % field will display on the Convert Quote form to enter the scrap % to apply to the BOM.
- Click on each item attached, make any changes as necessary and click on the 'Apply' button after each change. A red check mark will appear in each folder that is reviewed. Note: A description must be entered for each item or the quote cannot be converted to a BOM, because the description field is mandatory in BOMs.
- For manufactured items there is an option to also enter the AKA Item information (number, revision, and description) and have the pricing populate AKA Selling in inventory. The AKA pricing will populate in inventory if an AKA Item # is entered and the 'Update Inventory AKA Price Breaks' option is checked. When the quote is converted to a BOM the pricing will populate both the Selling section of the Buy/Sell pricing tab as well as the AKA Selling tab. The customer listed will be the one associated to the quote.

Convert Quote (RFQ # 215-1)			_		×
File Help					
₽≣ ==					
RFQ # 215-1 120718 FG - 120718 FG 120718 WP - 120718 WP 120718 WP - 120718 WP MM-120718 - RM-120718	Inventory Class Unit Item # Revision Description Extended Description AKA Item # AKA Revision AKA Description Update Inventory AK BOM Current RFQ New Manufacturing # RFQ Labor BOM Labor	FG       ✓         120718 FG       □         120718 FG       □         120718 FG       □         120718 FG       □         215-1       □         120718       □         1       □         1       □		Apply	
Update User-Defined Form	Convert/Sales Or	der Convert		Cancel	

- Update User-Defined Form Select this option to have the fields from the user-defined form in the quote module copy over to matching BOM user-defined fields. Note: The structure of the fields in the BOM user-defined form must match the structure of the fields in the Quote user-defined form in order for the information to be copied over. This is Mfg Type specific. For example, the user-defined form for Generic Mfg Type quotes must be identical (Field Type, Field Kind, Label, etc.) to the user-defined form for Generic Mfg Type BOMs.
- Click on 'Convert' to proceed with the conversion process. The system will create the new configuration and automatically add any new item(s) to the Master Inventory along with the quantity and price break information. The packaging items' sequence numbers in the BOM will be based on the order they are attached to the quote.

**Converting to an Existing BOM** - When converting to a BOM or converting to BOM/Sales Order, all levels of the quote can also be converted to existing BOMs. Instead of creating a new BOM number type in an existing BOM number. When selecting the Convert or Convert//Sales Order buttons a confirm message will appear stating, "The manufacturing number 'xyz' already exists. This configuration will be replaced. Do you want to continue?". This message will appear for all levels of a multi-level quote when the same configuration number is entered. The pop up message includes a Yes and No button as well as the 'Do not show next time check box. Security can be placed on this form. If the user has security to select Yes, the configurations will be replaced. All of the settings that are not available in the Quote will be preserved as it was on the BOM before the conversion. For example, the Dispo by Cycles check box on attached components will stay as it was on the original BOM before the conversion from the quote. If No is selected the user will be taken back to the Convert Quote screen and no level of the quote will be converted to a BOM. **Note**: If there is more than one BOM with the same exact MFG #, but just a different routing sequence, the system will only update the first MFG # it finds.

### Notes:

More than one manufacturing number may be required if the quote has manufactured sub-components attached that exist only as quoted items.

When converting a quote to a BOM or BOMs (for multi-level quotes), any attached components (including manufactured components) that are created during the convert will have the prices breaks written to the "Buy" pricing in inventory. However, if the item is associated to a Vendor RFQ the AKA Buying tab will be automatically populated with the vendor(s) and price break(s) from its Vendor RFQ.

When converting a WIP item to a BOM, the center type populates based on the quote, if this is changed on the BOM and that WIP item is attached to a new quote as a consumed item, if the 'New Mfg #' field is not changed when converting the new quote to a BOM, the WIP item's BOM's center type field will revert back to what it was in the quote module (the BOM control # is updated). If the 'New Mfg #' field is modified for the WIP item, then the original WIP BOM retains the updated work center type and the new WIP BOM has the quote work center type. Essentially the dependent manufactured items are reconverted based on the quote.

If the MFG Type has a default 'Shift Backflush Rule' (MFG Types->General tab) the default Shift Backflush Rule will be used when converting a quote to BOM for the designated MFG Type.

When converting a quote to a BOM, the system allows users to convert an archived Quote if it has never been converted before, or if the user enters a new MFG number every time they convert (new Manufacturing# is not found in the STANDARD table).

When converting a quote to a BOM the system will truncate the Quote description to 50 characters as that is the maximum allowed on the BOM Description field.

The Internal and External Documents attached to the quote will carry over to the BOM with the 'Print With' set to None.

If there are two quote inventory items with the same item name and are consumed as components in the same BOM, an error will display stating, "Engineering quote has the same Quote Inventory record added multiple times. Quote Item # xxx Quote ID = xxx and Quote Item xxx Quote ID = yyy. Please correct by removing one or more of the same quote inventory items before converting to a BOM."

If the 'System-Generated Inventory#' option is enabled in System Parameters->Sequential Numbering tab the system will populate the Item # with the next sequential number. The value can be overwritten if desired. There will also be an additional field on the 'Convert Quote' form displaying the 'Quote Item' # for reference. This field is grayed out and cannot be edited.

The following message may appear if some of the items were not reviewed:

Confirm	×	
1	Some of the Items were not reviewed. Do you want to convert anyway?	
	Yes No	

When the quote has been converted the user will receive a prompt that the conversion was completed successfully.

> Click on 'OK' to return to the main screen.

### **Customer Status**

When a customer is assigned to a quote that has a status other than Active, when converting the quote to a BOM, the customer's status will not change to Active if the customer's current status is Cr Hold, Ship Hold, or Mfg Hold. The system will change the status to 'Active' if the customer's current status is Inactive, Quote, or Obsolete.

### Convert to BOM and Create a Sales Order

To convert a quote to a BOM and create a Sales Order at the same time, follow the steps above until all items have been reviewed and you are ready to convert to the BOM. Instead of clicking on the 'Convert' button, click on the 'Convert/Order' button to proceed with the conversion process and create the BOM and the Sales Order. If a customer is not associated to the quote the user will receive a warning and will not be able to continue creating the sales order, however the quote will still be converted to a BOM.

When the quote has been converted the user will receive a prompt that the conversion was completed successfully and the Sales Order form for the quoted item will be shown on the screen. If a Sales Order Note is associated with the customer (Customer Maintenance->Misc tab) it will appear on the screen with the sales order.

### **Engineering Quote Workflow Limitations**

When using the workflow functionality for Engineering Quotes the system will prevent users converting to a BOM when a workflow is not approved for an item or its component quotes (this includes quotes for attached main materials). The system will restrict actions if the same level or lower level quote workflow is not approved.

A Quote Item cannot be converted to BOM or BOM/Sales Order under following conditions:

- If workflow mandatory is checked and workflow has not been approved.
- If workflow mandatory is checked and active workflow.
- If workflow mandatory is unchecked and active workflow.

If the quote cannot be converted to a BOM, or BOM/Sales Order a form will appear showing the items with unapproved workflows, or ones that require a workflow be created. Users can right click and jump to the Engineering Quote or the Workflow associated to the highlighted record.

	<b>Q</b> E	Eng	jineering Q	uote Unapp	oroved Workfle	ows			_		×
T o	he f n y	foll our	owing item r current qu	s have unap ote settings	proved workf	lows or re	quire a workflo	ow to b	e created and	approved bas	sed
	#		Item #	Descriptio	on Class	Revision	Workflow #	Wo	rkflow Status	RFQ #	~
		1	WF-200	WF-200	FG		82-PASO	Per	nding	161-PASO	
Þ		1	WF-100	WF-100	FG		80-PASO	Per	nding	157-PASO	
					Jump t	o Enginee	ring Quote				
					Jump t	o Workflo	w				
											~
										OK	

Quote Item can be converted to BOM or BOM/Sales Order under following conditions:

- If workflow mandatory is unchecked and no active workflow
- If workflow mandatory is checked and workflow is approved

# Converting a BOM to a Quote from the Engineering Quote Module

A single level BOM or multiple level BOMs can be converted to a Quote. This process will always make a new quote even if a quote exists for the exact BOM.

From the File menu in Quoting select New->Convert from BOM. There are two options: 'Convert to Quote (Single Level' and 'Convert to Quote (Multi Level)'.

### Convert to Quote (Single Level)

After selecting this option, a pick list of BOMs associated to the EPlant the user is logged into will appear. Select a BOM from the list. A pop up form will appear with a field to enter the New RFQ # that will be created and a Revision.

- Enter New RFQ # If the 'Enabled' checkbox is checked for the System-Generated RFQ # in System
  Parameters->Sequential Numbering tab, this field will be populated with the next sequential number.
  If the enabled option is not checked thisi field will be blank for the user to enter a value manually.
- Enter New Version The revision field defaults to 1.

If the RFQ # and Revision already exist a warning will appear stating this.

IQ	Convert BOM to Quote	-		×
Enter New RFQ #	132-PASO			
Enter New Revision	1			
	Update Component Pricing Update Standard Cost			
	ОК		Cance	9

- Select the Update Component Pricing box to have the system update the quote inventory price breaks and currently assigned price breaks with the Master Inventory price breaks from the Buying section (Buy/Sell tab). If the Update Component Pricing option is not selected, the pricing for purchased materials will come from the Buying section of the Buy/Sell tab in inventory for the item (never the AKA Buying section) *unless* the raw material is already in the Quote Inventory list. If it is in the Quote Inventory list, the system will use that pricing even if it is null. If the 'Update component pricing' is checked but the item has the 'Use Standard Cost in Engineering Quote' option checked (Additional tab in Inventory) then the system will not update the price breaks in the quote module.
- If the Update Standard Cost option is checked, items (primary material or attached materials) that have the 'Use Standard Cost in Engineering Quote' option checked will have the standard cost update in the price breaks in the quote module. If the item does not have the use standard cost option checked the system will update the price breaks based on the Buying section based on the Update Component Pricing check box.
- If the 'Quote Due Date is Mandatory' default value (in Quotation Parameters) is checked the user must enter a due date for the new quote.

Select OK and a message will appear stating: 'Mfg # [BOM #] has been successfully converted to RFQ # [RFQ#]/ Rev #'. Select OK on the message and the new quote will open. All of the values from the fields in the BOM will populate into the quote such as Cell, Operators, Labor Rate, Cycle Time, Scrap, etc.

**Note**: The Units/Cycle field on the RFQ will default to one and should be updated to reflect the correct value.

**Note**: Since a specific Work Center # is not associated to a BOM, when converting a BOM to a Quote using a Work Center with a Center Type that is also assigned to other Work Centers, the system will use the Center Rate, Fixed Center Rate, Setup Hours, and Startup Shots from the first Work Center created with that center type. To populate the fields for a specific work center, the user must select one by clicking the drop down or search button in the Work Center field on the quote and select Yes to the Confirm message to paste the values, then the rates associated to that work center will populate.

If the BOM is a Generic with attached items that are manufactured the system will first look in the quote database and if the item is found the system will use the quote prices. If the attached manufactured item cannot be found in the quote database, the system will use the pricing from the selling prices on the Buy/Sell Pricing tab in Inventory.

### Convert to Quote (Multi Level)

If the BOMs to be converted include several levels, select the 'Convert to Quote (Multi Level)' option from the File menu then select a BOM from the pick list. The following form will appear to enter the New RFQ # and Revision for all associated BOMs. If the 'Enabled' checkbox is checked for the System-Generated RFQ # in System Parameters->Sequential Numbering tab, the Enter New RFQ # field will be populated with the next sequential number for each BOM being converted.

**Note**: If the same BOM is listed multiple times (same BOM attached to multiple different sub-BOMs), a new RFQ # is needed for each instance.

Con	vert BOM (MFGNO	# 1200-CL-HLD-S) -	. 🗆	×
File Help ⊕≣ ■=				
MFGNO # 1200-CL-HLD-S	Enter New RFQ # Enter New Revision	134-PASO 0 Update Component Pricing Update Standard Cost		^
< >		Convert	Cancel	*

Highlight each BOM in the tree and enter the information in the fields. The check box options function the same as when converting to a single Quote.

# **Other Functions Available in Quoting**

## **Component Quantity Information**

Select the 'Component Quantity Information' button Select the 'Component Quantity Information' button Select the Calculations tab to view the components associated to the quote and their required quantity, Min Order Qty and calculated excess quantity.

🔟 Component Quantity Information - 🗆 🗙								
File Help								
Quote Qty 100	00 ~		⊲	⊲ ▶	M	୯		
Item #	Description	Qty Required	Min Order Qty	Excess		^		
BL-DFAR-RED	DFR-REDCC	97.809833						
AD-1340-ORANG	E ORANGE CONCENTRATE 1340	5000						
Ext Description						•		
Class	PL							
Rev								
On Hand Qty								
Non Commited C	ty							

The top of the form by default displays the first quantity on the quote. A different quantity can be selected from the drop down list. The Qty Required field will populate with the quantity required based on the selected Quote Qty. The Min Order Qty field populates with the master inventory item's 'Min Order Qty' value on the General tab in Master Inventory. The Excess value is calculated as the Qty Required minus the Min Order Qty.

The bottom of the form shows the Ext Description, Class and Rev of the component along with the current On Hand Qty and Non-Committed Qty. If the item exists in master inventory users can right click and select 'Jump to Inventory' and 'Jump to Locations and Transactions'.

**Note**: The Min Order Qty and Excess quantity will not be populated if the component item is not in Master Inventory.

# **Engineering Quote Workflow**

Workflow is a commonly used term that describes the automation of internal business operations and tasks to simplify and streamline current business processes. The Engineering Quote Workflow module is used to automate business processes relevant to quotes. This can lead to improved efficiency by helping the user to establish a template of tasks and assign the tasks to the right person with the right skills.

The Engineering Quote Workflow module allows you to create user-defined templates of the tasks (Elements and Checklists) that are required to complete the workflow for any type of quoting process. Emails are sent through a workflow process evaluation to the individuals responsible for the tasks, allowing for an emailed response back into the system. All of this information is maintained in a single form for reference. It is optional to utilize workflows in quoting. If it is being used it can be marked mandatory, which requires that workflows be performed for all quotes.

The information below outlines the steps in creating a Workflow in EnterpriseIQ as well as the details of the various sections of the Workflow form.

Steps for Using Workflows in Engineering Quotes:

- Activate Workflow Approval
- Create Quote Types
- Create an Approvers team
- Create templates
- Assign a template to the Workflow
- Enter in the general information
- Evaluate Workflow (email responsible team members)
- Perform items in checklists associated with the Workflow elements and mark the status of each checklist item
- Accept or Reject element

### **Activate Workflow Approval in Quotation Parameters**

The Engineering Quote Workflow module is an optional feature. In Quotation Parameters there are two settings relevant to Engineering Quote Workflow:

- Workflow Approval The workflow approval functionality is activated from the Quotation Parameters form accessed from the Miscellaneous menu ->Rates and Parameters by clicking the 'Workflow Approval' box. Once this is checked the workflow functionality will become available on the Engineering Quote->General Quote Values tab.
- Workflow Mandatory Workflow Approval can also be marked mandatory by checking the 'Workflow Mandatory' box. This will require users to create a workflow for all quotes. The Workflow Mandatory cannot be checked if Workflow Approval is not checked. Note: If the Workflow Approval check box is not checked and the user checks this box, the system will automatically check the Workflow Approval box.

IQ Quot	tation Parameter	S		_		×	
General Margin Gross	Default Values Display s Profit Margin % sup %	Rates and Quantities	Markup Tables	Current Quot	ation	Extra 🔳	•
Markup Perce Point	Method entage ts						
Commis Price Price	ssion Calculation + (Price * Commis / (1 - Commission	ssion) I)					
Overhe	ad Calculation (F d on unique item d on total numbe	amily Configurations) numbers r of cavities					
Attache Basec Basec	d Components S d on (1+Scrap) d on (1/1-Scrap)	crap Calculation					
Use M Use So Workf	laster Inventory S crap % by Quantit flow Approval Vorkflow Mandat	td Cost for Component y Breaks ory	Pricing instead o	of Price Breaks			
					Cl	ose	

### **Engineering Quote Types**

This is a user-defined list of quote types. Quote Types are associated to workflow approval templates, and are required to be entered on a quote when using the workflow approval functionality. This enables the system to automatically create a workflow for the correct template. Having a quote type associated to a specific template provides functionality to apply specific business logic to specific quotes, such as situations where different approvers are required for certain business lines, or specific templates may be needed based upon the estimator preparing the quote.

To access the Quote Types list select 'Engineering Quote Types' from the Options menu in Engineering Quotes. This list can also be accessed from System Parameters->List menu by selecting 'Engineering Quote Types'.

[	🔟 Engineering Quote Types – 🗆 🗙									X
F	ile Help									
			۹			٠	-	ø	×	୯
	Name	Desc	ripti	on						^
Þ	MATL CHANGE	MATI	ERIAI	L CH/	ANGE					
	NEW CUSTOMER	NEW	/ CUS	STON	IER					
	REQUOTE	REQ	UOTE	E						
										~

Select the insert record (+) button to add new quote types. Enter the Name and Description in the corresponding fields.

### **Approvers Team**

The Approvers Team can be accessed from the File menu the Engineering Quote module. This will access the same Team Member module available on the Quality tab of the Launcher Bar, and include all of the same functionality.

[	IQ Team Memb	er							_		>	<
F	ile Options	Help										
a	4 🐴 🖬 🔔					• •			•	- 1	ж	6
	Name	Title	Email	Work Path	User Name	Out Of Office	EPIa	nt ID	EQ	DOC	CAR	^
	Clark Kent		superman@localhost		SUPERMAN			1				
	Bruce Banner	Resea	hulk@localhost	C:\SecureForms\Temporary_Doc	HULK			1		$\sim$	$\checkmark$	
	Steve Rogers		captain@localhost	C:\SecureForms\Temporary_Doc	CAPTAIN			1		$\sim$	$\checkmark$	
	Thor of Asgard	Prince	thor@localhost	C:\SecureForms\Temporary_Doc	THOR			1		$\sim$	$\checkmark$	
	Natasha Roman	Spy	blackwidow@localhost	C:\SecureForms\Temporary_Doc	BLACKWIDO			1		$\sim$	$\checkmark$	
Þ	Joe Rogus		crogers@igms.com	C:\Chrisette TechNotes	JOE				$\square$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	
	Abigail Rogers		crogers@igms.com	C:\DOCS	ABIGAIL				$\checkmark$	$\sim$	$\checkmark$	
									$\square$	)		~
<											>	::

Select the 'EQ' check box for the Team Members that will be available in the Engineering Quote Workflows.

**Note**: Before a person can be added as team member, they must first be a user in the EnterpriselQ system. See the *Security and EnterpriselQ Manual https://my.iqms.com/cfs-file.ashx/\_\_key/HelpFile/15.3/security\_2D00\_and\_2D00\_enterpriseiq.pdf* for more information on creating users for EnterpriselQ. The users must have the WebDirect attribute checked.

### **Creating Approval Templates**

Create templates with tasks for any type of Engineering Quote functionality that you would like to track through the workflow process.

From the File menu select 'Approval Templates', then select 'New' on the pick list and the following form will appear:

IQ	Er	ngin	neering	Quote	Approva	al Templa	te						_				×
File	2	Hel	р														
Ge	ner	al	Extern	al Docu	ments												
æ									M	◄			٠	-	ø	×	6
N	am	e							De	escrip	otion						
Ki	nd		ENG	QUOTE				$\sim$	Qu	lote	Туре						$\sim$
				active					w	orkfl	ow ty	/pe					$\sim$
					reekend	15			EP	lant			[1	1] PAS	SO PL	ANT.	•••
Elei	me	nts	;				Ŷ	4	⊲	4			٠	=	ð	×	୯
#		App	provals	Descript	tion			Dura	ion	W	/orkfl	ow Ty	/pe				^
																	¥
Res	ро	nse	•														
Ch	eck	List	Team	n Membe	ers												
													٠	-	ø	×	e
#	ŧ	C	heckBo	x Text				Criti	cal N	lotes	;						^
									]								
																	~

The Template form is divided into three sections:

- **Name** The Name and Description of the template
- Elements The elements (or steps) used when performing a Workflow that utilizes this template
- **Response** Includes the Lookup List, CheckList, and Team Members

### **Top Section:**

Enter the values in the template form to create an Engineering Quote Approval Template.

Name	Enter a Name and Description of the template.
Description	
Kind	The Kind will be ENGQUOTE since it is used in the Engineering Quote module.
Quote Type	Select the Quote Type associated to the template from the drop down list. This is a required field which enables the system to automatically create a workflow for the correct template.
Workflow Type	Select a Workflow type from the drop down. The options are Sequential or Broadcast. The workflow type selected in the header section refers to the Elements. When using IQAlert to evaluate workflows, the information will be sent either for one element at a time Sequential or for all elements Broadcast.
	• Sequential Workflow - An email will be sent to all team members in the first element. Workflow cannot continue until the team members have responded to the element.
	<ul> <li>Broadcast - This option will send an email notification to all team members for all elements.</li> </ul>
Inactive	A template can be marked Inactive which hides it from pick lists.
Exclude Weekends	When the Exclude Weekends option is checked the calculation for Required Date will exclude weekend days. If it is not checked it will include all days when calculating the Required Date. For example, if the Duration of an element is 7 days and the workflow is marked active on a Wednesday, with this option checked the Required Date will be the following Friday. If it is not checked the Required Date will be the following Wednesday. Note: If this option is not checked but weekends have been marked off in the Workflow Calendar then the system will exclude weekends (see the Workflow Calendar in Team Members for information on setting days off for workflows).
EPlant	The EPlant is assigned based on the plant logged into when the template is created, or it will be null if logged into View All. To manually assign an EPlant select the ellipsis button in the field and select an EPlant from the pick list. The template pick list is soft filtered on EPlant so when creating new records users will see templates associated to the EPlant they are logged into or those without an EPlant assigned.

### **Elements:**

The middle section is where the elements are entered. The elements are the steps that will be taken for the Workflow. To create the elements, click on the 'Add' (+) button in the Elements section and type in the description of the element.

Duration	The amount of time in days the Element is expected to take can be entered in the Duration field. This value will be used to calculate the Required Dates for each element. Continue this process until all elements have been entered.
	Note: The Required Date is calculated based off of midnight of the activation date. If, for example, a user had a Duration of 1.25 (1 day, 6 hours) set up on the template and the workflow is activated on December 11th, the Required Date will calculate December 12th at 6 AM. If a user wishes to have the element calculated from a different start time, the Required Date time stamp can be overridden when the 'Active' checkbox is unchecked. After the time is modified, users can right click within the Elements section and 'Update Subsequent Required Dates'.
Sequence	The Sequence number information will fill in automatically with the next number as you add elements, or can be overridden by the user. Duplicate sequence numbers are allowed which will indicate in the workflow that the elements can be done simultaneously (emails will be sent for all elements with the same sequence number at the same time). The required dates for elements with the same sequence number will calculated for each element's duration. Elements having subsequent sequence numbers will have their required dates calculated from the longest duration required date from the previous element sequence group.
Workflow Type	A Workflow Type can be associated with each Element. This workflow type refers to the Team Members. The information will be sent either for one team member at a time (Sequential) or for all team members associated to the element (Broadcast).

**Other Element Options:** 

- **Moving Elements** Once Elements are entered, the order they are in can be changed using the up and down arrow buttons. The element number will automatically change as it is moved.
- Copy and Paste Elements Elements can be copied and pasted from one template to another template or to the same template as a time saving feature. When copying from one template to another the template must be of the same kind, i.e. ENGQUOTE to ENGQUOTE, PO to PO, etc. Highlight the element to copy and select 'Copy Element'. Go to the template where it is to be pasted to, right click and select 'Paste Element'. All of the Element information will copy over. The Description will be the same, but a new sequence number will be generated.

### **Response:**

The bottom section is where the Response (Lookup List, Checklist, and Team Member) information associated with a specific element is entered.

Checklist	The Checklist is the list of steps involved in completing the corresponding element. To create checklist items, click on the 'Add' (+) button on the Checklist tab and type in the text. This information will appear on the Workflow form in the Problem Report section, and on the web based approval page. The checklist items can also be marked Critical by placing a check in the Critical box. A 'Y' will appear for the corresponding checklist item on the Workflow form, and signifies that the checklist item(s) is a critical step in the Workflow process. An element cannot be marked as completed unless team members affirm and respond to a critical checklist item. If a user attempts to approve an element without affirming the critical checklist items an error will occur stating "All critical checklist items must be affirmed in order to approve this element". User defined Notes can be associated to a checklist item. The notes can be typed manually or selected from a user defined list. To create the list, right click on the field and select 'Edit User Defined List'. The notes will appear on the Checklist tab
	of web approval page and in the Checklist section on the main module.

Team Members	The Team Members is the list of personnel responsible for the specific element. The Approvers Team (Team Member) list can be accessed from the Engineering Quote File menu. (This is the same list used in Quality).
	When a new Workflow is created using the template, the team members added at the template level will automatically be added for the new Workflow. This is a time saving feature if the same team members typically perform a specific element for all Workflow's that utilize the template.
	Select the + button and select the team members from the pick list to add them to the template element.
	Set the Type to authorize or review.
	<ul> <li>Authorize team members are required to sign off on the approval process.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Review team members will receive an email notification through the workflow process, but are not required to sign off.</li> </ul>
	If the Type is not selected at the template level it will default to Authorize on the Workflow form. If all team members are set to Review the element will not be completed. Team members set to review will appear in italics to distinguish them from authorize members. Enter notes if desired. The notes will display on the responsible tab of the Workflow form and on the web based approval page.
	<b>Delegate To</b> - A Delegate can be associated to a team member with a Days Threshold value. The 'delegate days threshold' will control when a second email is sent to the delegate if the original team member did not respond within that time. This will help prevent a workflow from stalling because someone is too busy or out of the office for an extended period of time without the initiators knowledge. Once the 'Days Threshold' has passed and the workflow is evaluated, the Delegate is sent an email and can log in to approve/deny the workflow. Both the delegate and the 'days threshold' can be edited for a specific workflow on the Responsible tab.
	<b>Note</b> : There is also the 'Pending Authorization Expired' number of days feature that can be setup on the IQAIert that processes workflows. The number of days should be greater than the delegate days threshold.
	<b>Copy and Paste Team Members</b> - Team Members can also be copied and pasted from one element to another as a time saving feature. Highlight the element whose team members you want to copy, right click and select 'Copy Team Members'. Highlight the element the team members are to be pasted to, right click and select 'Paste Team Members'. All of the team members, their Type, and Notes will copy over. This same feature is available from the Elements section on the main form.

### **External Documents**

External documents can be associated to a template. This can be used to provide documentation for requirements for the specific template and the quality records it is associated to. Any external documents attached to a template will carry over to the Ext Docs tab for new records that utilize the template.

### **Create Additional Templates**

To create additional templates, click on the 'Add' (+) button on the Template form and complete the above steps.

### **Creating a Workflow**

Once the Workflow Approval parameter is activated and templates have been created, a new Workflow can be started.

- 1 Click on the ellipsis button in the 'Quote Type' field on the General Quote Values tab in Engineering Quotes.
- **2** Select a Quote Type from the pick list.
- **3** Select the post edit button to save the change. The system will automatically create a workflow.
- 4 The Workflow number will display in the Workflow # field and will have a status of 'Inactive'.
**5** Click the ellipsis button in the Workflow # field, then click on 'Jump to Workflow' to open the workflow.

I Engineering Qu	ote Workflow					_			×
File Options Rep	port Help								
A 7 💠 🗉 🛙	a a > > + = * × @	Elements	User Defined Form	Sumn	nary Do	cuments H	listor	ry	
Quote Workflow #	88-PASO	🛛 📢 💵	🗄 🚱 🤣			• -	ø	×	e
Initiator	IQMS	#	Element Description		Duration	Paceline D	ata 1	Comp	
□Active			Create a securitori		Duration	. Dasenne D	ale	comp	<u> </u>
Start Date			Create new quote cu	stomer	0.5				-
Open Date	5/5/2020 4:26:17 PM	2	Meet about requirem	ents	2	2			-
Completed Date		3	Create quote						_
Close Date									
■Customer #	HUN01								×
Company Name	HUNT MANUFACTURING	<						>	
□Quote #	280								
RFQ	168-PASO	Problem I	Report Responsible	Ext D	ocs Eleme	ent			
Description	0505 GEN WFNM		3 A . A			• -	s	×	2
Expires	6/4/2020								
Due Date	5/29/2020		# Name	Email	sent	Plan Date	Si	anoff	^
Sales Engineer									
Workflow Type		(∞							_
Template type	NEW CUST								
EPlant ID	1								
Archived									
Note Images		( <u>)</u>							
$\mathbf{N}$									
		5							
		-							
			<					>	

## The list below describes the fields in the top left section:

Quote Workflow #	This is the Workflow # for reference purposes. This number is assigned by the system in sequential order. If you are using EPlant this number will have the EPlant suffix after the number. This field can be overridden by typing over the existing number.
Initiator	The Initiator field displays the user login for the person who created the Workflow.

Active	This marks the Workflow as active. If Durations are entered for the elements the Required Dates will automatically be calculated based on the date the Workflow is marked Active. This field can be expanded to view the Start Date. This is the date the workflow was marked Active.
	Note: The evaluate workflow process cannot be started until this is checked.
	<b>Note</b> : Microsoft Excel must be installed in order to use this feature. When activating the workflow, the system automatically creates the RFQ report to be displayed on the approval page. If Excel is not installed, the user will receive an error stating: "Microsoft Excel is required when setting to active", when marking the workflow 'Active' and posting the change.
Open Date	This date defaults to the date and time the Workflow was created but can be changed using the drop down calendar.
	This field can be expanded by clicking on the + next to the field name to display two additional date fields, Completed Date and Close Date. The Completed date will automatically populate when all of the Elements have been completed.
	The Close date can be edited using the drop down calendar and selecting a date. Once a close date is added to the Workflow the status of the Workflow will be closed. The status is used for filtering purposes.
Customer # Company Name	This is the Customer associated with the Workflow. It is populated based on the Customer associated to the Quote, and cannot be changed. Click the + button to expand the field to see the Company Name.
Quote #	This is the Quote# associated to the quote record the workflow was created for. Click the + button to expand this field to see the Quote RFQ #, Description, Expiration date, Due Date, and Sales Engineer fields.
Workflow Type	This information will fill in automatically if a workflow type is associated to the selected template. It can be changed by selecting the workflow type from the drop down menu. There are two options:
	<ul> <li>Sequential Workflow - An email will be sent to all team members in the first element.</li> <li>Workflow cannot continue until the team members have responded to the element.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Broadcast - This option will send an email notification to all team members for all elements.</li> </ul>
Template Type	This displays the Template Name associated with the Workflow.
EPlant ID	This is the ID for the EPlant associated with the Workflow. This field will automatically populate with the ID based on the EPlant the user is logged into.

Archived	This box will be checked if the workflow is archived.
	Select Archive from the File menu to archive a workflow record. Select Yes to confirm the status change. The Archived box will be checked.
	Archived records can be restored by selecting Restore from Archive from the File menu. The box will be un-checked.
	From the Options menu users can choose to view workflow records based on whether they are open or archived. Select View All, Open Only, or Archived Only to filter what is displayed based on this status.

## Elements

This section contains the elements associated with the template that was chosen when the Workflow was created. Elements can be added, deleted, and the order rearranged as long as the active box is not checked and the element does not have a complete date. Use the +, - and up and down arrow buttons to perform these functions.

If a duration was entered for the elements on the template the 'Required Date' and 'Baseline Date' will automatically populate once the Active box is checked. If no duration was entered for the elements, the 'Required Date' and 'Baseline Date' will populate with the date the record was marked active. The required dates cannot be changed once an element is completed. If the 'Required Date' for a non-complete element need to be changed, un-check the Active box and select a new date from the drop down calendar. To change the 'Required Date' on the subsequent elements, right click and select 'Update Subsequent Required Dates'. This will update the subsequent Elements' required dates based on the last 'Required Date' plus the 'Duration'.

The 'Baseline Date' does not change with edits to 'Required Dates' unless the 'Populate Baseline Date(s)' button is pressed, in which case the Baseline Date column is populated with the current Required Date for elements that have not been completed. Security can be applied to the 'Populate Baseline Date(s)' button to restrict access.

Once an element has been approved by all Authorize type team members, the completion date will fill in automatically after the workflow is evaluated again.



Workflow Gantt Chart - This button will bring up a Gantt chart for the Elements.

**Rewind/Reset Element workflow approval process** - This process resets an element's complete date as well as its workflow approval records so it can be re-evaluated again.

Once selected a confirm box will appear to select Yes or No. If Yes is selected, the system will reset the element and a box will display stating the number of processed workflow records that were reset. The line item(s) in the Responsible section will revert to black allowing the workflow for the element to be reevaluated.

## **User Defined Form**

A User Defined Form with additional fields can be created for workflows. These fields can then be used in customized reports. The User Defined Form can be accessed from the speed button, the User Defined Form tab or from the Options menu. See the User Defined Forms portion in the Using EnterpriselQ' section of the help files for more information on creating a user defined form.

## Summary

The Summary tab displays summary information for each element. It includes the Element Description, Complete Date, Duration, Required Date, Workflow Type, and Response information. The user can select the number of panels to view (up to 15) from the **# Panels** drop down. This defaults to 'Auto' which will display a panel for each Element associated to the workflow.

## History

From the History tab users can view the history related to the workflow. This tab includes the following information:

- Date Event Date and Time
- Event This will describe the event, such as Signoff, Checklist, or Reset One
- Signoff Y or N
- Signoff Date and Time The date and time the element was signed off
- Response Response notes entered by team member. Double click this field to access the response text at the time of the history record. This field will say (Memo) if there are no notes. If it is in all caps (MEMO) it indicates there are notes that can be viewed by double clicking.
- Notes These are the notes entered in the 'Note' field on the workflow. Double click this field to
  access the notes at the time of the history record. This field will say (Memo) if there are no notes. If it
  is in all caps (MEMO) it indicates there are notes.
- Checklist Text The description of the Checklist item
- Checklist Status Old The old Checklist status (Y, N, N/A)
- Checklist Status New The new Checklist status (Y, N, N/A)
- Username The Username that reset the rejected record
- Element Description
- Responsible Name The name of the Team Member responsible for the entry
- Responsible Type Review or Authorize based on the responsible type associated to the responsible team member within the responsible tab

#### Documents

#### Quoting

In this section the user can attach internal or external documents, or Email Correspondence associated with the workflow.

## **Internal Documents**

The screen acts like a word processor. The user can add, edit, delete, or print documents from here. Graphic images may also be imported into the document or text area. EnterpriseIQ supports .BMP or .WMF graphic files only.

## **External Documents**

To attach a document, click on the (+) button and select the Document Library and document from the screens that appear. To OPEN the document, double-click on the file name, or select the document and right click. Select [Execute] from the submenu. The program will open both the application the document was created in as well as the document itself.

## **Color Coding for External Documents:**

Each document will display in a color to indicate its status.

- Yellow The document is checked out or new.
- Blue The document is pending authorization and/or review.
- Green The document is released.
- Olive Green The document has expired. If a document is expired when a user attempts to open it or print it from a module a warning will appear stating, "The document is not available - it is expired and requires review."
- Red File does not exist
- Gray Inactive document

**Search** - The External Documents tab in all modules includes the Search button to access the pick list for easier navigation through multiple documents.

**Show Revisions** - Select this option from the right click menu to view all the revisions of a document. Double clicking (or right click and select Execute) on the revision will allow the user to view the highlighted revision.

**Print with Work order** - When the print with work order option is selected, when a work order for the item(s) attached to the workflow is printed, the document(s) set to print with Work Order will also print.

The user can also jump to the Document Control module by clicking on the Launch Document Control speed button.

## **Email Correspondence**

This section allows the user to attach Email correspondence related to the Engineering Quote. To add an Email simply drag and drop it from Outlook or other email programs into the form.

The 'Received Date' will fill in based on the email's received date and time. A Received Date box surfaces if the system is unable to determine the date (such as: The Received and Sent dates differ, unclear binary data, or older data, etc.). Users are asked to provide the Received Date by selecting the correct date from the calendar.

The 'From' and 'Subject' fields will also automatically populate with the information from the email. The date, from, and subject fields cannot be edited.

Comment - A comment can be entered by double clicking the field. Enter the comment in the pop up box to further describe the email correspondence.

There are three ways to access the Email once associated to the Quote:

- Double click on either the Received, From, or Subject fields.
- Right click and select View email.
- Or select the View email button.

**Note**: If the email has attachments, or multiple attachments, the total attachment size cannot be more than 4GB. The size allowance might further be limited by the chosen email program used. In order to view emails that have attachments, special formatting (e.g. stationary), or images embedded in the body of the email, the user must go into BDE Administrator and set the BLOB SIZE to 1000 for the database they are using (i.e. IQORA).

## Notes

To add notes, type directly in the notes field, or click on the 'Edit Memo' button and type conclusion notes in the screen that appears. This field can contain up to 2000 characters.

Q Conclusion		-		×
1				^
				~
🛃 Print	🗸 🗸		🗙 <u>C</u> ar	ncel
Text Length: 0 / 2000	Word	l Count:	0	

Selecting the Print button at the bottom of the form will print notes.

#### Images

Multiple images can be added to the workflow record on the Images tab. The images will be visible in the module only (not the web approval page).



Select the insert record button and select the image from the open form. An image can be marked as the default by checking the Default box, this will make that image the first to display. A description can be added to be displayed below the image. Select the 'Edit Description' button, or right click and select 'Edit Description'. A note editing screen will appear to enter up to 255 characters. In cases where the text is longer than the display area below the image, the user will need to open the editing window. The image

can be viewed in full screen mode by selecting the button , or select Full Screen from the right click menu. Press the Esc key to exit the full screen mode. Images can be deleted by clicking on the delete record button or from the right click menu. Select Replace from the right click menu to replace the current image with another one. An image can also be Saved to a File by selecting that option from the right click menu. Use the search button to access a pick list of images associated to the workflow record.

## **Problem Report tab**



**CheckList** - This section displays the Checklist information associated with the highlighted Element. If the checklist item has been marked critical on the template, a 'Y' will be displayed in the Critical field. Each checklist item is given a status by clicking on the drop down arrow and selecting No, Yes, or N/A. 'Yes' indicates the checklist item is done, 'No' indicates it is not done, and 'N/A' indicates it is not applicable to this specific Workflow. The status can also be filled in from the web approval page. Checklist items can be added on the fly to any element.

**Response** - The Response information also appears on this tab. This information is input based on lists created at the template level or typed in manually. To select a response from the pick list created on the template click on the Lookup Response List button, and a pick list of responses associated with the Element will display.

## **Responsible tab**



The responsible tab contains the team members responsible for authorization/review of the selected element of the Workflow. To add team members responsible for the element, click on the Add (+) button and select them from the Team Member list. All team members will be in the pick list. Multiple team members can be selected at once using the toggle buttons on the pick list or the Shift and Ctrl keyboard buttons. Team Members can also be copied from one element and pasted into another by right clicking in the Element section and selecting Copy Responsible and Paste Responsible. There is no specific check box in the Team Member module for Workflow. Continue this process until all required team members have been added. New team members can be added to the Team Member pick list by clicking on Team Members under Options on the tool bar.

#	This is the sequential number the team members were added in. If the sequence needs to be adjusted, this number can be changed manually.
Name	This is the Name of the team member.
Email sent	This field populates with the date and time the email was sent notifying the team member a workflow needs reviewed/authorized.

The fields in the Responsible section of the form are described below:

Туре	If the type was set up on the template it will fill in automatically. If the type is not specified on the template it defaults to Authorize on the Workflow form. If no Type is specified on the Workflow form, a message will display stating it is a required field. To change it, select from the drop down list and choose either Authorize or Review.
	<ul> <li>Authorize team members are required to sign off on the approval process.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Review team members will receive an email notification through the workflow process, but are not required to sign off.</li> </ul>
	Note: If all team members are Review, the element will not be completed.
Plan Date	This is the plan date associated with the Workflow Element and team member, and can be used as a due date for the element. Select the date from the drop down calendar.
Sign Off	If the team member approves the element and selects Authorize on the web based approval page, a 'Y' will automatically be put in this box. If the team member rejects the element, an 'N' will be displayed. This cannot be filled in manually.
Sign Off Date	This field will automatically fill in with the date the team member accepted or rejected the element.
Email	The email address for the team member. This information comes from the Team Member module.
Title	The title of the team member. This information comes from the Team Member module.
Note	Users can enter notes in this field under the Responsible tab, or on the web approval page. The notes entered in this field can be unique to each team member.
Delegate To	A Delegate can be associated to a team member with a Days Threshold value. The delegate days threshold will control when a second email is sent to the delegate if the original team member did not respond within that time. This will help prevent a workflow from stalling because someone is too busy or out of the office for an extended period of time without the initiators knowledge. Once the 'Days Threshold' has passed and the workflow is evaluated, the Delegate is sent an email and can log in to approve/deny the workflow.
Pending Authorization Expired	This will populate with the date/time the pending authorization/review expired based on the 'Expire Pending' days set in the Contingency Plan section of the Alert action.
	This function will also send an email to the 'Email To' address established on the Alert action indicating the pending authorization/review has expired.
	Once the responsible team member approves their element; the line turns green to go forward with the next element. The Pending Authorization Expired field remains populated.
Receive Notification	If this option is checked, the team member will receive an email when the element is completed.

## **Ext Docs Element**

Problem	Report	Responsible	Ext Docs	Element									
	<b>#</b> 7	<i>a</i> a a	>				⊲ ⊳	⊳I	•	-	ø	х	6
	#	Library	Do	cument D	escription	Library	/ Descri	ption					
(∞>->>													
(													
-													
<b>(~→~&gt;)</b>													
	<												>

In this section the user can attach external documents associated with a specific element. To attach a document, click on the **ADD** (+) button and select the Document Library and document from the screens that appear. If the document is released it will be accessible in read only format from the web based approval screen.

The user can also jump to the Document Control module by clicking on the Launch Document Control

speed button

## **Workflow Filter**

To change the filter, click on the 'Filter' button at the top of the Workflow form. A box will appear from which the user can select All Customers or One Customer, as well as Open Workflows, Closed Workflows, or both.

The Filter feature can also be used to filter the pick list when searching for a specific Workflow.

	$\sim$
Customers All	
One customer	
Showing	
Open Workflows	

## Access Workflows

Select the 'Workflow' speed button to access your pending approvals relevant to the module currently

opened Series opened For example, when selecting the workflow speed button from the Engineering Quote Workflow module the user will be asked to log in and their pending quote workflow approvals will display. Select the record number to access the specific approval summary.

## Limitations in Other Areas when using Engineering Quote Workflows

When using the workflow functionality for Engineering Quotes the system will prevent users from performing certain functions such as converting to a BOM or printing quote letters when a workflow is not approved for an item or its component quotes (this includes quotes for attached main materials). The system will restrict actions if the same level or lower level quote workflow is not approved.

## Printing the quote letter from the calculations tab or RFQ Log

Printing the quote letter for an engineering quote with an associated workflow that is not approved is not allowed without security to select 'Continue'.

## Printing the quote letter from Project Manager for unapproved workflows

When an RFQ is associated to a Project Manager record (General tab->Part RFQ field) and the 'Include QLETTER\_RPT output' box is checked on the Quote Letter form users may not be able to print the letter. When a user selects the 'New' button from the Quote Letter form the system will prevent users without security to select 'Continue' from printing the quote letter when a workflow associated to the engineering quote is not approved.

## System Rules:

A Quote letter cannot be printed under following conditions:

- If workflow mandatory is checked and workflow has not been approved.
- If workflow mandatory is checked and active workflow.
- If workflow mandatory is unchecked and active workflow.

If the quote letter cannot be printed a form will appear showing the items with unapproved workflows, or ones that require a workflow be created. This form will state the status of the workflow which will be 'Inactive', 'Pending', or 'Required'. If it is 'Required' the Workflow # and the Workflow Status columns will display in red. Users can right click and jump to the Engineering Quote or the Workflow associated to the highlighted record. Security is available on this form for the Jump To options and the Continue button. If security is not enabled on the Continue button users will not be able to perform the action. This button can also be made not visible so users will only see the Cancel button. The quote letter will print if Continue is selected.

0	III Engineering Quote Unapproved Workflows - D X											
T O	The following items have unapproved workflows or require a workflow to be created and approved based on your current quote settings. Do you still want to print the quote letter?											
	#		ltem #	Description	Class	Revision	Workflow #	Workflow Status	RFQ #	^		
Þ		1	TD-100T	TD-100T	FG		84-PASO	Inactive	165-PASO			
		1	TD-100T INJ	TD-100T INJ	WP	3		Required	165-1			
						Jum	p to Engineerin	g Quote				
						Jum	ip to worknow					
										×		
								Continue	Cancel			

Quote letter can be printed under following conditions:

- If workflow mandatory is unchecked and no active workflow
- If workflow mandatory is checked and workflow is approved

## Convert Quote to BOM

The system will restrict a quote from being converted to a BOM for unapproved workflows at its current level or any level lower in the quote hierarchy. This applies to converting from the Quote module, RFQ Log and Sales Quotations.

When using the workflow functionality for Engineering Quotes the system will prevent users from converting to a BOM when a workflow is not approved for an item or its component quotes (this includes quotes for attached main materials). The system will restrict actions if the same level or lower level quote workflow is not approved.

A Quote Item cannot be converted to BOM or BOM/Sales Order under following conditions:

- If workflow mandatory is checked and workflow has not been approved.
- If workflow mandatory is checked and active workflow.
- If workflow mandatory is unchecked and active workflow.

If the quote cannot be converted to a BOM, or BOM/Sales Order a form will appear showing the items with unapproved workflows, or ones that require a workflow be created. Users can right click and jump to the Engineering Quote or the Workflow associated to the highlighted record.

	III Engineering Quote Unapproved Workflows - 🗆 🗙											
T O	The following items have unapproved workflows or require a workflow to be created and approved based on your current quote settings.											
	#		ltem #	Descriptio	on Class	Revision	Workflow #	Wo	rkflow Status	RFQ #	~	
		1	WF-200	WF-200	FG		82-PASO	Per	nding	161-PASO		
Þ		1	WF-100	WF-100	FG		80-PASO	Per	nding	157-PASO		
					Jump t	o Enginee	ring Quote					
					Jump t	o Workflo	w					
L											*	
										OK		

A Quote Item can be converted to BOM or BOM/Sales Order under following conditions:

- If workflow mandatory is unchecked and no active workflow
- If workflow mandatory is checked and workflow is approved

## **CRM Sales Quote Limitations**

If a specific engineering quote or component engineering quotes have not been approved they cannot be added to a sales quote.

A Quote Item cannot be added to a sales quote under following conditions:

- If workflow mandatory is checked and workflow has not been approved.
- If workflow mandatory is checked and active workflow.
- If workflow mandatory is unchecked and active workflow.

Also, if a workflow is associated to an Engineering Quote item after it has been added to a Sales Quote, and it is not approved, the sales quote cannot be converted to a sales order.

If these situations apply a message similar to the following will display indicating the quote number that has not been approved.



A sales quote can be converted to a sales order if prior approval of an inactive workflow exists. When attempted, the 'Engineering Quote Unapproved Workflows' form will appear with a 'Continue' button. Users with security to select 'Continue' can convert a sales quote to a sales order. If security is not enabled on the 'Continue' button users will not be able to perform the action. This button can also be made not visible so users will only see the 'Cancel' button.

		-											
10	Engineering Quote Unapproved Workflows -      X												
Ple Sa	ease comple les Order.	te Workflo	w approvals for Eng	gineeri	ng Quote Inve	ntory items before	e converting this S	ales Quote	to a				
	#	ltem #	Description	Class	Revision	Workflow #	Workflow Status	RFQ #					
Þ	1	283705	283705	FG		5-PASO	Inactive	96-PASO					
							Continue	Cancel					

Note: Selecting 'Continue' will bypass the approval of the workflow.

A Quote Item can be added to sales quote under following conditions:

- If workflow mandatory is unchecked and no active workflow
- If workflow mandatory is checked and workflow is approved

## **Evaluate Workflows**

Evaluate Workflow automatically analyzes the status of the element in relation to each team member, and determines the action to take. This is the process that will send email notifications to team members that a Workflow element needs to be reviewed/authorized, and through which the element is approved or rejected based on the responses of the team members.

To start the workflow process:

- **1** Assign responsible team members. Be sure to post after adding team members, or workflow will not function properly.
- 2 Ensure that the Active Box in the Workflow main section is checked.
- **3** Use IQAlert to initiate the evaluation.
- 4 The team members will be marked in pending status and emails will be sent, according to the Workflow type selected, notifying the members that a Workflow Element needs to be reviewed/authorized.

**Note**: The Evaluate Workflow and Re-Evaluate Workflow functionality can be set up in IQAlert to occur automatically based on a defined schedule. Select the QUOTE control system. (See the IQAlert documentation for details).

When using IQAlert, the emails sent depend on whether the workflow and elements are set to Broadcast or Sequential. The workflow type selected in the main section of a module refers to the Elements. The information will be sent either for one element at a time (Sequential) or for all elements (Broadcast). A Workflow Type can be associated with each Element. This workflow type refers to the Team Members. The information will be sent either for one team member at a time (Sequential) or for all team members associated to the element (Broadcast). If the Workflow Type field is left blank it will default to Broadcast.



## **Additional Options:**

**Contingency Plan** - A Contingency Plan can be set up on the Alert action to indicate the number of days when a pending authorization/review is considered expired. The 'Pending Authorization Expired' field in the Responsible section of the module will populate with the date and time it was marked expired. An email will be sent to the email address set up on the IQAlert action indicating the workflow authorization is expired and the responsible team member.

**Delegate To** - A Delegate can be associated to a team member on a template with a 'Days Threshold' value. The delegate days threshold will control when a second email is sent to the delegate if the original team member did not respond within that time. This will help prevent a workflow from stalling because someone is too busy or out of the office for an extended period of time without the initiators knowledge. Once the 'Days Threshold' has passed and the workflow is evaluated, the Delegate is sent an email and can log in to approve/deny the workflow.

Both the delegate and the 'days threshold' can be edited for a specific workflow on the Responsible tab.

**Note**: If both the Contingency Plan and Delegate options are used, the number of days on the Contingency Plan should be greater than the delegate days threshold.



Another IQAlert option is to create an SQL to re-evaluate workflow through an 'SQL statement' which can specify the number of days after which team members with pending workflows will be reset. Then subsequent SQL statements to evaluate workflow will send new emails. The combination of these SQL's for Reset and Evaluate Workflow is the equivalent of doing 'Reset for Re-Evaluation' and 'Evaluate Workflow' under the Responsible tab in modules that have workflow. After the Reset SQL statement is processed, and before the Evaluate Workflow SQL, if a team member attempts to get to the web approval page from an older email, they will receive a message that the approval link is no longer valid. Users may pick up the new SQL statement from MyDELMIAworks in the IQMS Alerts section in Support->Files. The file is 'Reset Workflow.zip'. For more information on setting up these alerts please refer to the Alert help file.

## Notes:

Invalid emails (for employees where they no longer are active email addresses in the system) will be passed over and the workflow process will continue to the next responsible person or if no responsible person is indicated for the remainder of the elements, it will add a completed date to those elements. The system records any exceptions in the Event Log under the WORKFLOW ERROR class.

Evaluating workflow through IQAlert ensures workflow emails are sent to the correct team members in the correct order. If the 'Evaluate Workflow' button on the Workflow Approver tab is used instead, workflow emails may not be sent to the correct team members and potentially in non-sequential order.

Duplicate sequence numbers on Elements are allowed which will indicate in the workflow that the elements can be done simultaneously (emails will be sent for all elements with the same sequence number at the same time).

If any email is not being sent as expected for evaluate workflow and no error occurs, check to see whether the spam filter may be preventing the email from being sent.

## **Workflow Emails**

The subject line of the email states the Quote Workflow number, the Workflow Element description, and the team member type (Authorize or Review).

## Quote Workflow # 6-PASO, Review Design - Authorize





Quote RFQ #: 95-PASO Quote Date: 04/30/2020 Expiry Date: 05/30/2020 Due Date: EPlant: 1 [PASO PLANT]

Click on the link below to authorize Engineering Quote Workflow element 'Review Design'

http://WTF-DEV-IIS2-OJ:8080/iqms/web wf admin.get data? v wf responsibility id=282&v module=ENGQUOTE Required Date: 04/30/2020

Thank you

(submission counter: )

The email provides a link to the browser. The browser form is where the Workflow Element is reviewed and either accepted or rejected by the team member. After clicking on the link, the user will be required to log into the network in order to access the Workflow review form.

Once logged in, the user will see the Workflow Summary form:

		Workflow Summary
Element Quote Workflow # Required Date Initiator Company Open Date Note RFQ # Description Expires Due Date Quote Type	: Review Design # : 6-PASO 2 : 04/30/20 : IQMS : : 04/30/2020 03:41:00 PM : : 95-PASO : CDCR1 : 30-MAY-20 : : AUTO	Response       RFQ Summary       Checklist       Responsible       Documents       Email Correspondence       Summary         Submit Response       Length of 4000
Sales Engineer Currency Calculated On	: : : 30-APR-20	
O Authorize O Note	Reject S	Submit
Team Member logged in: IQMS	: IQMS   Log Out 🗳   Change F	Home   Email   Help           Password         Phone: 805-227-1122         Fax: 815-883-3322

**Note**: Password Expiration Warning - If the user's password will expire within 30 days or less a message will appear stating, 'Warning Your password expires in x day(s). You need to change the password before the expire date. Would you like to change your password now?' Select 'Continue' to go to the workflow without changing the password, or select the 'Change Password' option to change the password. Users do have the option to change their password at any time via the 'Change Password' button at the bottom of the workflow web page.

## Workflow Page

The left side of the Workflow Summary form displays the general information from the Workflow form in EnterpriselQ including the RFQ #, Description, Company and Sales Engineer. This form shows the Notes entered in the Notes field on the main form. If the notes are larger than the display field, they can be viewed in their entirety by clicking on the + button. The Response notes entered on the response tab of the Workflow form will also display in the lower Note field.

Team members can select the **ElQ icon** next to the Quote Workflow # to jump to the quote in EnterpriseIQ. A confirmation message will appear stating, "About to jump to EnterpriseIQ. Please confirm to continue". Select OK to continue or Cancel to return to the summary. (Note: A second login will occur even though EIQ is already open if the shortcut to EIQ has "\_multi\_" added to the shortcut properties).

**Note**: This option is only available when using Internet Explorer (IE) with proper security levels set. When using another browser or if IE security is not established a message will appear stating, 'Unable to continue. Please check Internet Explorer security level. Error message = ActiveX object not defined. **Note**: Other browsers do not support this feature'. The settings for IE require that the server URL is added to Internet Explorer Trusted Sites, security must also be set to 'Low' for Trusted Sites to enable ActiveX controls, and set security to 'Low' for local intranet, and 'medium-hig'h for Internet security.

**Note**: When accessing a workflow through Smart Page, the system will jump to the EnterpriseIQ record with no message surfacing.

The right side of the summary form has six tabs:

- Response Users can input a response by manually typing in the response section or select a predefined response from the response lookup list. To select from the Response Lookup list, select the response button and the Select Response form will appear. Enter the response information in the 'Search for' field, or leave it blank to return all responses, and select the Search button. The results will display. Select the desired response by clicking on the Code. The Response text is submitted by either clicking on Submit button, saying 'yes' the confirmation message, when clicking on another tab within the web approval page, or when logging out of the web approval page. All responses are available to other team members from their respective approval pages. The responses entered here will also transfer to the main form in EnterpriseIQ.
- RFQ Summary This tab displays a PDF of all calculations. This is the same file that gets generated when using the 'Print RFQ' option. The RFQ Summary can be downloaded or printed by selecting the corresponding button on the form. There are also buttons to zoom in/out, or fit the document to the page.

- Checklist Select the Checklist tab to view the checklist information along with the status of each checklist item in the Value column. To change the status of a checklist item, the user can select a value (Y, N, N/A) from the drop down list. If changes are made to the status the user must select the Submit Checklist Items button in the Checklist section to process the changes.
- **Responsible** Select the Responsible tab to view the list of team members that are also responsible for the element. Users can send email to a team member directly from this tab by clicking on the team member's email address.
- Documents Select this tab to view any attached external documents associated with the workflow, attached external documents associated to the specific element, or reports. The reports available are the same as what is in the Engineering Quotes module reports menu. If a team member is a customer or vendor, they are limited to viewing the current record only on a report. If the team member is not a customer or vendor, the selection criteria form will appear allowing the team member to enter the criteria desired for the report.
- **Email Correspondence** If Email Correspondence is associated to the record it can be viewed from this tab. The tab will list all linked emails with the date received, who it's from, the subject, and the comment entered on the Email Correspondence tab in the module. The team member can click on the subject and the email will open in a separate pop up window.
- **Summary** The Summary tab displays the Element summary information including responses.

## Authorize, Reject, or Review:

Once the team member reviews/edits the checklist and responses, if they are an Authorize type team member, they will choose to authorize or reject the Workflow element. Review type team members will only be able to 'Submit Review'. If the team member rejects the element, a note must be entered in the Note field. Notes may also be added if the element is accepted. These notes will display on the Workflow form in the Note field on the line item associated with the team member.

**Note**: If the user hits the back button on the browser and attempts to resubmit a workflow that has already been denied or approved, the user will receive an error: "There was an error processing your request. This element was already denied/approved on mm/dd/yy".

Once a team member has authorized/reviewed the Workflow element and submitted their response, the fields in the Response section of the Workflow form will populate with the new information such as Signoff (Y or N), Signoff Date, and Notes.

The text will also be color coded to visually show the status of the team member. The color codes are as follows:

- **Green** The team member has approved the element.
- **Red** The team member has rejected the element.
- Blue A response is pending. The team member has been notified that an element needs to be reviewed, but has not yet replied.
- Black The workflow has not been processed for the team member.

If the Electronic Signature option is selected when the team member clicks on the Submit button, the team member will be asked to enter their user name and password for the electronic signature.

Username Password	Username Password		and the second second	
Username Password	Username Password	nttp://iocaii	IOST	
Password	Password	Username		 
		assword		

To enable this feature, check the 'Enable electronic signature sign off' in System Setup->System Parameters->Company File Information->Application tab. This is a global setting.

## **Completing a Workflow**

Once an element has been approved by all Authorize type team members, the completion date will fill in automatically after the workflow is evaluated again. The team member ID that approved the element is stored in the WF\_RESPONSIBILITY table (in SIGNOFF\_TEAM\_MEMBER\_ID). This will populate with the team member ID of the user actually approving or rejecting the workflow element, including a delegate team member. If an element is re-wound and approved or rejected again, the value is re-written in the new column. An email will be sent to the Initiator and to team members that have the Receive Notification option checked when an element is completed. This check box is on the Responsible tab of each module.

**Note**: Review type team members can still access the workflow and submit their review after the element has been approved. The workflow will display this message "This element is closed, but has not been reviewed".

## **Rejected Elements**

When an element is rejected, all users on the Responsible tab for the element set as 'Authorizer' will receive notification of the rejection, in addition to the user in the Initiator field. The email will include the record, element information, reason for rejection, and the authorizer that rejected the element.

**My Pending Approvals** - This button will appear in the blue bar at the top of the web approval page. When the user mouses over the button, the hint will display the number of pending approvals they have. Click on the button to view the Pending Approval List.

## My Pending Approvals

		— Material Review B	oard ———		
MRB #	Туре	Initiator	Issue Date	Required Date	Element
104-PASO	MRB1	JOE	09/18/12	09/18/12	Meeting

		Exq	pense Reports	
Description	Submitted Date	Entered By	Report Total	Reimbursment Total
2014 ER	04/09/14	IQMS	560.00	505.00
User Group Expenses	11/05/12	IQMS	175.00	175.00

#### — Employee Document Certification Training

Document #	Document Name	Revision	Certification
417	RealTime and RF for ASSY.docx	0.9	Certification Training 13
ABC123	DIMP.doc	3	Certification Training 25

			- Droio	ot Managor			
			Fioje	ci manayer			
Project #	Project Name	Workflow #	Туре	Initiator	Open Date	Required Date	Element
67-3	67-3	178-PASO	BUILD	IQMS	09/30/13	02/06/14	Quote Customer

From this screen the user can select an item to review by clicking on the link.

**Access Workflow from Responsible tab** - The Responsible tab on the workflow form has an Approve Workflow speed button which enables team members to access the web based approval page for that specific record. Once the evaluate workflow process has begun this button will be enabled. Highlight

your team member name and select the Approve speed button <sup>1</sup>. The web based approval page for the specific element will appear to authorize/review or reject.

## **Reset Element for Re-Evaluation**

If an element has been rejected, the user can select the Reset for Re-Evaluation option to reset the

workflow for the element  $\swarrow$  Once reset, the element can be evaluated again using the Workflow function. The email notification that the team members receive has a submission counter to indicate the number of times an element has been evaluated.

Clicking directly on the Reset for Re-Evaluation button will reset the workflow only for the selected team member that rejected the element. This can also be done by clicking on the drop down arrow next to the Reset for Re-Evaluation speed button, and choosing Reset This Rejected for Re-Evaluation.

Note: Archived quotes will retain the associated workflow record.

To reset the workflow for all team members for the element, click on the drop down arrow next to the Reset for Re-Evaluation speed button, and choose Reset All Records for Re-Evaluation.

## **Reset Workflows**

A confirmation message will appear if changes are made to the quote. The pop up message will only display once for the first field a user changes.



The message includes Yes and No buttons:

- Yes Select this to proceed with change and reset workflow to 'Inactive'. The Status field on the quote will be updated.
- No Select this to cancel the change and not reset the workflow.

Security is available on this form to prevent users from selecting Yes.

**Note**: If changes have been made to the quote and a user attempts to mark the workflow active prior to recalculating the quote a message will appear stating: "Quote 'xxx' needs to be recalculated before activating the workflow".

**Note**: If a user attempts to delete a workflow when the 'Workflow Mandatory' parameter is enabled, an error will display stating: "Workflow cannot be deleted while "Workflow Mandatory" parameter is enabled."

# **Graphs in Quotations**

Click on the Graphs button to view the quote calculations in a pie chart format. The pie charts are based on a percentage breakdown of the calculations for this quote. After selecting Graphs, the following screen will appear:



The pie charts display the Material Cost %, Production Cost %, Other Cost % (Operation Costs), and Profit % for each quantity entered under the Rates and Parameters section.

To rotate each graph, click on the "red" rotate arrow located in the upper left hand portion of this screen. This information is stored with the quote and is available for viewing at any time.

# **Print RFQ**

This option will print a two page print out of the general quote information including labor, material, blend details, part information, and the calculation information for the quote currently open. This report is hard coded into the system, it is not a Crystal Report and therefore cannot be edited. However, it will also create an Excel spreadsheet which is saved in the local home folder in a sub-folder named rfq\_print. The location where these are saved can be changed by setting the location from the **RFQ Print -.xls Destination** option available from the Miscellaneous menu. Once this option is selected the user will see the spreadsheet briefly appear then a Print box will come up to choose the printer to send the report to or cancel if a hard copy is not desired.

**Note**: If the Control # Format field in System Parameters has been changed (and no longer matches the format of the RFQ Control # in the quote), the user will be prompted to recalculate the quote when attempting to print the RFQ.

**Note**: This feature requires that Microsoft Excel is installed on the computer. If it is not installed when the RFQ button is clicked a pop message will display stating "Microsoft Excel is required".

**Note**: If there are nine or more calculation quantities the additional quote quantities will spill over to additional pages and will not be aligned. To avoid this, you can calculate and print for calculation quantities 1 - 8, then do a separate calculate and print for any additional quantities.

Example RFQ spreadsheet:

	Α	В	С	D	E	F	G	н	I.	J	К	L	м	N	0	Р
1	Print	ed 9/	18/201	19		IQMS Quote Printo	ut			RFQ 137-PASO PRO	DUCTION DETA	ILS BY QUANTI	TY - Cont.			
2						RFQ: 137-PASO Rev	.1									
3					F	Project: Quote for D	ocs				1000	2000	5000	10000	20000	
4	GEN	ERALO	UOTE	INFORMATION						Optm % Markup						
5	Cust	omer		: ABCO				Cycle Time	: 16.00	Unit Cost		0.320955	0.221943	0.162535	0.142733	0.132832
6	MFG	#		: QFD1				Units/Cycle	: 2.00	Unit Price		0.504099	0.251094	0.185628	0.163807	0.152896
7	Quot	te Dat	e	: 6/25/2019				Operators	: 2.00	Price/1000		504.099000	251.094000	185.628000	163.807000	152.896000
8	Expir	res On	1	:7/25/2019				Default Lbr Rate	: 9.00	Gross Profit Margin	%	33.15	7.19	8.06	8.51	8.78
9	Last	Calcu	lated	: 9/18/2019 4:43:2	2 PM			Scrap %	: 5.00	Cost %		66.85	92.81	91.94	91.49	91.22
10	Inte	nal IC	)	:246				Regrind %	: 25.00	Prod %		40.54	61.29	66.59	69.30	70.94
11	Cent	er Tvo	e	: 300						Material %		5.48	10.61	14.04	15.79	16.85
12	Mac	hine R	ate	: 25.00 Rate does	not include an Op	perator		Lbs/K-cycles	: 15.26	Net Value/Hr		112.44	43.39	35.35	32.67	31.33
13	Setu	p Hou	rs	: 2.00				Shot Wt(lbs)	: 0.02	Yield/Hr		184.29	86.81	61.72	53.36	49.17
14	Start	Cycle	10	50.00				UOM	GR							
15	Curr	ency		: United States Do	lar (Rate: 1.00)					Prod Hrs		2.45	4.92	12.31	24.62	49.25
16	MAT	FRIAL	INFOR	MATION						Oner Hrs		4 45	6.92	14 31	26.62	51.25
17	Item	#		· ABS-2802-NAT				Runner/Sprue	· 0.00000	Prod Labor		36.95	73.87	184 68	369 34	738 70
18	Desc	rintio	n	· BASE TERI LIX ABS				Weekly Dry Hrs	. 0.00	Setun Labor		40.00	40.00	40.00	40.00	40.00
19				. Bridi Tenebirribb				freekiy bry mb	. 0.00	Overhead		117 70	179.27	363.93	671 73	1287.29
20	LAR		ORMA	TION						Dry Hrs				202.22		
21				Operator	Code	Description	Pate			Start Hrs		0.25	0.25	0.25	0.25	0.25
22				1	OP	OPERATOR	15			Prod Cost		194.65	293.14	588.61	1081.07	2065.99
23				Ŕ	SETLID	SETURIAROR	50			Operation Cost		104.00	233.24	500.01	1001.07	2003.33
24	-			-	SETO	SETOT ERBOR	20			Prod Markup		145.99	29.21	59.96	108.11	205 60
25	DAP		DAAATI	ON						Total Brod Cost		240.53	200.01	EA7 49	1 100.11	2 272 59
26	Part	#1	NIMALI	-05D1				Cowiting	- 2.00	Fix % Marklin		75.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00
27	Paul	π 1 .iee						Cavities Cavity Maight	2.00	на ленаткор		75.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00
28	Dece	riotio		- - 05D1				Cavity Weight	. 3.4000000	Lbr Rog		0.20	16.02	20.00	77.04	152.22
20	Dest	One		Description						Cost /Lb		2 450000	2 450000	2 450000	2 450000	2 450000
20		024	7.00	Attached Compon	tr					Diartic Cost		2.450000	2.450000	2.450000	100 76	2.450000
21	-	Q24	/.00	Attached Compon	Deseriation		De sta De s	C 0/		Plastic Cost		20.56	59.25	95.51	100.76	5/5.04
22	-		Mate	nantem#	Description	N 4	Farts Fer	Scrap 70		Comp. Cost		F	44.50	00.75	57.50	
22	-	004	10-00	0300-2BK	INSERT BUSS-ZBR	X.1	1.00	0.00		Pkg Lost		5.75	11.50	28.75	57.50	115.00
24		Q24	5.00	Attached Packagin	g			o		Outsource Cost			F0.75			
25	-		iviate	rial item #	Description		Farts Fer	<u>3crap 70</u>		Material Cost		20.51	50.75	124.06	240.20	450.64
22	-		BX-US	S-CARTON	CARTON USXUSXU	15	1000.00	0.00		iviaterial iviarkup		13.15	5.07	12.41	24.63	49.06
27		-	PK-14	-DIVIDER	14X14 DIVIDER		100.00	0.00		Total Watri Cost		59.40	55.62	150.47	270.88	559.71
20	-	-	-							Fix % WarkUp		50.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00
20	-		-							F						
39	-									Extra Charges		100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00	100.00
40	-									Commissions		0.024005	0.011957	0.008839	0.007800	0.007281
41	-		-													
42	-									Total Revenue		480.09	4/8.27	883.94	1560.06	2912.30
43	-	-	-							Iotal Cost		320.95	443.89	812.68	1427.33	2656.63
44	-									Iotal Profit		159.14	34.39	/1.2/	132.73	255.66
45	-	-								VAP%		35.07	8.04	9.38	10.10	10.56
40	-	-								VGM %		59.10	38.38	33.30	30.70	29.12
4/	-									VGM Amount		0.590987	0.383841	0.333009	0.306993	0.291233
48	-	-	-							VGM/Hr		0.240239	0.078016	0.027052	0.012469	0.005913
49	-	-														
50	-									IND PART		-		-	-	-
51										OFD1		7 0 504000	0.001004	0 100000	0 1 0 0 0 7	7 0 100000

# **Quote Inventory**

The **Quote** module supports both a Master Inventory file, which is used by the full system, and a Quote Inventory file, used only in the quote module. The Quote Inventory file can be based on the Master Inventory or it can contain items that are not a part of the Master Inventory. Changes made to items in the Quote Inventory will not be mirrored in the Master Inventory.

New items can be added to the Quote Inventory. These items will not show up in the Master Inventory unless you convert a quote that is using one of these items over to a BOM. When a quote is converted to a BOM, **EnterpriselQ** adds any new item(s) to the Master Inventory.

To access the Quote Inventory screen, select **Miscellaneous Quote Inventory** from the main menu.

The following functions are available in the Quote Inventory maintenance screen.

- Add- Two options will be available for you to select from--Material and Blend.
- Edit Select the item from the list that you wish to make changes to and then select File|Edit to bring up the following screen.
- **Delete** Selecting Delete will bring up a confirmation box with a prompt asking the user to confirm the deletion. Click **[OK]** to remove the item from the Quote Inventory List.
- Search The user can search for an item using the following methods: Use the pick list, or place your cursor in the "Search Quote Inventory" (hyperbrowse search method) field at the top of the Quote Inventory Maintenance screen. Type in the Class and the item number and the hyperbrowse will find the item.

## Adding Items to the Quote Inventory

Selecting Material will bring up the following screen:

IQ Modify Quote Inve	ntory Item	_		×
Class	PL 🗸		<b>v</b> 0	Ж
ltem #				
Rev			🗙 Car	ncel
Description				
Extended Description				
Unit	LBS V			
	RFQ Required			
	Inactive			
SPG				
Gauge				

- > Select the class by clicking on the arrow down button.
- > Enter the Item #, Rev, Description, and Extended Description.
- > Select the Unit of measurement (i.e. LBS, GAL, KG) from the arrow down list.
- > Enter the SPG (specific gravity) and Gauge if desired (class PL items only).
- > Click on [OK] and the item will appear in the Quote Inventory List.
- > Enter in the Quantity and Price Break information for the item in the fields to the right.

**Note**: Items in the quote inventory are not unique. It is possible to have the same item listed multiple times in the quote inventory, this is because it has been added to multiple RFQ's.

## Edit Items

Select the Edit option from the File menu to make changes to an item. Quote Inventory can be marked Inactive which will hide it from the lists. Users can use the Show/Hide Inactive toggle button on the Quote Inventory screen to show or hide the inactive quote inventory. There is also a toggle button on the pick list. If an item in Master Inventory is marked inactive a confirm message will appear asking if the user would like to inactivate Quote Inventory as well. If Yes is selected the quote inventory item will be marked inactive as well as the master inventory item. If a master inventory item is toggled back to active, the quote item is not automatically marked active. If the quote item should be active again users must uncheck the box from the Modify Quote Inventory Item form.

## Options

Under Options on the Quote Inventory Menu Bar, the following options are available:

- Confirm Every Transfer If checked, when making transfers from Master Inventory to Quote Inventory, the user will receive the following prompt "Update Quote Inventory List?" If unchecked, the items are moved without the prompt.
- Include Prices with Transfer If checked, when making transfers from Master Inventory to Quote Inventory, the quantity and price break information will transfer with the item.
- **Reset Screen** Resets the screen to the default settings.

**Where Used** - Right click from the middle section and select Where Used to view a list of RFQ's where the highlighted item is used. Right click jump option is available on this form to jump to the highlighted RFQ.

[	Where PL.000050.DFAR BONE GRAY is Used -											
					<b>↓</b> ↑ E		Y	*	I	$\triangleleft$		ÞI
	RFQ #	RFQ Description	Date	<b>RFQ</b> Revision	Sourc	e			Item	#		^
	4-PASO	FRAME-LFT ARM-RT ARM	5/16/2000	1	PRIMA	ARY	MAT	ERIAL	AB-7	79888	7	
	4-PASO	FRAME-LFT ARM-RT ARM	5/16/2000	1	PRIMA	ARY	MAT	ERIAL	AB-7	9888	8	
	4-PASO	FRAME-LFT ARM-RT ARM	5/16/2000	1	PRIMA	ARY	MAT	ERIAL	AB-7	9888	9	
	46-PASO	BATTERY CASE	8/14/2000	1	PRIM/	ARY	MAT	ERIAL	A-24	5-CA	SE	
	61-PASO	CALC BUTTONS	8/15/2000	1	PRIMA	ARY	MAT	ERIAL	C150	)5		
	1-PASO	RETAINER CLIP	5/11/2000	1	PRIMA	ARY	MAT	ERIAL	0809	2-10	2	
	15-PASO	SHELL TOP/BOTTOM/LFT	5/15/2000	1	PRIMA	ARY	MAT	ERIAL	SHL-	45-56	5A	
	15-PASO	SHELL TOP/BOTTOM/LFT	5/15/2000	1	PRIMA	ARY	MAT	ERIAL	SHL-	45-56	5B	
	15-PASO	SHELL TOP/BOTTOM/LFT	5/15/2000	1	PRIMA	ARY	MAT	ERIAL	SHL-	45-56	5L	
	16-PASO	VOLUME CUP	5/15/2000	1	PRIMA	ARY	MAT	ERIAL	0554	3-10	1	5
<	c 👘										>	

Both active and inactive pricing from the Buy/Sell tab in inventory will appear in the Master Inventory section, and active and inactive pricing will appear in the Quote Inventory List. To only see active pricing

select the Hide/Show Inactive button 😐 available in both sections.

Note: If the 'Use Master Inventory Std Cost for Component Pricing instead of Price Breaks' quote parameter is checked the standard cost will be displayed instead of the price breaks.

## Adding Blends to the Quote Inventory

If **Blend** is selected, the following screen will appear:

- > The class will default to PL and cannot be changed.
- > Enter the Item #, Rev, and Description.
- > Select the **Unit** of measurement (i.e. LBS, KG).
- > Click on [**OK**] and the following screen will appear:

IQ Define Qu	ote Blend Operation		—		×
File Reports	Help				
<b>e</b>				• -	√ ×
Operation # Class Description	234         BL         Blend Operation         Blended At WorkCenter         Define Blend by LD Ratio				
Operation M	laterials Documents				
ltem#	BLEND123		+ -		× (°
Rev		Qty Price	Break		^
Description	BLEND123				
Ext Description	i				
Unit	LBS Edit				*
- The system will assign an Operation number and Description to the blend operation and the Operation Info tab will be filled in with the Item #, Rev, and Description and Unit entered above.
- > Click on the **Blended at Work Center** check box if the item is to be blended at the work center.
- > The user may choose to define the blend based on a Let Down Ratio versus percentages.
- > Define the blend operation by clicking on the **Materials** tab and entering the additives and/or raw materials (along with percentages or Let Down ratios) that make up the blend.

**NOTE**: The total of the blend percentages for the individual components of the blend must equal 100.

- To calculate pricing for the blend from the individual prices of the components, go to the Operation Info tab, click on the Calculate Blend Price Breaks button, and select the component to be used as the basis for the price. The price breaks for the blend will then be calculated and displayed.
- > When finished creating the blend, click on File|Exit.

## Editing Items in the Quote Inventory

Select the item from the list that you wish to make changes to and then select **File|Edit** to bring up the following screen.

IQ Modify Quote Inver	ntory Item	_		×
Class	PL 🗸		<b>v</b> 0	)K
ltem #	BL-5000-BLK			
Rev			🛛 💢 Car	ncel
Description	BLEND OF BLK/NATURAL			
Extended Description				
Unit	LBS V			
	RFQ Required			
	Inactive			
SPG				
Gauge				

Make your changes and press [OK] when finished.

**NOTE**: The user can only Edit items in the Quote Inventory list--not in the Master Inventory list. The same applies to deleting items.

## Mass Update Pricing for Quote Inventory

Users can update Quote Inventory pricing based on a percentage increase or decrease or a flat amount with an effective date for specific items. Select Mass Update Pricing from the Options menu. The system will calculate the new unit price and update the Quantity Price Breaks in the Quote Inventory Maintenance with the new prices. The Price Date field will populate with the current system date/time. The Inactive Date for the old pricing will populate with the system date.

[	Quote Price Breaks	;									_		>	×
F	File Help													
Γ	<b>A</b>	🔨 🖂	<			Q	uote Invent	ory Breaks						
Γ	Item #		Revisio	n	^	]						∢ ∢		ÞI
	BL-5000-BLK					Г	Quantity	Price	Price Date		Effective Date	Inactive	Date	^
	BL-DFAR-RED					Þ	100	19.524533	8/15/2000	1:14:05 PM				
	BLEND123						500	9.889143	8/15/2000	1:14:05 PM				
	BLUE						1000	9.004232	8/15/2000	1:14:05 PM				
	BX-05-CARTON						5000	7.510367	8/15/2000	1:14:05 PM				
Ι.	BX-14-CARTON						10000	7.446388	8/15/2000	1:14:05 PM				
<b>)</b>	C1500-B-PP						20000	7.369446	8/15/2000	1:14:05 PM				
	C1500-TOP						50000	7.346852	8/15/2000	1:14:05 PM				
	r			>	Ť									
	Increment Ry			-										
		0												
	Percentage	<u> </u>		-										
	◯ Flat Amount	0		÷										
I	Effective date	5/21/2	2019											
1	Precision	6		•										
					_									
_														
											ОК	Car	icel	

To update pricing find the item(s) in the list that you would like to change the price breaks on. To find a specific item, enter information in the white box at the top of the form based on the sort criteria chosen (Item #, Rev, Description, Class, Ext Description). Advanced filtering is also available. Multiple items may be selected using the toggle buttons or the Ctrl and Shift buttons on your keyboard. Once the item(s) are selected the prices can be changed based on a Percentage or Flat Amount. Select the option and then enter the corresponding value. (To enter a decrease put in a negative number). Enter the effective date from the drop down calendar and the decimal precision level required (up to six decimals).

Click on the OK button and the system will calculate the new pricing and update the Quantity Price Breaks in the Quote Inventory Maintenance with the new prices.

## **Attached Items Maintenance in Quotes**

Allows the user to create new packaging items, components (inserts), and/or raw material blend operations or edit any of the existing operations. This screen defines the operation, shows the materials (or components) that will be consumed, and allows the entry of Standard Labor Rates (located under Misc). Access this screen from **Misc**|**Attached Items Maintenance** and switch between the different types of items by selecting **View** from the menu. Examples of **Attached Items Maintenance** include:

- Attached Packaging Review and/or change packaging operations.
- Attached Components Change the details of attached components operations.
- Blends Edit blend operations by changing blend percentages, blend components or pricing.
- Process /Std Operation Edit attached processes or operations by changing the labor rate, the cost element or the materials involved.

# **Auxiliary Equipment**

Allows the user to set up auxiliary equipment used in the production process, such as dryers, conveyors, etc. The auxiliary equipment can have hourly charge rates that will be used in calculating the overhead cost. Create Auxiliary Equipment

Prior to assigning Auxiliary Equipment to a quote, the equipment must be added to the Auxiliary Equipment list. To add equipment to the list:

- > Select Misc|Auxiliary Equipment from the main menu:
- > Place the cursor in the Description column, and enter the description of the equipment.
- Move to the Rate column and enter the hourly charge rate for the equipment. This rate will be added to the machine rate and included in production costs.
- Move to the How Many column and enter a number showing how many of these particular items are available on the floor.
- > To add Additional equipment, click on the Add [+] and enter the details.

Please see Assigning Auxiliary Equipment for additional information.

## Work Centers - Access from the Estimating Module

- > Select Misc/Work Centers from the main menu:
- Work centers are used to describe the type of equipment used to manufacture the items. Examples of work centers may include injection or blow molding machines, extruders, assembly tables, pad printers, heat stamping centers, etc.

**NOTE**: **EnterpriselQ** recommends that work center information be entered into the Work Center module prior to creating a quote.

The user can Add, Edit, Delete, assign RealTime information or assign Cells by selecting this option.

Entering work centers is discussed in more detail in the work center section.

# **Cloning a Quote**

The cloning feature allows the user to create a duplicate of the quote and then make desired changes. This will create a new quote with either the new RFQ# or new revision using the system date as the RFQ date. This is excellent for tracking quote revisions, changing cavitation without having to enter all the data in again, or for doing "What If?" calculations. All of the information is cloned except the created by field does not populate on cloned quotes.

To **CLONE** an existing quote:

From within the Quote module, select File|Clone from the main menu. The following screen will appear:

Clone RFQ # 1-P	ASO	_		×
Enter New RFQ # Enter New Revision	1-PASO 2 ✓ Include User-Define ✓ Include Internal Do ✓ Include External Do ✓ Include Notes ✓ Include Additional	ed Form Inf cuments ocuments Notes	ormation	

- The user can choose to enter a new RFQ# or keep the same RFQ # and create a new revision of that quote. The screen will default to display the same RFQ # with the revision incremented by one. Either field can be overwritten. Once entered press OK
- When cloning users can choose to include the User Defined Form, Internal Documents, External Documents, Notes and Additional Notes by checking the box.

## Multi-Currency

If Multi-Currency is enabled, click on the **FxRate** button on the **Calculations** screen to see what the values would be in the available currencies.

# **EIQ Bookmark for RFQ**

This option allows the user to drag and drop the icon onto the desktop or a folder in order to open the exact RFQ up again with one click. Select the EIQ Bookmark button then drag it to the desktop or folder and drop it. The shortcut will be named QUOTE\_id#.eiq by default.

# **Trace Quote**

Users can utilize the trace option from the General Quote Values tab and the Item Details tab.

For more information on Trace please see IQTrace Tables for more information.

# Weight Work Sheet

To have the system calculate the volume of an item, follow the steps below.

Click on the Weight Work Sheet button next to the Item Weight field located on the Item Details screen. The following screen will appear:

🚺 Weigh	t WorkSheet (BL-50	-		×
SPG				
Volume	0.0000000		(Cu. In)	
	ОК		Cancel	

- Enter the Specific Gravity (SPG) of the item. The SPG should be available from the manufacturing specification sheet for the material. If the item is in master inventory and the SPG has been entered on the Additional tab it will fill in automatically with that value.
- Enter in the volume of the item or click on the Volume Work Sheet button next to the Volume field to calculate the volume. The following screen will appear:

10 Volume Calculat	tor - Iten	n # 4-465788							_				×
File Help													
Ø					$  \leq$	$\triangleleft$	$\triangleright$	⊳I	٠	=	Ľ	×	୯
Shape Parameters	_					E	xamp	le					_
Shape			~										
Operation			~										
Quantity													
1. Cubic inches				in	~								
Operation Quan	ntity C	Description			Shape						Unit	Volu	in v
													-
													¥
<												3	>
Total volume (Cubic i	nches): 0	0.00000000											
							0	к			Can	cel	
							_						

Quoting

- From this form users can build the item using the various shapes within the system and specifying each shapes dimensions.
- Select the UOM that the volume will be calculated in by clicking on the arrow down list within the UOM field. Select in for *cubic inches*, cm for *cubic centimeters*, or mm *cubic millimeters*.

### **Adding Shapes**

To add a shape:

- > Click on the Add [+] button on the Navigator bar.
- Select a geometric Shape from the arrow down list of shapes. The Custom Volume Value option allows the user to add volume values for unknown shapes.
- Select an Operation. Selecting Solid will add a positive value to the total volume and selecting Vacuum will subtract a negative value from the total volume.
- Enter the Quantity to calculate how many of the selected shapes to be added to the list. The default is one.
- Enter the Shape Dimensions. Depending on the shape of the item, this will include the radius, height, wall thickness, width, depth, and/or length.
- Click on the Post/Edit button (the check mark) to add the shape to the list at the bottom of the page.
- > Type a **Description** (*optional*) for the shape in Description field in the table.
- > To add additional shapes, click on the Add [+] button on the Navigator bar and repeat the above steps.
- Once all entries have been made, click [OK] to exit the Volume Calculator to the Weight Worksheet screen and click [OK] again to apply the amount to the Weight field within the quote.

**Note**: The system remembers the detail data within the Volume Calculator for a given RFQ number. This allows the user to view and edit how an item's volume calculation at any time.

### **Editing Shapes**

To edit an existing entry in the volume calculator table:

- > Select the record from the list at the bottom of the page.
- Change the values to the new entries and click the Post/Edit button (the check mark). To apply the total item volume to the Weight Work Sheet, click on [OK].

Once all changes have been made, click [OK] to exit the Volume Calculator to the Weight Worksheet screen and click [OK] again to apply the amount to the Weight field within the quote.

## Formulas Used in the Volume Calculator

The following table defines the formulas used by the **EnterpriselQ** Volume Calculator.

Cone - Hollow	R = Radius of Larger Cone R2 = Radius of Smaller Cone = R - T S = Diameter = R * 2 S2 = Diameter = R2 * 2 T = Wall Thickness LB = Base area of larger cone = (S * S) * 0.785 SB = Base area of smaller cone = (S2 * S2) * 0.785 VolConeL = Volume of larger cone = ((LB / 3) * H) VolConeS = Volume of smaller cone = ((SB / 3) * (H-T)) H = Height Cone - Hollow = (VolConeL - VolConeS) [Difference between two volumes.]
Cone - Partial	D1 = Base Width D2 = Top Width H = Height Cone - Partial = (0.2619 * H) * ((D1 * D1) + (D1 * D2) + (D2 * D2))
Cone - Solid	H = Height R = Radius S = Diameter = R * 2 AB = Area of Base = (S * S) * 0.785 Cone - Solid = (AB / 3) * H
Cylinder - Solid	R = Radius H = Height S = Diameter = R * 2 Cylinder - Solid = ((S * S) * 0.785) * H
Cylinder - Thru	H = Height R = Radius T = Wall Thickness OD = Outside Diameter = R * 2 ID = Inside Diameter = (R - T) * 2 OC = Outside Cylinder = ((OD * OD) * 0.785) * H IC = Inside Cylinder = ((ID * ID) *0.785) * (H -T) Cylinder - Thru = OC - IC [Subtract the volume of the smaller cylinder from the larger cylinder.]

Cylinder - with Base	$ \begin{array}{l} H = Height \\ R = Radius \\ T = Thickness \\ OD = Outside \ Diameter = R * 2 \\ ID = Inside \ Diameter = (R - T) * 2 \\ OC = Outside \ Cylinder &= ((OD * OD) * 0.785) * H \\ IC = Inside \ Cylinder = ((ID * ID) * 0.785) * (H - T) \end{array} $
	Cylinder - with Base = OC - IC [Subtract the volume of the smaller cylinder from the larger cylinder.]
Pyramid	L = Base Length W = Base Width H = Height Pyramid = = ((L * W) / 3) * H
Rectangle - Open Ended	L = Length W = Width D = Depth L2 = Inside Length W2 = Inside Width Rectangle - Open Ended = (L * W * D) - (L2 * W2 * D)
Rectangle - Solid	L = Length W = Width D = Depth Solid Rectangle = (L * W * D)
Rectangle - Thru	L = Length W = Width D = Depth L2 = Inside Length W2 = Inside Width Rectangle Thru = (L * W * D) - (L2 * W2 * D)
Rectangle - with Base	L = Length W = Width D = Depth T = Wall Thickness T2 = Wall Thickness, Doubled = T * 2 Rectangle with Base = (L * W * D) - ((L-T2) * (W-T2) * (D-T))
Sphere - Hollow	R = Radius T = Wall Thickness S = Diameter of larger sphere = R * 2 S2 = Diameter of smaller sphere = (R - T) * 2 VolSphereL = (S * S * S) * 0.524 VolSphereS = (S2 * S2 * S2) * 0.524
Sphere - Solid	Sphere - Hollow = (VolSphereL - VolSphereS) [Difference between two volumes.] R = Radius
	S = Diameter = R * 2 Sphere - Solid = (S * S * S) * 0.524

Torus	L = Length (outer radius R)
	R = Radius (inside radius)
	Torus = $2 \times \prod^2 \times R \times r^2$

**Note**: The Volume Calculator is also available from the Options menu. When accessed from the Options menu it is used as a volume calculator only and the values are not saved to the current open quote.

# Main Menu Bar Functions and Speed Buttons

Menu functions are available across the top of the Quote module. These functions are discussed in the following pages.

## File

Under **Quote** on the main menu, the following functions are available:

- New Create a New quote. Clicking on the Add [+] key on the Navigator bar will also perform the same function. From New menu item in Quoting users can also convert a quote from a BOM. select New->Convert from BOM. There are two options: 'Convert to Quote (Single Level' and 'Convert to Quote (Multi Level)'.
- **Delete** Delete a quote. Clicking on the **Delete** [-] key on the Navigator bar will also perform the same function.
- **Search** "Search" for a particular quote using a pick list. The pick list can be sorted by RFQ#, RFQ Description, Date, Rev #, Item Description, Item # or Customer Name.
- Archive Select this option to Archive the quote. This will allow the user to filter the quotes based on Open or Archived. From the Options menu the user can select which type of quotes to view: View All, View Open, or View Archived.
- **Restore from Archive** This will restore an archived quote back to open status.
- Clone... This function will create a new quote with the same RFQ # and a new revision or a new RFQ#. This can be used for changing cavitation or material without having to reenter all the data, or for doing "What If?" calculations.
- Convert to BOM This function allows the user to convert a quote to a BOM without having to go through the Edit Quote section. Please see Converting a Quote to a BOM for Additional information.
- Exit Closes the Quote Module.

## Options

Selecting **Options**, provides the following functions:

- View/Edit Operations Allows you to view/edit packaging operations, component operations, blends, or standard operations/routing. To choose which view, click on View from the menu and select the type of operations you want to see. Then choose from the pick list the specific operation to view/edit. See Attached Items Maintenance in Quotes for more information.
- **Display Production Summary** Allows the user to view a Production Summary Report of the quote that is currently being viewed. In addition to the RFQ # and Manufacturing #, the fields on the Production Summary screen are described below.

Description	Quote Description.
Revision	Quote revision.
Date	Quote date.

Expires	Quote expiration date.
Company	Customer associated to the quote.
Commission %	Commission rate percentage.
Manufacturin g Type	Manufacturing Type associated to the quote.
Manufacturin g Cell	Manufacturing Cell associated to the quote.
Start/Cycles	The number of shots required to "dial in" a tool or get an operation up and running.
Lbs/Hr	Extrusion MFG Type only.
Cycle Time	The time, measured in seconds, that it takes to make one unit.
Set Up Hours	The number of hours that it will take to prepare work station.
Wkly Dry Hrs	The number of hours that a press will be down due to material drying at the press.
Center Type	The work center type that the item is made on.
	For Extrusion MFG Type: Line Size
Center Rate	The cost to operate the work center plus profit and/or markup.
Operators	The number of operators required to run the operation.
Scrap %	The estimated amount of scrap the process will generate.
Units/Cycle	The number of units per cycle.
Hours/K-	The number of hours to complete 1000 cycles.
cycles	Calculation:
	1000 / Cycles per Hour
Hours/K-	The number of hours to complete 1000 units.
units	Calculation:
	(1000 / Units per Cycle) / Cycles per Hour
Cycle/Hr	The number of cycles completed per Hour.
	Calculation:
	3600 / Cycle Time
Feet/Lb	Extrusion MFG Type only.
Feet/Hr	Extrusion MFG Type only. Feet/Lb x Lbs/hr
Length (ft)	Extrusion MFG Type only. (Pt. Length)

Inch/Min	Extrusion MFG Type only. [((Feet/Lb * 12) * Lbs/Hr)/60]
Shot Wt(Ibs)	The shot weight in pounds.
	Calculation:
	((Cav. x Cavity Wt.) + Runner/Sprue). (divide by 453.6 if the weights are in grams)
Lbs/K-cycles	The amount of material required to complete 1000 cycles. Used in material planning.
Regrind %	Estimated amount of regrind that the process will generate.

Click on the [x] in the upper right hand corner of this screen to exit back to the General Quote Value screen.

- **Display Calc Parameters** Allows the user to view (from the Calculations screen) the calculation parameter information in addition to the calculated values.
- Volume Calculator The user can estimate the volume of an item using the Volume Calculator. When
  accessed from the Options menu it is used as a volume calculator only and the values are not saved
  to the current open quote. This function can also be accessed from the Item Details screen by clicking
  on the icon next to the Weight field. When accessed from the Item Details tab the information will
  be saved and populate the Volume field on the weight worksheet. Refer to the Weight Work Sheet
  topic for details.
- Engineering Quote Types This is a list of Quote Types for use in the Workflow module associated to Engineering Quotes.
- Do not filter out CRM Customers This is an option to have the CRM customers appear in the pick list when choosing a customer for the quote. If the CRM customer quote is converted to a BOM, the CRM customer becomes an active customer and is included in the EnterpriseIQ Customer Maintenance module. Note: If this option is not checked a quote for a prospect will appear in the pick list but cannot be opened.
- Views The user can select which types of quotes to view: View All, View Open, or View Archived. Based on the selection the pick list and the navigator buttons will only display those quotes associated to the type selected.
- User Defined Form Allows the user to add new fields to a blank, user defined table. A maximum of 30 new descriptive fields can be established. These fields can then be used in customized reports. This is also available from the User Defined Form tab at the bottom of the General Quote Values (main form). For information on setting up the user defined form please see User Defined Forms in the Setup manual.

### Reports

Selecting **Reports** provides the following functions:

- **Print** Shows the different reports available for printing.
- Quote Letter Note: This feature is currently unavailable in this version of WebIQ. In the desktop version this allows the user to create a quote letter using Microsoft Word and save it as a template. In order to use this feature, Word must be installed on the workstation you will be printing or creating the quote letter from. Please see Printing the Quote Letter for additional information.

### Help Menu

Contents launches the Help Files.

About displays version number and date of the EnterpriselQ system.

# **Visual Quote Routing**



Quoting

The **EnterpriselQ** Visual Quote Routing module is a tool which enables the user to create a routing of quotes in a more visual way or view existing Quotes visually. This option is very similar to the Routing Diagram option available from the items details tab of a BOM except the Visual Quote Routing module has add and edit capabilities.

From this screen the user can create the Quotes for the entire routing process. To create a Quote Routing diagram, you start at the end of the process and work your way to the beginning routing steps required to make the final item. Once it is created it can be viewed in the original Quote format.

## Overview

The basis of the EnterpriseIQ Visual Quote Routing module involves creating a routing structure for products to be quoted. This module is used to create routing diagrams for repetitive type manufacturing processes.



Below is an example of a Visual Quote Routing diagram:

# **Creating a New Visual Quote Routing**

To create a new Quote Routing diagram go to the Visual Quote Routing speed button on the main

launcher bar

. Click on the New button on the pick list and the following screen will appear:

	Seleo	tion Cri	teria						×
w JT	RFQ (	or RFQ p	lace ho	older d	etected -	your	must pr	ovide	
1a	nufa	cturing 1	Type o	r Cell					
]	Manu	facturin	g Type						
[									
	Mfg]	Гуре			Default	(Base	2)		^
	ASSY	(1							
	ASS	2							
	ASSY	3							
	BLEN	IDING							
1	BLO	WMOLD							~
] • [ ]	BLO One ( Sear	WMOLD Cell ch mfg c	ell						~
] • [ ]	BLO One ( Sear MFG	WMOLD Cell Ch mfg co Cell	ell	MFG	Туре		EPlant	: Name	~
] • [ ]	Dne ( Searc MFG PAS(	Cell Cell Cell Cell D EXT-W	ell T	MFG EXTR	Type USION B	YWE	EPlant PASO	Name PLANT	~
] • [ ]	Dne ( Searc MFG PAS( PAS(	Cell Ch mfg c Cell D EXT-W D GENER	ell T NC	MFG EXTR GENE	Type USION B ERIC MF(	Y WE	EPlant PASO PASO	Name PLANT PLANT	~
]	Dne ( Searce MFG PAS( PAS( PAS(	Cell Cell Cell Cell D EXT-W D GENER D INJ	ell T RIC	MFG EXTR GENE INJEC	Type USION B ERIC MFC CTION M	Y WE	EPlant PASO PASO PASO	Name PLANT PLANT PLANT	~
]	Dne ( Searc PAS( PAS( PAS( PAS(	Cell Cell Cell D EXT-W D GENER D INJ D MBATC	ell T NC	MFG EXTR GENE INJEC MAS	Type USION B ERIC MF( CTION M TERBATC	Y WE 5 OLDII H	EPlant PASO PASO PASO PASO	Name PLANT PLANT PLANT PLANT	~
]	Dne ( Searc PAS( PAS( PAS( PAS( PAS(	Cell Cell Cell DEXT-W D GENER D INJ D MBATC D OV	ell T NC	MFG EXTR GENE INJEC MAST OUT	Type USION B ERIC MF( CTION M TERBATC SOURCE	Y WE 5 OLDII H	EPlant PASO PASO PASO PASO PASO	: Name PLANT PLANT PLANT PLANT PLANT	~
]	Dne ( Searc PAS( PAS( PAS( PAS( PAS( PAS(	Cell Cell Cell D EXT-W D GENER D INJ D MBATC D OV D OV D SFOAN	ell T NC CH	MFG EXTR GENE INJEC MAS OUT Struc	Type USION B ERIC MFC TION M TERBATC SOURCE tural Fo	Y WE 5 OLDII H D am	EPlant PASO PASO PASO PASO PASO PASO	Name PLANT PLANT PLANT PLANT PLANT PLANT	~
]	BLO Dne ( Sear( PAS( PAS( PAS( PAS( PAS( C	WMOLD Cell Cell D EXT-W D GENER D INJ D MBATC D OV D SFOAN	ell T NC CH	MFG EXTR GENE INJEC MAS OUT Struc	Type USION B ERIC MFG TION M TERBATC SOURCE tural Fo	Y WE 5 OLDII H D am	EPlant PASO PASO PASO PASO PASO PASO	Name PLANT PLANT PLANT PLANT PLANT PLANT	~

From this screen you may choose a Mfg Type and cell you want the Quote assigned to.

Once a Mfg type (and optionally a cell) has been selected the Quote screen will appear. The work centers available will be based on the on the manufacturing type selected. Enter in the Quote information as described earlier in this document.

Once the information is entered, click on the OK button and the Visual Quote Routing screen will appear showing a blue box with the basic information regarding the step. Below is an example:

Туре:	ASSEMBLY
Rfg #:	95-PASO
Rate/Hr:	0.00
Item #:	FG ASSY-PART

This box shows the work center type, RFQ #, a calculated rate per hour based on the cycle time in seconds (The calculation is 3600/cycle time in seconds), and the Item #.

### **Adding Routing Quote**

To continue creating associated Quote Routing operations, right click and choose **Add Routing Quote**. Choose the Mfg Type and cell (optional) then fill in the fields on the form with the information for the step. An unlimited number of Quote Routing steps can be created.

### **Other Right Click Options**

- New Routing Quote This options starts the process from the beginning by creating a new top level quote.
- Edit Routing Quote- This function brings up the Quote for editing purposes.
- Delete Routing Quote- This function will delete the Quote Routing step you right clicked on and all of its attached steps. This only removes the routing step(s) from the diagram it does not delete the Quote(s). A pop up screen asking if you are sure will appear. To delete the step, click on the Yes button.
- **Expand** This right click function opens up the colored box that was right clicked on to show additional information about the routing step. In addition to the four fields shown on the non expanded box, you will see the Item Description, Parts Per, and Required.

Under 'Options', Toggle Expanded allows the user the choice to be able to expand multiple windows or only one at a time. With this option checked, only one box may be expanded at a time. With this option not checked, multiple boxes may be expanded and open at one time.

• Jump to Quote - This function will take you to the Quote screen for the item that was right clicked on.

### **Color Coding**

Each type of attached operation/component has a corresponding color associated with the information box.

- Blue represents a BOM / Routing.
- Purple is the Primary raw material.
- Green is a Purchased Component.
- Yellow is a packaging item.
- White is a purchased component used in a sub-operation. A sub-operation is an operation attached to an existing BOM which has been attached to the BOM Routing. If components are attached to this sub-operation they will show in white.
- Medium Blue is an Outsourced BOM.
- Gray is a Process
- Light Blue is an Assy Process

Once a Visual Quote Routing diagram is created, all of the steps are treated like traditional Quotes. All additional quoting functions can be done from the traditional quote form.

Note: When searching in the pick list, if a user is assigned CRM Customer Access in security inspector, when accessing the Visual Quote Routing pick list, the customer name field will be blank for records that have customers that are NOT assigned to the user.

Quoting

# Vendor RFQ

The Vendor RFQ module allows users to track quote requests to vendors for specific items or equipment. A Vendor RFQ can be created/accessed from several areas in the software: Quote Inventory, the Attached Materials tab on the Item Details tab of an engineering quote, the AKA Buying tab, the Buying section on the Buy/Sell Pricing tab in master inventory, the Projected Exceptions tab in Material Exceptions, Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul, and it is an icon the PO/Receiving tab. In all these areas

the Vendor RFQ form is accessed by selecting the Vendor RFQ speed button

When creating a new Vendor RFQ from the PO/Receiving tab the user will first be asked to select the **Source** from the drop down list:

- Master Inventory
- AKA
- Quote
- Quote Inventory
- Material Exception
- Asset Management
- Capital Equipment

Once the Source is selected the Item or Equipment to be quoted must be selected. For sources except Capital Equipment, the item/equipment is chosen from the corresponding pick list accessed by selecting the ellipsis button in the Item #/Equipment # field. The pick list is filtered based on the EPlant the user is logged into. The Capital Equipment source is used to request RFQ's for new equipment so the Equipment and Equipment Description information is manually entered in the pop up form that appears after clicking the ellipsis button.

Upon launching Vendor RFQ for an item from Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul, inventory pricing, AKA pricing, or quote inventory, if the item is associated to a vendor RFQ with the same source the system will jump to the existing Vendor RFQ. If the item is not already associated to a Vendor RFQ the system will display this message: "Unable to find corresponding Vendor RFQ record. Would you like to add a new Vendor RFQ?" Select Yes and the Vendor RFQ form will appear with the item information filled in.

IQ Vendor RFQ	!		— D	Х
File Help				
AA 🌮 🎒	▲ ► + = ✓	× C	Details Documents	
ID Description	80 Vendor RFQ # 80 Master Inventory 000050 12/4/2017 11:44:06 AM	•••	Vendor #     Company     Date Sent     Date Received     Com       ASH00     ASHLAND CHEMICAL     DOW00     DOW CHEMICAL COMP/     DOW00	ime ^
<u>کا</u>			< + = * ×	، د
			Qty Price Price Date Effective Date Inactive D	Date A

# Vendor RFQ - Main Section Field Listing

ID	This is the Vendor RFQ ID. This will automatically populate with the next sequential ID number. This cannot be changed.
Description	This populates with the text 'Vendor RFQ # ID' but the user can manually type up to 50 characters to describe the RFQ.

Source	<ul> <li>This is the source of the Vendor RFQ. This will fill in based on where the Vendor RFQ was created from, or if a new Vendor RFQ is created from the main module accessed on the PO/Receiving tab, the user will select the source from the drop down list. The Source options are:</li> <li>Master Inventory</li> <li>AKA</li> <li>Quote</li> <li>Quote Inventory</li> <li>Asset Management</li> <li>Capital Equipment</li> <li>Note: If a Vendor RFQ is created from within a specific quote from the Attached Materials tab or the 'Quote' source is assigned, and the RFQ will only be visible from that quote. If the Vendor RFQ is created from List section, or directly from Quote Inventory</li> <li>Material Exception additional to the accession of the Attached Materials tab or the 'Quote' source is assigned, and the RFQ will only be visible from that quote. If the Vendor RFQ is created from the Attached Materials, Packaging form), the 'Quote' source is assigned, and the RFQ will only be visible from that quote. If the Vendor RFQ is created from the Attached Materials, Packaging form), the 'Quote' source is assigned, and the RFQ will only be visible from that quote. If the Vendor RFQ is created from the Quote Inventory List section, or directly from Quote Inventory (Miscellaneous menu) it uses 'Quote Inventory' as the source, and can be viewed from other quotes.</li> <li>Note: When a RFQ is created from a Quote the user can expand this field to display the</li> </ul>			
	blank.			
Item or Equipment	This is the Item # or Equipment # associated to the vendor RFQ. When expanded this field will also show the item's Description, Class and Rev, or the Equipment's Description and Class.			
Created On	This is the date and time the RFQ was created. This will default to the system date but can be changed using the drop down calendar.			
TemplateA Vendor RFQ Template can be associated to the RFQ. Templates are created from the Filmenu. See below for more details.				
EPlant ID	This populates with the EPlant ID the user was logged into when the quote was created. It cannot be edited.			
Comment	Select the Edit Memo button to enter up to 4000 characters of information related to the Vendor RFQ. This information can be printed by selecting the Print speed button on the pop up form.			

# Vendor RFQ Details Section

Below lists the field information on the Details tab:

Vendor #	This is the vendor number associated to the vendor RFQ.
	If the RFQ is created from the AKA Buying tab in Inventory, all of the vendors on the AKA Buying tab will automatically populate this section.

Company	Vendor Name.
Date Sent	Select the date the Vendor RFQ was sent to the vendor using the drop down calendar.
Date Received	Select the date the Vendor RFQ was received from the vendor using the drop down calendar.
Comment	Double click on this field to enter up to 4000 characters of information related to the Vendor RFQ. This information can be printed by selecting the Print speed button on the pop up form.
Primary/Default	This check box is automatically checked for the first Vendor added to the RFQ. It can be manually checked to mark a different vendor as the Primary/Default vendor. Only one vendor can be marked as the default. This will be checked automatically if the vendor is marked as the default in AKA Buying when the vendor RFQ is created from there.
Vendor Status	This is the Vendor Status from the Vendor Maintenance Rating tab.

## **Vendor Distributors**

OEM Vendor distributors can be added to the list of vendors for an item. Select the Distributors button

to access a list of OEM vendors and their distributors. A form will appear listing all vendors that have been marked as an OEM in Vendor Maintenance. The bottom section will list all of the distributors associated to the highlighted OEM vendor. If the OEM vendor is listed in the item's AKA Buying section, they will be highlighted in blue.

Pick Distributors – 🗆 🖸							×	
OEM Vendors								
			🕹 🗐	$\mathbf{A}$	K I	<  <	⊳	⊳I
Vendor #	Company	City		State	Zip		Ad	dı 🔨
•								
<							3	> ``
Distributors					⊲	⊲		⊳I
Vendor #	Vendor	City	State or Region		Zip/P	ostal	Code	A ^
•								
								~
<							2	>
				ОК		Ca	ancel	

To add distributors to the Vendor RFQ, highlight the desired vendor and select OK. That vendor's distributors will then be listed in the vendor section of the vendor RFQ.

## Price Breaks section

The lower section displays the prices breaks associated to the highlighted vendor:

Quantity	The quantity associated with the price.
Price	The price of the item at that quantity.

Price Date	The date the price was created or revised.
Effective Date	The date that this price will be in effect.
Inactive Date	The date when this price will no longer be in effect.

## Applying Qty/Price Breaks

The pricing information in this section can be applied to the source by selecting the Apply button This button is only available for the vendor marked as the Primary/Default vendor.

If the source is Master Inventory or Material Exception when the apply button is selected the price breaks from the Vendor RFQ will populate in the Buying section of the Buy/Sell Pricing tab. When the source is AKA the prices as well as the vendor information will populate in the AKA Buying tab in master inventory.

If the source is Quote the Apply function will update the quantity price breaks for the attached material on the specific quote. When the source is Quote Inventory the pricing will be updated in the Quote Inventory List.

Note: In all cases described above this will overwrite any existing price break information.

**Note**: When converting a quote to a BOM if the item is associated to a Vendor RFQ the AKA Buying tab will be automatically populated with the vendor(s) and price break(s) from its Vendor RFQ.

**Note**: The 'Apply Price Breaks' option does not apply to Asset Management and Capital Equipment source RFQs.

## Vendor RFQ Document Tab

Internal or External documents can be associated to the Vendor RFQ. Select the Add button to attach an internal document and then choose Create New or Pick Existing. To attach an external document, click on the ADD (+) button and select the Document Library and document from the screens that appear. If the document is released it will be accessible from this tab. The user can also jump to the Document Control module by clicking on the Launch Document Control speed button.

Both internal and external documents can be set to print with the Vendor RFQ. This will default to None.

## **Email Correspondence**

In addition to documents there is an Email Correspondence tab. From this tab users can to attach Email correspondence related to the Vendor RFQ. To add an Email simply drag and drop it from Outlook or other email programs into the form. The Received Date will fill in based on the email's received date and time. A Received Date box surfaces if the system is unable to determine the date (such as: The Received and Sent dates differ, unclear binary data, or older data, etc.). Users are asked to provide the Received Date by selecting the correct date from the calendar. The From and Subject fields will also automatically populate with the information from the email. The date, from, and subject fields cannot be edited. A comment can be entered by double clicking the field. Enter the comment in the pop up box to further describe the email correspondence.

There are three ways to access the Email once associated to the vendor RFQ:

Double click on either the Received, From, or Subject fields.

- Right click and select View email.
- Or select the View email button.

**Note:** If the email has attachments, or multiple attachments, the total attachment size cannot be more than 4GB. The size allowance might further be limited by the chosen email program used. In order to view emails that have attachments, special formatting (e.g. stationary), or images embedded in the body of the email, the user must go into BDE Administrator and set the BLOB SIZE to 1000 for the database they are using (i.e. IQORA).

# **Print Vendor RFQ**

A Vendor RFQ can be printed for all listed vendors or for a specific vendor. The printer speed button in the main section on the left will print the RFQ for all vendors. The From and To drop down lists will show RFQs from the EPlant the user is logged into and RFQs with no EPlant designation. To print the RFQ for a specific vendor, highlight a Vendor, then select the printer speed button in the details section on the right side of the form. When printing for a single vendor, the print form will populate the vendor\_rfq\_dtl.id in the From and To fields, and the vendor #. These are read only fields and cannot be changed. From either option the user can choose the destination (Printer, Screen, File, Email, or Fax). This report is set up in System Parameters->Reports and Forms tab. The default report is called VEND\_RFQ\_REPORT.rpt.

# Add to PO

From both the vendor and price sections users can right click and select 'Add to PO' to add to an existing purchase order based on item/vendor combination or create a new requisition. When a new requisition is created from the upper section for a vendor, the line item section will populate with the item details but no quantity. Only Vendor RFQs with a source of Inventory or AKA can add items to the PO upon conversion. All other source types will not automatically populate line item information on the PO on conversion, items can be added manually after the PO has been created.

If the *new* requisition is created from the lower price section, the blanket quantity will fill in based on the highlighted quantity and a release will be created for that quantity with the next day as the promise date. The Unit Price field will only be populated if the pricing was applied and added to AKA Buying or the Buying section of the Buy/Sell Pricing tab. If the System Parameter 'Auto Populate Request & Promise Date based on Lead Time' is checked (Purchase Order & Sales Order Setup tab), the system will add the item's lead days from the next day's date to determine the promise date. The system looks first at AKA lead days when applicable, and if none uses the main item's lead days. For example, if the lead days is 10, when the new PO is created on 9/23 the promise date will be 10/4.

When adding to an existing PO from the lower section right click option, no additional releases will be added. The user will be taken to the PO to manually update it.

# **Vendor RFQ Templates**

Vendor RFQ Templates can be created and then associated to specific Vendor RFQs. The templates contain specific quantity break details. When a template is assigned to a vendor RFQ the template's prices breaks can be applied to the vendor RFQ with a button click rather than having to manually enter required quantity breaks for each quote.

To access the Template form, select Templates from the File menu on the Vendor RFQ form. The first time this form is accessed it will be blank.

IQ Vendor R	FQ Tem	plates	_			×
File Help						
	⊲ ⊲		۰.	- 🗸	×	୯
Name MRO ITEMS	Descrip MRO IT	tion EMS		EPlar	nt ID	*
						¥
	I  4		٠	- 1	×	(°
Qty Break	10 25 100	Price				*
						*

Select the insert record (+) button and enter the Name and Description of the template and save the record.

Next enter the quantity breaks and prices in the lower section. An unlimited number of quantity breaks/prices can be entered.

Once templates are created they can be assigned to a Vendor RFQ.

## Assign a Template to a Vendor RFQ

To assign a template to a Vendor RFQ select the template from the drop down list in the Template field.

Next click on the 'Apply Template Qtys' button *i* to populate the quantity section of the form with the quantity breaks and prices from the selected template. Select Yes on the confirm message to continue.

(Note: A vendor must be assigned to the Vendor RFQ before a templates quantity breaks can be applied).

# **RFQ** Log

The RFQ Log module allows the user to maintain the status of all RFQ's and view them in a visually informative manner. The log displays the status details for the tool, primary material, components, and packaging using color codes. The log also provides easy maintenance of the In and Out Dates as well as due dates for RFQ's, again shown using color codes to alert the user of quoting requirements.

To access the RFQ Log select the RFQ Log button from the Estimating tab on the main launcher bar.

[	🛛 RFQ Log								- 🗆 :	×
F	ile Option	s Report Help								
ð	à	[	_ 📕 🗖 🗔			io 🖪 • 🎝	II 7 %	⊲ ⊲	> > <	e
	RFQ #	RFQ Description	Rev	Tool Status	Primary Material Status	Component Status	Packaging Status	Quote Status	Workflow Status	^
Þ	152-RASO	BOMC	1	~						
	153-RASO	ITEMD	1							
	155-RASO		1						Inactive	
	156-PASO	Quote123	1						Inactive	
	157-PASO	WF-100	1						Pending	
	158-PASO	New Customer	1							
	16-RASO	VOLUME CUP	1							_
	160-PASO	DC1	1						Pending	
	161-PASO	WF-200	1						Inactive	
	164-PASO		1						Inactive	
	165-1	TD-100T	1						Inactive	
	165-2	TD-100T	1						Inactive	
	165-RASO	TD-100T	1						Inactive	
	17-PASO	TOP/CLIP/BASE	1							
<									2	

The form will contain all existing quotes, both open and archived. Below is an alphabetical field listing for this module:

Component Status	This is the current status of the component if applicable. Select the appropriate status from the drop down list:						
	ОК						
Purchasing							
	Estimating						
	Sales						
	This field can also be entered from the RFQ module.						
Customer Name	The name of the customer associated to the RFQ.						
Date Due	This is the date the quote is due to the customer. This is entered manually using the drop down calendar from the RFQ module or the RFQ Log.						

Date IN	This is the In date of the RFQ. This will populate with the Quote date from the RFQ which fills in automatically with the date the quote was created. This can be changed by choosing a different date from the drop down calendar.					
Date OUT	This is the date the quote was sent out. This is entered manually using the drop down calendar from the RFQ module or the RFQ Log.					
Follow Up Date	This is a manually entered date used to set a follow up date. This is entered using the drop down calendar from the RFQ module or the RFQ Log.					
Item #	The Item number associated to the RFQ. If the RFQ has more than one item it will be listed in the RFQ Log for each item number that is associated to it.					
Item Description	The Item description associated to the RFQ.					
Item Type	Select the appropriate type for the item from the drop down list next to the field:					
	New					
	Existing					
	Requote					
	This field can also be entered from the RFQ module.					
Mfg Type	The manufacturing type associated to the quote.					
Note	This is the Note field from the quote. Select the ellipsis button in this field to view or edit the note. Changes made from the RFQ Log will be visible in the quote module as well.					
Packaging Status	This is the current status of the packaging if applicable. Select the appropriate status from the drop down list:					
	ОК					
	Purchasing					
	Estimating					
	Sales					
	This field can also be entered from the RFQ module.					
Primary Material Status	This is the current status of the primary material if applicable. Select the appropriate status from the drop down list:					
	ОК					
	Purchasing					
	Estimating					
	Sales					
	This field can also be entered from the RFQ module.					

Quote Status	The status of the quote in regards to acceptance by the customer. Select the quote status from the drop down list:								
	Pending								
	Won								
	Lost								
	This field can also be entered from the RFQ module.								
Rev	This is the revision level of the quote.								
RFQ #	The RFQ # is the unique quote tracking number for the quote.								
RFQ Description	The RFQ description from the quote.								
Sales Engineer	This is the Sales Engineer associated to the RFQ. This is only entered from the RFQ.								
Tool Status	This is the current status of the tool. Select the appropriate status from the drop down list:								
	ОК								
	Purchasing								
	Estimating								
	Engineering								
	This field can also be entered from the RFQ module.								
Tool Type	Select the appropriate type for the tool from the drop down list next to the field:								
	New								
	Existing								
	Requote								
	This field can also be entered from the RFQ module.								
User Quote Status	This is an additional user defined status field. The information is only entered from the Quote.								
Workflow #	This field will contain the Workflow # if an Engineering Quote has a workflow associated to it.								
Workflow Quote Type	This is the Quote Type associated to the Quote Workflow.								
Workflow Status	This is the status of the quote workflow. The text in the status field is color coded:								
	<ul> <li>Red - Not Approved</li> </ul>								
	<ul> <li>Blue - Pending</li> </ul>								
	<ul> <li>Green - Approved</li> </ul>								
	Purple - Inactive								

### **Color Codes**

There are color codes associated with the status' and dates.

**Status Color Codes** - The current status can be set for the Tool, Primary Material, Component, and Packaging. Each specific status field will be color coded based on the selected status:

- Pink Estimating
- Green Sales
- Orange Engineering & Purchasing

**Date Color Codes** - All non status fields will be color coded based on the due date or completion date of the RFQ:

- Yellow The RFQ is due within the next four days.
- Red The RFQ is due within the next two days or it is overdue.
- Light Blue The RFQ is due within five days or more.
- Gray The RFQ has been completed. (The date out field has been filled in).

**Quote Status Color Codes** - The quote status field will be color coded based on the selected status:

- Light Green The quote status is Pending.
- Medium Blue The quote status is Won.
- Olive Green The quote status is Lost.

Workflow Status - This field will be color coded to indicate the status of the workflow:

- Red Not Approved
- Blue Pending
- Green Approved
- Purple Inactive

### Search

To search for a specific RFQ select the Search button to access the pick list. Or, first select the desired sort column by clicking on the header or by right clicking and selecting the column from the list. Next, type the known information corresponding to the sort field in the white box at the top of the form. The list will jump to the first record matching the typed information.

### Filter

The RFQ Log can be filtered based on the Estimating, Engineering, Sales, and Purchasing status' and/or the Quote Status of Pending, Won, Lost, or In Process. To filter the log, right click on the form and select the desired filter option. The RFQ Log will only display the quotes that are associated to the selected statuses.

To clear the status, the user must exit the RFQ Log and re-enter it.

In addition to the right click filter options the **Advance Search** function is also available by selecting the Filter Dataset speed button at the top of the form. (Please see the Advanced Search section for more information).

Quoting

### Jump to Options

- Jump to Quote The user can right click or double click a RFQ to jump to the quote.
- Jump to Workflow Select this right click option to jump to the workflow associated to the highlighted record.

### File Menu

The following options are available from the File menu:

- New Select this to create a new RFQ.
- Edit Select this to edit the highlighted RFQ.
- **Delete** Select this option to delete the highlighted RFQ. A confirm box will appear for the user to confirm or cancel the deletion of the quote.
- **Clone** Select this option to clone the highlighted RFQ. This is the same clone functionality described earlier in this document.
- Archive Select this option to archive the highlighted RFQ. A confirm box will appear for the user to select Yes or No to continue archiving the quote.
- **Convert to BOM** Select this option to convert the highlighted RFQ to a BOM. Please see Converting a Quote to a BOM for more information.
- **Exit** This will exit the RFQ Log.

# **RFQ Batch Print**

## **Print Batch**

Select the Batch Print button it to print a hard copy report for a batch of quotes. A form will appear to select the quotes to be printed on the batch report. Highlight the quote(s) on the left. Use the right arrow button to add them to the Selected Quotes section. Use the left arrow button to remove any quotes from the batch.

RFQ Batch	Print			_			)	×			
File Help											
Available Quot		Selected (	Quotes	[Bat	tch #	82]					
📃 🍃 🖆	1 🖿 🎝			I	⊲	$\triangleright$	⊳I	୯			
RFQ #	Rev	Date IN	Customer Name	^		RFQ #					^
1-PASO	1	5/11/2000	PLASTO INCORPO			•					
103-PASO	1	10/18/2018	AMERICAN MOVI	E							
104-PASO	1	10/18/2018	BUTTON WORLD								
105-PASO	1	10/18/2018	BUTTON WORLD		,				_	_	*
106-PASO	1	10/19/2018			4	Note					
107-PASO	1	11/1/2018				N			ð	×	6
108-PASO	1	11/1/2018									-
109-1	1	5/7/2019 3:27									
109-PASO	1	12/5/2018									
<			>	~							
			Properties			Print			Canc	el	

Select the **Properties** button to associate the batch report and an execute before print option if desired. The default report is called Qletter\_multi.rpt and can be linked by clicking on the 'reset to default' arrow button. A note (up to 4000 characters) can be added using **Edit Note** button. The note can be printed on the report. Once all quotes are selected and a note entered (if desired), select the **Print** button to print the report to the printer. (The report can also be assigned in System Parameters->Reports and Forms to 'RFQ Batch').

### Printing When Workflow is Enabled for Quotes

Printing the quote letter for an engineering quote with an associated workflow that is not approved is not allowed if the user does not have security to select the 'Continue' button.

A Quote letter cannot be printed under following conditions:

- If workflow mandatory is checked and workflow has not been approved.
- If workflow mandatory is checked and active workflow.
- If workflow mandatory is unchecked and active workflow.

If the quote letter cannot be printed a form will appear showing the items with unapproved workflows, or ones that require a workflow be created. This form will state the status of the workflow which will be 'Inactive', 'Pending', or 'Required'. If it is 'Required' the Workflow # and the Workflow Status columns will display in red. Users can right click and jump to the Engineering Quote or the Workflow associated to the highlighted record. Security is available on this form for the Jump To options and the Continue Button. If security is not enabled on the Continue button users will not be able to perform the action. This button can also be made not visible so users will only see the Cancel button. If Continue is selected, the action will be performed, such as printing the quote letter.

0	III Engineering Quote Unapproved Workflows -									×
The following items have unapproved workflows or require a workflow to be created and approved based on your current quote settings. Do you still want to print the quote letter?										
	#		ltem #	Description	Class	Revision	Workflow #	Workflow Status	RFQ #	^
Þ		1	TD-100T	TD-100T	FG	P.	84-PASO	Inactive	165-PASO	
		1	TD-100T INJ	TD-100T INJ	WP	3		Required	165-1	
	Jump to Engineering Quote Jump to Workflow									
										$\sim$
	Continue Cancel									

Quote letter can be printed under following conditions:

- If workflow mandatory is unchecked and no active workflow
- If workflow mandatory is checked and workflow is approved
# **RFQ** Comparison

Select the drop down arrow next to the Batch Print speed button and select RFQ Comparison. A form will appear to select the quotes to be compared on the report. Highlight the quote(s) on the left. Use the right arrow button to add them to the Selected Quotes section. Use the left arrow button to remove any quotes from the batch.

RFQ Comparison						_		>	×
File Help									
Available Quotes					Selected Quotes [Batch # 84]				
📃 🏂 🖆 🖆 🛟 🔠 🍸 🐼 🔍 🕨						I4 4	$\triangleright$	⊳I	G
RFQ #	Rev	Date IN	^		RFQ #				^
▶ 1-PASO	1	5/11/2000			•				
103-PASO	1	10/18/2018			-				
104-PASO	1	10/18/2018		4					
105-PASO	1	10/18/2018		,					
106-PASO	1	10/19/2018		4					¥
107-PASO	1	11/1/2018			Noto				
108-PASO	1	11/1/2018			Mote				
109-1	1	5/7/2019 3:27:26 PM			8		- V	×	G
109-PASO	1	12/5/2018							
118-PASO	1	3/22/2019							
119-PASO	1	4/3/2019	$\checkmark$						
< >>									
			Pro	perties	; Prin	t	Cano	el	

Select the **Properties** button to associate the comparison report and an execute before print option if desired. The default report is called Quote\_Compare.rpt and can be linked by clicking on the 'reset to default' arrow button on the properties pop up box.

A note (up to 4000 characters) can be added using **Edit Note** button. The note is printed on the default report. Once all quotes are selected and a note entered (if desired), select the **Print** button to print the report to the printer.

(The report can also be assigned in System Parameters->Reports and Forms to 'RFQ Batch').

# Index

# Α

Adding Blends to the Quote Inventory • 168 Advanced Optimization • 84 Assigning Auxiliary Equipment • 55 Attached Items Maintenance in Quotes • 172 Attached Materials Specification • 36 Auxiliary Equipment • 172 Create in Quoting • 55 Auxiliary Equipment, Assigning to Quote • 55

## В

Blends, Adding to Quote Inventory • 168 By Product • 68

# С

Calculating Quote • 75 Calculating the Quote • 75 Calculation Example • 89 Calculation Parameters in Quoting • 77 Calculation Parameters on Calculations Tab • 77 Calculations for LBS/K • 101 Cloning a Quote • 173 Commissions • 54 Commissions in Quoting • 54 Component Quantity Information • 126 Components, Adding to Quote • 36 Converting a BOM to a Quote from the Engineering Quote Module • 123 Converting a Quote to a BOM • 116 Converting Quote to BOM • 116 Creating a Quote from the Top Level down • 72 Creating Quotes - General Quote Values • 17 Current RFQ# • 15

# D

Default Values in Quotation Parameters • 9 Direct Labor Rates • 11 Display Production Summary in Quoting • 180

# Ε

Editing Items in the Quote Inventory • 170 EIQ Bookmark for RFQ • 174 Engineering Quote Workflow • 127 Extra Charges • 52 Extra Charges in Quotation Parameters • 16 Extra Charges in Quotes • 52 Extrusion Manufacturing Type Quotes • 66

# F

Family Tool, Quoting • 34 Fixed Markup Tables, using in Quotes • 77 Formulas in Weight Work Sheet • 174

#### G

Generic Manufacturing Type Quotes • 63 Generic Quotes • 63 Graphs in Quotations • 163 Graphs, in Quoting • 163

#### I

Individual Pricing • 103 Item Details tab in Quoting • 34

# L

Letter for Quotes • 110 Log - RFQ • 197

#### Μ

Main Menu Bar Functions and Speed Buttons • 180 Margin Display in Quoting • 6 Mark-up By setting in Quoting • 6 Markup Tables • 13 MarkUp Tables • 13 Mass Update Pricing for Quote Inventory • 171 Material Markup Table • 13 Multi-Currency • 174

# 0

Optimizing the Quote • 82 Optm % MarkUp • 82 Other Functions Available in Quoting • 126 Outsource Manufacturing Type Quotes • 65 Outsource Quotes • 65

### Ρ

Packaging, Adding to Quote • 36 Parameters for Quotes • 6 Print RFQ • 164 Printing the Quote Letter • 110 Production Markup Table • 13

#### Q

Quotation Parameters • 6 Quote Inventory • 166 Quote Documents • 57 Quote Inventory • 166 **Ouote Item Information** • 34 Quote Letter File Path • 110 Quote Log • 197 Ouote Parameters - General Tab • 6 Quote Quantities • 11 Quoting • 5 Adding Blends • 168 Attached Items Maintenance • 172 Attaching Components • 36 Attaching Packaging • 36 Auxiliary Equipment • 55 Calculating the Quote • 75 Calculation Display Box • 89 Calculation for LBS/K • 101 Calculation Parameters • 77 Using the Markup Tables • 77

Calculation Samples • 89 Cloning a Quote • 173 Commission Examples • 52 Commissions • 52 Confirm Every Transfer • 166 Converting a Quote to a BOM • 116 Default Standard Quote Quantities • 11 Direct Labor Rates • 11 Display Calc Parameters • 180 Do not filter out CRM Customers • 17 Documents, Internal & External • 57 Editing a Packaging Item or Component • 36 Extra Charges • 52 General Ouote Parameters • 6 Generic Mfg Type • 63 Graphs • 163 Gross Calculation Mark-Up By • 6 Include Prices with Transfer • 166 Individual Pricing • 103 Inventory • 166 Item Information • 34 Margin Display • 6 Markup Tables • 13 Material Mark-up Table • 13 Misc. Default Values • 9 Multi-Currency in Quoting • 174 New Quotes • 17 Outsource Mfg Type • 65 Print RFQ • 164 Printing the Quote Letter • 110 Production Markup Table • 13 Production Summary Display • 180 Qty / Price Breaks for Attached items • 36 Quote Features • 5 Refresh Sub Components Price/Break • 9 Reports • 180 Units/Cycle • 17 Volume Work Sheet • 174 Weight Worksheet • 174 Formulas Used • 174 Work Centers • 173 Quoting a Family Tool • 34

#### R

Rates and Quantities in Quotation Parameters • 11 Refresh Sub-Components Price/Break • 9 RFQ Batch Print • 201 RFQ Comparison • 203 RFQ Log • 197 RFQ, Print • 164

#### S

Skeleton Weight • 68 Standard Quote Quantites • 11

# Т

Thermoform • 68 By Product • 68 Skeleton Weight • 68 Thermoform and TFORM2 Manufacturing Type Quotes • 68 Trace Quote • 174

# U

Units/Cycle • 17 User Defined Form in Quotations • 62

#### V

Vendor RFQ • 187 Vendor RFQ Templates • 195 Visual Quote Routing • 183 Volume Calculator • 174 Volume Work Sheet in Quoting • 174

#### W

Weight Work Sheet • 174 Weight Worksheet in Quoting • 174 Work Centers - Access from the Estimating Module • 173